
  

    
  

  

1

TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH 

REGULAR TOWN COMMISSION MEETING 
September 16, 2020 

AGENDA PACKET 



2



 

    

 

  

 

    

    

    

     

  

   

TOWN COMMISSION MEETING PACKAGE 

MEETING DATE: September 16, 2020 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

AGENDA....................................................................................................................................................... 5 

CONSENT AGENDA .................................................................................................................................. 9 

PUBLIC HEARINGS................................................................................................................................. 47 

NEW BUSINESS ........................................................................................................................................ 87 

STAFF REPORTS.....................................................................................................................................195 

ACTION ITEMS .......................................................................................................................................226 



4



  

   
 

    

 
  

    
   

  

     

 
            

   
 

  
  

     
   

    
 

          

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 

5

Town of Melbourne Beach 

REGULAR TOWN COMMISSION MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 16, 2020 at 6:30 p.m. 

COMMUNITY CENTER – 509 OCEAN AVENUE 

AGENDA 
PUBLIC NOTICE 

The Town Commission will conduct a Regular Town Commission Meeting 
on Wednesday September 16, 2020 in the Community Center 

to address the items below 

Due to the effects of COVID-19, recognizing the Centers of Disease Control social distancing 
guidelines, and as authorized and in compliance with Governor Ron DeSantis Executive Orders, 
attendance in the Community Center will be limited to 28 people. Those in excess of that number 
will be accommodated outside the community center where the meeting will be broadcast live in 
an audible format. Should members of the public seated outside wish to be heard, comment cards 
will be available to fill out and those who do will be invited into the Community Center for the 
purpose of speaking at the appropriate time. Anyone who wishes to provide public input without 
personally appearing at the meeting may do so by sending an email to 
townclerk@melbournebeachfl.org. All emails must be received prior to 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 
September 15, 2020. All emails will be provided to the Mayor and each of the TownCommission 
Members. Should you wish to have your comment read aloud by Town staff at the meeting, 
please indicate that in your email. Your full name and address must be included and will be read 
aloud. The reading of public comments received by email will be limited to three (3) minutes. 

Commission Members: 
Mayor Jim Simmons 
Vice Mayor Wyatt Hoover 
Commissioner Steve Walters 
Commissioner Sherrie Quarrie 
Commissioner Corey Runte 

Staff Members: 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 
Town Clerk Jennifer Torres 
Town Attorney Clifford Repperger 
Finance Manager Jennifer Kerr 

mailto:townclerk@melbournebeachfl.org


         
 

  

        
  

     
  

   
 

    
 

  

  

  
  

   

  

  

 

 
 

6

Notice: Commission discussion and possible action may occur during any Commissioner Meeting. The 
following sections of the Agenda are always subject to such discussion and possible action without further 
motion by the Commission: Changes to the Agenda, Public Hearings, Old Business, and New Business. 

The public is advised that members of the Town Commission may be in attendance and participate in 
proceedings of the board. Attorney General Opinions (AGO) AGO 91-95, AGO 98-14, AGO 2000-68. 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES, THE TOWN HEREBY ADVISES THE 
PUBLIC THAT: In order to appeal any decision made at this meeting, you will need a verbatim transcript 
of the proceedings. It will be your responsibility to ensure such a record is made. Such person must 
provide a method for recording the proceedings verbatim as the Town does not do so. 

In accordance with the Americans with Disability Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons 
needing special accommodations for this meeting shall, at least 5 days prior to the meeting, contact the 
Office of the Town Clerk at (321) 724-5860 or Florida Relay System at 711. 

I. Call to Order – Led by Mayor Simmons 

II. Roll Call 

III. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence 

IV. Presentations 

V. Boards and Committees 

VI. Public Comments 

After being acknowledged by the Mayor, members of the public should state their 
name and address for the record. The Commission encourages citizens to prepare 
their comments in advance. Each individual will have three (3) minutes to 
address the Commission on any topic(s) related to Town business not on the 
Agenda. 

VII. Approval of the Agenda 

VII. Consent Agenda 

A. Site Plan Review for 304 First Avenue, Melbourne Beach 
B. Site Plan Review for 309 Hibiscus Trail, Melbourne Beach 
C. Reappointment of Daniel Gonzalez to the Planning & Zoning Board for a 

term of 3 years 
D. Reappointment of Doug Hilmes to the Planning & Zoning Board for a term 

of 3 years 
E. Reappointment of Christina Keshishian to the Environmental Advisory 

Board for a term of 2 years 
F. Reappointment of Aaron Simonton to the History Preservation & 

Awareness Board for a term of 2 years 



 
  

  
  

   
 

 

    
 

  
   

 
   

   

  
  

  

     

   

  
   

    
 

7

IX. Public Hearings 

A. Second Reading of Ordinance 2020-03, related to Boats and Recreational 
Vehicles, amending Section 7A-67, Appendix A, Town Code of Melbourne Beach, 
Florida (Land Development Code) 

B. Second Reading of Ordinance 2020-04, related to Binding Development 
Agreements, amending Section 7A-102, Appendix A, Town Code of Melbourne 
Beach, Florida (Land Development Code) – Town Attorney Repperger 

C. First Reading of Ordinance 2020-05, amending various sections of the Town 
Code of Melbourne Beach to establish a Special Magistrate to handle Code 
Enforcement in the Town of Melbourne Beach 

D. First Reading of Ordinance 2020-06, amending Section 11-54, Town Code of 
Ordinances, related to Police Officers Retirement System 

X. Old Business 

XI. New Business 

A. Consideration of extending or ending Emergency Order 2020-08 and 2020-
09 – Mayor Simmons 

B. Consideration and possible action to approve purchase of the Sollensys 
Blockchain Server to improve the Town’s data security and replace our 
current cloud storage services – Vice Mayor Hoover 

C. Discussion and possible action related to Civility, Respectful Communication 
and Accountability for creating hostile environment – Commissioner Quarrie 

D. Discussion and possible action of request to install a swing in Ryckman Park 
– Public Works Supervisor Davis 

E. Discussion and possible action to renew lawn service contract – Public Works 
Supervisor Davis 

F. Discussion and possible action to commence a Storm Water Swale Program – 
Public Works Supervisor Davis 

G. Consideration of the June 24, 2020 and July 1, 2020 Town Commission 
Workshop draft minutes – Town Clerk Torres 

H. Consideration of Proclaiming September 17-23 as Constitution Week – Janine 
Jordan, Daughters of the American Revolution. 



  

 

 
 

 

8

I. Consideration of proclaiming August 2020 as Florida Water Professionals 
Month  - Florida Water & Pollution Control Operators Association 

XII. Staff Reports 

A. Town Attorney Report 
B. Town Manager Report 
C. Town Clerk Report 
D. Departmental Reports: 

1. Building Department 
2. Public Works Department 
3. Code Enforcement 
4. Police Department 
5. Fire Department 
6. Finance Department 

XIII. Town Commission Comments 

A. General Comments 
B. Review of Commission Action List 

XIV. Adjournment 



 

 

 

  

  
 

  

   

  

 
   

  
  

   

   

   
 

 

   

9

Attachments: • Site Plan Review for 304 First Avenue, 
Melbourne Beach 

• Site Plan Review for 309 Hibiscus Trail, 
Melbourne Beach 

• Reappointment of Daniel Gonzalez to the 
Planning & Zoning Board for a term of 3 years 

• Reappointment of Doug Hilmes to the 
Planning & Zoning Board for a term of 3 years 

• Reappointment of Christina Keshishian to the 
Environmental Advisory Board for a term of 2 
years 

• Reappointment of Aaron Simonton to the 
History Preservation & Awareness Board for a 
term of 2 years 

Date Prepared: 09/10/2020 

Prepared By: Town Clerk Torres 

Meeting Date: 09/16/2020 RTCM 

Agenda Category: 
Proclamations & Awards Public Hearings 
Presentations Old Business 
Boards & Committees New Business 

X Consent Other: 

Subject: Site Plan Reviews (2) & Board Reappointments (4) 

Recommended Action: • Approve site plans as submitted. Planning & 
Zoning approved each of the (2) site plans 
during the Sept. 1, 2020 Board Meeting. 

• Reappoint (4) Board Members 

Background Information: See attachments. 



10



11

TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH 

BREVARD COUNTY'S OLDEST BEACH COMMUNITY ESTABLISHED 1883 

Site Plan Review 
Applicable Codes 

Town of Melbourne Beach Land Development Code 

2017 Florida Building Code 

Date: August 14, 2020 
Owner: Mayer, Cynthia A Trustee 

Owner Address: 10224 Millport Dr Tampa FL 

Site Address: 304 First Ave Melbourne Beach FL 

Parcel ID: 28-38-08-FY-3-14 

Zoning: 3RS 

Proposed Project: New Single Family Dwelling. Drainage will be reviewed 

by Town Engineer. 
References: Town of Melbourne Beach Code of Ordinances: 7A-33, 

Ordinance 2019-06 

Request: Approved by Planning and Zoning Board, Town Commission for 

construction of a new single family dwelling. 

Staff Review: The property lies in Zoning District 3RS 

1). Project is a new single family home as a principle use. 

2). The Building lot Zoning District requirements of min. lot area, width and depth. 

lot area is 15,000 sq. ft. min. 10,000 

lot width is 100 ft. min. 90 ft. 

Lot depth is 150 ft. min. 100 ft. 

3). lot coverage has a maximum of 30% for principle structure. 

Lot coverage per plan is 28 % Footprint of Primary Structure is 4,197 sq. ft. 

Max allowed for Primary Structure is 4,500 sq. ft. for Lot Area of 15,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum pervious area per lot is 30%. Pervious area is 63% 

4). Structure maximum height for zoning district is 28 ft. 

The proposed height provided is 27'10". Height survey will be required when 

trusses are set. 

Flood Zone X 

5). Zoning District Setback requirements 

Proposed Primary Structure Front Setback 25.5 ft. (min. 25 ft.) 

Proposed Primary Structure West Side Setback 15 ft. (min. 15 ft.) 

Proposed Primary Structure East Side Setback 15 ft. (min. 15 ft.) 

Proposed Primary Structure Rear Setback 36.2 ft. (min. 25 ft.) 

Updated 03-01-2020 



12

6). Sediment and Erosion control measures shall be met and approved by the Building
Official in accordance with the Town of Melbourne Beach Code of Ordinances
(27-28) and Florida Building Code (3307.1). 

7). On-site Storm water Retention Control measures shall be met and approved by
the Building Official in accordance with the Town of Melbourne Beach Code of
Ordinances (27-28) and the Florida Building Code {3307.1). Town Engineer will submit
a review of drainage per Ordinance 2019-06. Town Engineer will be required for final
inspection before a Certificate of Occupancy may be issued as per Ordinance 2019-06.
Minimum Landscaping Standards shall be met. 

Based on the above review, I find the proposed site plan for the referenced property is
in compli nee with The Town of Melbourne Beach Code of Ordinances. 

Building Official 

Updated 03-01 -2020 



13

Melbourne Beach Building Department 

From: Scott Glaubitz <SGlaubitz@bseconsult.com> 
Sent: Monday, August 24, 2020 7:26 AM 
To: Melbourne Beach Building Department; Jeanette Morenski; Alicia Mateo 
Cc: Melbourne Beach Town Manager 
Subject: RE: 304 First Ave 

We have reviewed the responses and they are satisfactory. We recommend approval for our portion of the review. 

Scott Glaubitz PE; PLS 
BSE Consultants, Inc. 
312 So. Harbor City Blvd. 
Melbourne, Fl. 32901 
Cell 321-403-1436 
Office 321-725-3674 
sglaubitz@bseconsult.com 

From: Melbourne Beach Building Department <building@melbournebeachfl.org> 
Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 1:57 PM 
To: Scott Glaubitz <SG1aubitz@bseconsult.com> 
Cc: Melbourne Beach Town Manager <TownManager@melbournebeachfl.org> 
Subject: FW: 304 First Ave 

Scott, 

Please find the attached corrections to 304 First per your letter. If possible please provide a report by 08/21/2020 or a 
note that this cannot be completed in that time frame. 
Thanks 
Beth 

BETH CR•Of¥1£ll 
Town of Melbourne Beach 
507 Ocean Avenue 
M elbourne Beach, Florida 32951 
(321)724-5860 

Under Florida law, e-mail addresses are public records. If you do not want your e-mail address released in response to a 
public-records request, do not send electronic mail to this entity. Instead, contact this office by phone or in writing. 

1 

mailto:TownManager@melbournebeachfl.org
mailto:SG1aubitz@bseconsult.com
mailto:building@melbournebeachfl.org
mailto:sglaubitz@bseconsult.com


14

Sc:oLL M. ClauliiLz, P.E., P.L.S.B.S.E. CONSULTANTS, INC. 
Prcsidcnl 

Consulting - Engineering - Land Surveying 
Hassan I~amal, P. E. 

, 'ice PresiclenL 

August 14, 2020 

Via E-mail 
Ms. Beth Crowell 
Town ofMelbourne Beach 
507 Ocean Avenue 
Melbourne Beach, FL 32951 
E-mail address: building@melboumebeachfl.org 

Re: 304 First Avenue~ Grading and Drainage Plan Review 
B.S.E. File #11440.16 

Dear Beth: 

The drainage calculations appear to be acceptable however to sign off on the review the 
following items are missing and should be supplied: 

l. The referenced KSM geotechnical report. 
2. Calculations supporting the open pervious area utilized to calculate soil storage. 
3. Source of the sand porosity. 

Other: 

1. Provide overall lot dimensions on the grading and drainage plan. 
2. Under "Surveyors Notes" #4: state the type of survey not "Type". 

Should you have any questions, feel free to contact me. 

Very truly yours, 

Scott :M.. {iCauEitz, P.'E., P.LS. 

Scott M. Glaubitz, P.E., P.L.S. 
President 

B.S.E. Consultants, Inc. 

SMG/jhm 
l 1440.16.town.corr.20-s4737.aug 

Ci,il - Agricu!Lural. - Tr,u1sporlatio1t - ULilit.y - Sile Pl,mnin!l'- E.mi.runmenlal 
:~ 12 .South Harbor CiLy 11oub·ard, Suite ff l, Melbourne, Florida ::-!290 I 

Tckphonc: (::12 I) 72.'i<lli? t - Fax: (:~2 I) 72:-l- l l.59 -Toll Free: 1-800-.12:l--rnSE(-I.27:l) - fanail : i111'o@hscrn11sult.com 

mailto:i111'o@hscrn11sult.com
https://11440.16
mailto:building@melboumebeachfl.org


15

Mailing
Headquarters ••~ ... • 

P.O. Box 78-1377
11345 U.S. Highway 1 ..,. ~ .. . 

..,.,. a........ ,..,1 ENGINEERING 
Sebastian, FL. 32978

Sebastian, FL. 32958 
Phone: 772-589-0712

Orlando IYIA....... AND TESTING 
C.A. # 5693

723 Progress Way 
KSMengineering.net

Sanford, FL. 32771 

August 17, 2020 

Cynthia Mayer 
10224 Millport Drive 
Tampa, Florida 33626 

Re: Mayer Residence 
304 First Avenue 
Melbourne Beach, Florida 
KSM #: 203496-porosity ltr 

Dear Ms. Mayer: 

We estimate the porosity of the surface soils are the above referenced address will be 

between 0.40 and 0.30 with the 0.30 being the conservative value. The material we 

encountered in the field was fine grained sand which was medium dense. 

This estimate is based upon our interpretation of existing site conditions and our 

experience with the porosity of similar materials. 

We are pleased to be of assistance to you on this phase of your project. When we may 

be of further service to you or should you have any questions, please feel free to 

contact us. 

Respectfully, 

Tnil ••- N~bnl't!fll<C1n.t.1~~"•~duld 

wMdlt-(Mie<-KN fl.( A, UC.fOHOPI

,,...,.w :1t.1tt"ddir«tty101,.. '*"""""•" 
l>nntt"d COO•H o# tm doc11m- •1t IIOt 

(-..,.lt.d1'ifl,t4WkM'4Joftdtlw 

~Uf1tmu1lbe~.,lfkdon,llfl'f...._•onc: 

COpttt. 

Julie E. Keller, P.E. 
President 
P.E. #68366 

JEK:jt 

E-mail to: mayercontract@gmail.com, erin.trauger@gmail.com 



16

August 17, 2020 

Beth Crowell 
Town of Melbourne Beach 

507 Ocean Avenue 

Melbourne Beach, FL 32951Dear Ms. Crowell, 

On behalf of my client for the 304 First Avenue Grading and Drainage Plan Review, I respectfully request your 

review and approval of the following comment response for construction. Thank you in advance for your time and 

efforts in reviewing the provided responses and enclosed plans. 

1. The drainage calculations appear to be acceptable, however to sign off on the review the following items 

are missing and should be supplied. 

a. The referenced KSM Geotechnical Report. 

Response: Please find referenced KSM report attached to this communication . 

b. Calculations supporting the open pervious area utilized to calculate soils storage. 

Response: General calculations were previously included in the table on the Grading and Drainage 

Plan but a summary memo has been attached to this communication for ease in review. Also the 

Drainage Calculations on C-1 have been clouded for label updates for consistency with memo. 

c. Source of the sand porosity. 

Response: Please see attached memo from KSM dated August 17, 2020 discussing the anticipated 

site porosity. As can be seen in the attached calculations a conservative value of 0 .3 was utilized in 

order to allow for fluctuations and unknowns within undiscovered soils columns. 

2. Other comments include: 

a. Provide overall lot dimensions on the grading and drainage plan. 

Response: Please see enclosed grading and drainage plan. Dimensions were previously identified 

but have been clouded and darkened for ease of reference. 

b. Under "Surveyors Notes" #4: state the type of survey not "Type". 

Response: Please see enclosed grading and drainage plan for updated survey reference. 

Thank you for your time and help in navigating us through the development process for this project. If you have 

any questions, please don't hesitate to contact me at (321) 652-5316. 

~
...J 

Sincerely, 

Erin Trauger, P.E. 

Principal Civil Engineer 

p.o. box 360253, melbourne, fl 32936 • direct (321) 652-5316 • erin.trauger@gmail.com 

l l Pag e 



17

5TORMWATER 

CALCULATIONS 

suBMJTTED to: 
Town :ofM~e_lbourne Beach 

REVISION DATE:8-16-20 

Erin Trauger, P.E. 

FL License No. 66576 

Mayer 
Residence 



18

I. Introduction 

The goal of this report is to detail requirements of compliance of the stormwater 

treatment system for the proposed improvements. The proposed Mayer Residence 

improvements include a new single family house located at 304 1st Avenue in the Town 

of Melbourne Beach, Florida. The Brevard County Property Appraiser Aerial and 

Details have been included for reference. 

II. Existing Conditions 

The majority of the site has existed as an undeveloped lot of open grass void of trees. 

In reviewing the existing drainage patterns of the property, the property currently drains 

toward 1st Avenue for collection. 

Ill. Proposed Conditions 

The proposed site improvements involve the construction a single family house and 

three drainage swales to provide for treatment volume required on the lot. Stormwater 

runoff created by the new impervious surface for this project will be collected on-site via 

overland flow and directed through a cascading series of three dry swales to treat the 

stormwater runoff. The swales are proposed to continue to discharge to 1st Avenue for 

collection as in the predevelopment condition. An additional component to the 

treatment volume provided is the void space available within the existing soil area under 

the stormwater swales above the season high water table. This volume is calculated 

based on the area of the swales, the depth to the season high water table and the 

porosity as estimated for the site. 

IV. Required Treatment Volume Calculations 

A complete summary report has been provided in the attachments to include volume 

calculations for each swale provided to ensure the Town of Melbourne Beach requirements are 

met for required treatment volume. Also included in those calculations is the value for soils 

storage onsite. The following considerations were included in the evaluation. 

• 8" of runoff from a 10-yr/24 hour storm event has been provided over the lot area 

through a combination of surface and soils storage volume. 

• Canaveral-Palm Beach-Urban Land Complex has been determined to be the soils 

mapped according to the Soils Survey Map of Brevard County. 

A Season High Water Table of 84" below ground surface has been utilized to determine
• 

the soil storage capacity beneath the stormwater swale areas. 

• A conservative value for porosity of 0.3 has been utilized to calculate the soil storage 

capacity beneath the stormwater swale areas. 

p.o. box 360253, Melbourne, fl 32936 • direct (321) 652-5316 • email erin.trauqer@qmail.com 



19



20

Brevard County Property Appraiser 

1:500 
A.igust 17, 2020 

0 20 40 80 It 

0 5 10 20 m 

Rlr lliolG!l:n Gl'II/ Not 3 &Jr/I!/ 11.ao la'/e lS ma/ rot pll!<:l!,et/ a~ 
Q ec?\O 2015 



21

Phone: (321) 264-6700 Brevard County Property Appraiser 
https://www.bcpao.us 

Titusville • Viera • Melbourne • Palm Bay 

PROPERTY DETAILS 

Account 2861957 
Owners Mayer, Cynthia A Trustee 
Mailing Address 10224 Millport Dr Tampa FL 33626 
Site Address 304 First Ave Melbourne Beach FL 32951 
Parcel ID 28-38-08-FY-3-14 
Property Use 0010 - Vacant Residential Land (Single Family, Platted) 
Exemptions None 
Taxing District 34X0 - Melbourne Beach 
Total Acres 0.34 
Subdivision Wilcox Melbourne Beach 
Site Code 0001 - No Other Code Appl. 
Plat Book/Page 0001/0058 

Wilcox Melbourne Beach W 20 Ft Of Lot 14, All Lot 15 & 
Land Description 

E 20 Ft Of Lot 16 Blk 3 

VALUE SUMMARY 
Category 2020 
Market Value $240,000 

Agricultural Land Value $0 

Assessed Value Non-School $166,780 

Assessed Value School $240,000 
Homestead Exemption $0 

Additional Homestead $0 

Other Exemptions $0 

Taxable Value Non-School $166,780 

Taxable Value School $240,000 

SALES/TRANSFERS 
Date Price Type 
08/30/2011 QC 

08/05/2011 $82,500 WD 
09/14/2009 $165,000 WO 

No Data Found 

2019 
$203,300 

$0 
$151,620 
$203,300 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$151,620 
$203,300 

Parcel 
Vacant 
Vacant 
Vacant 

2018 
$203,300 

$0 
$137,840 
$203,300 

$0 
$0 
$0 

$137,840 
$203,300 

Deed 
6447/0687 
6434/0510 
6029/2045 

Page 1 of 1 Generated on 8/17/2020 11 :42:52 AM 

https://www.bcpao.us


22

DATA AND CALCULATIONS 

p.o. box 360253, Melbourne, fl 32936 • direct (321) 652-5316 • email erin.trauger@gmail.com 

mailto:erin.trauger@gmail.com


23

Stormwater Treatment Volume Storage Calculations 

15000 sq.ft.Overall Lot Area= (150' x 100') 
= cu.ft. Required Treatment Volume= 8 inches over Lot Area 10000 

Soil Storage of Lot Volume: =porosity xsoils column above SHWT x area of storage ponds 

=0.3 x 7' above SHWT x (Ap1 +Ap2 +Ap3) 

= 7,844 cu.ft. 

Swale Treatment Volume : 2,534 cu.ft. 

Total Treatment Volume Provided = 10,377 cu.ft. 

Stage/Storage Volume of North Swale: 

Elevation I Area Avg. Area Volume I Sum. Volume 

(Feet) (Sq. Ft.) I (Sq. Ft.) {Cu. Ft.) {Cu. Ft.) 

I I 
13.00 2,220 950 1,461 

1,900 I I 
12.50 1,580 511 I 511 

1,021 i 
0 I12.00 462 I 

TOB Area of Pond Used for Soi ls Storage Basin (sq.ft.) 2,220 

Stage/Storage Volume of Southeast Swale: 

Elevation I Area Avg. Area Volume I Sum. Volume 

(Feet) (Sq. Ft.) (Sq. Ft.) (Cu. Ft.} {Cu. Ft.) 

13.00 345 I 141 201 

283 I 
12.50 I 220 I 60 I 60 

120 I 

12.00 I 20 0 

TOB Area of Pond Used for Soils Storage Basin (sq.ft.) 345 

Stage/Storage Volume of Southwest Swale: 

Elevation Area Avg. Area Volume Sum. Volume 

(Feet) (Sq. Ft.) (Sq. Ft.) I (Cu. Ft.) (Cu . Ft.) 

I ' 
12.00 I 1,170 

1,057 I 
529 

I 

872 

11.50 944 I 344 I 344 

- ---
11.00 

I 
I 

430 

687 ! 
0 I 

I 

TOB Area of Pond Used for Soils Storage Basin (sq.ft.) 1,170 



24
Mailing 

• • ~ Ill •
Headquarters P.O. Box 78-1377 

11345 U.S. Highway 1 ..,.. ~ Ill, • ENGINEERING 
Sebastian, FL. 32978 

""' &..., , ....1
Sebastian, FL 32958 Phone: 772-589-07121111...... AND TESTING
Orlando I y I C.A. #5693 
723 Progress Way KSMengineering.net

Sanford, FL 32771 

July 29, 2020 

Cynthia Mayer 
10224 Millport Drive 

Tampa, Florida 33626 

Re: Mayer Residence 

304 First Avenue 
Melbourne Beach, Florida 

KSM #: 203496-hswt ltr 

Dear Ms. Mayer: 

As requested, KSM Engineering & Testing performed a subsurface investigation at the 

above referenced site in order to estimate the High Season Water Table (HSWT) level 

on the site. The following table shows the encountered water level during the 

investigation, along with the estimated HSWT at the test location . The test location was 

at approximately the center of the lot. Please note that the water table was not 

encountered to 7 feet during the hand auger boring. 

Measured Water Estimated High
Location 

Table* Season Water Table" 

84"> 84"Center of Lot 

• Below Existing Grade 

This estimate is based upon our interpretation of existing site conditions and a review of 

the USDA Soil Survey for Brevard County, Florida. The majority of the site soils are 

mapped as Canaveral-Palm Beach-Urban Land Complex (25) according to the Soil 

Survey Map of Brevard County, Florida. 



25 Mailing 
P.O. Box 78-1377~:;:;~~;~~~ghway 1" ~'l 6 ENGINEERING 

Sebastian, FL 32978 

Phone: 772-589-0712~~~aa:~:n,FL. 3
2958 ft.'1.IVI ANO TESTING 

C.A. #5693
723 Progress Way 

KSMengineering.net
Sanford, FL 32771 

July 29, 2020
304 First Avenue -2-

Melbourne Beach, FL 

We are pleased to be of assistance to you on this phase of your project. When we may 

be of further service to you or should you have any questions, please feel free to 

contact us. 

JEK:jt 

E-mail to: mayercontract@gmail.com, erin.trauger@gmail.com 



26

studio 
ARCHITECTURE 

Mayer Residence 
304 First Avenue, Melbourne Beach, FL 32951 

Client Information: 
Cynthia Mayer 
813.920.5061 

Project Information: 
304 First A venue, Melbourne Beach, FL 32951 
Lot: West 20' of Lot 14, Lot 5, East 20' of Lot 16 

Architect: 
MelD Studio Architecture, LLC 
Lois Torvik, Architect 
1542 Guava Ave. Unit A 
Melbourne, FL 32935 
321.428.3869 

1542 GUAVA AVE., UNIT A,. MELBOURNE, FL 32935 321.428.3869 



27

ARCHITECTURE 

Project Narrative: 
The planned residence is two-story beach cottage. The 2,905 square foot residence features a wrap-around 
front porch. The second story was designed so that the bulk of the volume was buried in the first story 
roof. The stair serves as a tower element the West s ide. As a beach cottage, elements like lap siding, 
shingles, metal roof, and decorative exterior railings are in keeping with the aesthetics ofMelbourne 
Beach. The res idence includes a three-car garage, but two of the spots are stacked, therefore from the 
road, it g ives all appearances ofa two-car garage. 

General Lot Information: 
Area (in acreage): 

Area (in square feet): 

Set Back Lines: 
Front: 
Side: 
Rear: 

Zoning Classification: 

Lot Dimension: 

General Project Information: 

Proposed Use: 

Number of Stories: 

Garage Spaces: 

Max Building Height: 

Lot Dimension: 

Building Square Footage: 
Under Air: 
Unc011ditioned: 
Total Area: 

Building Lot Coverage: 
Add'! Pervious Coverage (Driveway/Walkway/Pool Deck): 
Percent Lot Coverage (Structure): 
Percent Pervious: 

1542 GUAVA AVE., UNIT A, . MELBOURNE, FL 32935 

0.34 

15,000 

25 ' -0" 
15 '-0" 
25 ' -0" 

3 R-S Residential 

150' X ]QQ' X }50' X 100' 

2-story residence 

2 stories 

3-car 

27'-9" 

150' x 100' x 150' x JOO' 

2,905 sq. ft. 
2,042 sq. ft. 
4,947 sq. ft. 

4,345 sq. ft. 
2,094 sq. ft. 
28.9% 
58% 

321.428.3869 



28

- . mt~ orlOT U, LUXK J 

4" ,( 'f 

L..,
~ ' ,.,.,,. 

\ 
W!I'I' r.f ~ to:' I\ ll£0 J--·- - -,C''1AJ.'OJ - ' I 

' I 
§ i:! 
<':~
~\., 
~ I~ 
:c:Lla 'it 
i..; ,5-: 

I 
' 

u,:t!.«::OJ I 
riiirff°w1r.a.ai'j -- - - - -

I •; ' 
~ I 

II _\'.j ' 
!f;J&fH 1!:alXJ' Is~ ' 

I I 
'.:lI • < ,_

I u - ~ 

(/) 
t; 

g ~ 

-\/ i!c-- ii: 
< • -
<>: 
t., . 

·-· 
, _ ••I 

--=====--==-.::===::::::::::::::===============~ =========~ 



I 

=

29N 
LOtt, l.Of10 l.OTII ,11.00I > 8l00<) '"-00\) w.,

"'f'A U[ 

,,.. 
,U 

_
J41r\ "l"Olill9a

•tr
,U
...

)lll" ,,....,r"tf0lll20tf~..,.AST 100.00' I .40.00' 60.00',... • sF-",..-ool.~ ~ ' ~ -=•o.oo·""CXOnM:1.../ ..oo !r-.!Tt-
" l.OtlS. GRAPHIC SCALE

lll.OOC) I~::
£1

!
l1 

! 
" 

-..:.;--i l I ~ ~ ~ ! ~
( D<Pl£T)1~ -"" 

1 inch - 20 !L 

I ,,.r-fi ,.Sl.lR'rE'ft)RS NOTES:~.. ~- I . EASDJEHTS NIO RtGHTS-OF-Wf'.Y Sl10WH HE.RUJH EXCEPT ASCAU.CO f'OR l1Y rHC Pl.AT ~y IHCUJOC mosc PROIIIOC.D TO 7H£
'M.Sl~Of ij ScnM:'rOR. THC St/RV'O"OR li-\S" MNJE NO StMCH or TH! PVBUC

LOT16, m IO EASt40'0fLOTt.., RCCORDS f"M SUCH,ii ,~ 
" i~'10

I~ .; -11.00<> I 8LOCl<l 2 . O NLY OPOJ AND HOtORK)VS cv,o~ or CASEMOfl'S .A.NO: FltUMEOFU>OA RtCHr-DF-WAY AR£ LOCA.m) NICJ 51«:JWH HERCOH. 1HE ~ 
'f\lO $~~wooo nwt 

9 EL•1S.4'NA,YD. (1988J HAS HOT LOCATt'O Nl'f UNOERCROUHD tmt.mCS OR f OUNOATJONS
IINCl,(,-Alll,'f'IIUCl()G WHICH ~y CHCR<MCH.

l0t rllltf 111'¥W.lr J . BQ.RIHCS HcR(ON AR£ RU£RRfD TO AN /1.SSlJM(D VALUE' OF
WEST rOR 1NE CDITCRtJH£ or nRST A!/ENUC.t~'i 

•• TYP£ OF SUR\O': fJOI.JN!MRY~1 ,.> .5. m,s PROPERrY tS LOCArrD IN FW£'RAI.. n.ooo l~ )(, MEAS
1HC 0,1X AHNWJ.. CJWK:C n OOD PVJNI SHOWN ON FlOOO tNSURAHC[ RMF MAP COMWNfTY NO, r15118 •I PANO. BOB ,SVFFIX C, E1nrrM DATE" MARCH 17, 20I •· 

1.,"'~ ~ I OIJUllJjNa) TO BE OUTS/0£ 

II ~ ..§li 
~ 

ts. US£ ONLY PROP£'RT'f CORNERS FOR CONSTRuCOOH OF F£NCCS AND
OTHER l'-'PROVE.UE/1/TS• 

I ..... ,
L-,1.r• 

..LEGEND: ~M!~11Q,1(1! 9 -A1rltfH4HO ~
PC • l'OHr OT~ 
fir 

,r,iA'l.o,{INO} • ""1lfT>I NIOttCN' \oEfflCAI. ~IW (11&1)ii 11 • "°""'or 1~ HAO,f•~J - N()ltrH ~ a-,w {IHJ) ~ It OfiQJ,r - l'O#ror~ MAA(1n 7' -~~ Oo.rt.a, t,U1J.l::1 i :5ts;~CUM11IW H.C.V~ ~ : ~o«ne KJrnrx 00/W ( fSff)
~ I P09 - ''"""--«-~ -··- - ~&.M'POC • l'OINJ-Of"~ -G l/7" l#ON ,tll:IO llrrHFtASnC~

~ou : ~~ao,; • -~~ .MOe" mi i -- ,, Ir"""""".,... gj = : ~MIIJ~CASOO'I' oT"""" *'\I _J -- 1itt • #Of 10 ~ 
· IAn,--u"":..WfHm,u.mcCN>

40.oo· • f'tt•~~ ~ 

+ 
I ~-'"~ 20~ :_ 50,00· _ _20...,..00~ -- - -•~•-~oo~·---~----- n"P 

■_ - ~ C -•'lo4,•~-..,.ptt~I • I 100.00' I. f~J : ~ • - !!..~Jf"OilM?m : ::-=o ~ :::,~Q&~J'::,.JIOl·irr
-f'DNIWDK COt1JIQ.f'Oltr Cl - ~~l"l!IO"OUSl.rsrtPf/al -~IDr,o,:E~ 4 • HM.•tllSl{PIIW)IOUSlY SUo -M.lll ♦ .. ,oootll'OC,C

lf, ~· =1:h
.:..- ! 1 First Avenue ,, ,! 1 :;:: -~ = ~~
--------,,,,,. _ - -- _ ~ _ --- _ 100,00 --- _ --- ..J,.___ _ 1~00· _77000(P)1,0.4T(W) _ _ --- _517WIOEl"UfllJC Ro,,,()JIIIGH'T-0F.:WA'r l!IOrCtMlro'ltl 'flEST(RErERENa:IICARINC) 

-·t ~~ 
l'O' 

====-•sn.cto ~ :::::A$PH,,,LTPAVEJ,EHT '"IC3U M1t•TOI" 0/f PW1. a OISIC
CL• t'l.14 NA'l,0. ( 191111) o •J' Stl.lN <.:> . ,.~.._.IMttf'ASSD«r

o..... UST ~R.8. • omcw. ~ itooll' M • ~ IP WI,,£
@ •UlfrJtlfrs&f}II~ @ • ~CA.IIL,6CCOS'
@ -SOIJIIOSM..OV, © 

Legal Description: (Per O.R. Book 6447. Page 687) 

The West 20 feet of Lot 14, all of Lot 15, and the East 20 feet of Lot
16, Block 3, WILCOX PLAT OF MELBOURNE BEACH, according toTHE CLIENT IS AOVlSEO THAT THE TERM -FINISH"' AS IT APPLIES TO FLOOR ELEVATIONS PERTAINS TO THE MAIN LIVING FLOOR OF THE the plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 1, Page 58, Public RecordsSTRUCTURE. AND 15 NOT INTENOEO TO BE CONSiRUEO AS THE GARAGE OR ANY OTHER SECONDARY FLOOR

"T\ilS MAP IS INTEN0E0 TO BE 0ISPLAYE0 •T • SCALE or 1·=20' OR SMALLER 
of Brevard County, Florida. 

,.,., WILLIAM MOTT I MtltOl"l'c:omf'Y n..T rHIS'WfM;'TW"5 Wt()( UHO(llt ltl'( 
~lllll~~=::nc SIONS, SCA.LC· I NCH • lO ,n:T

~BU CH,l,ROC. olri«)' IJcCTS· ote)Sl~OS Of • TIWC5l'Dll&t. ..0 ,-nm 1l'tS OOCUMDlf PROPOnY O NUl,l8£11 10764I LAND SURVEYING INC. l'1t.tCtU AS sa rol'lni tJT,,,,.£ .n~ B<W!O or .-o#I0 ~ _....., ,_._.,.11 WOA:I( 0fl0f1' HlN8(~9170ei1 

3159 ALZANTE CIRCt£. SUITE 103 ~~~~~~n:~ ~ci:i:~ 
SIQl,M,1\IUCAN tc ~Olol'!'Ht O.Uttll:llole 

.. 
ORA"ll'INC NALIE: 20-280.0WG'

.,. CUENT J,W,1£: W.YCR CQ,,ll'RACTifrrfC CO. 

472.027 Of" fflC F\OfNJil' SJM \11[5. . COt.4PUTEO &'f: JONA~ t.l, MOTTMEl..BOURNE, FLORIDA 32940 fHIS OOCU\olOfr H,o,S au,. OfGJTM..LY SIQloCO IHO Sl#rilO """"""" ~WN I'!': JQNATW,N l.l. '-'CJ'IT
11T: ·- ~- Cynthia A. Mayer , Trustee E. Q4(Q(ll)8'1': WI..VAI A..MOTTPHONE (321) 751-4-4-44 FAX (321) 751-44-45 Jonathan M Mci,rt"-:~.~~~~- S(.C, A TWP. 21 S '!:NC. Je (..

COPYRIGHT () 2019 WIL..1.Wr.l IAOTT LAND SURVEYING INC., AU. RICI-O'S RESERVED F'lELD SUR\1£'1 OAT[: "'"'b!J- 21 - 20 Mayer Contracting Co. . (=,=, ~•,oCR 2200280)I i 



30 GENERAL INFORMATION: CIVIL SITE GRADING NOTES: ~ "I z/L CONTRACTOR 10 ENSURE POSITIVE DRAINAGE P.AH1 TOSTORMWATER lREAl Mf.Nl AREA ~ 
:,CONTACT INFORMATtm, 

2. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINAT E. GRADING ALONG COMMON LOT LINE w1,H ADJI\Cflff NEtGHBORS TO E.NSURE 8
CONTINUED POSITIVE DRAIN.4.GE. CAR( TO BE TAKEN DURING GRAOING HrDRl S TO MA1NTAIN EXISTING DRAINAGE CML ENGINEER:OWNER 0PATHS OF ADJACENT NflGHBORS WHICH SH All NOT BE BLOCJ::E.0 'ffiAUGER CONSULl lNG ENGINEER~ IN(CYNTHIA MAYER 

304 flRSl A.VENUE ERIN TRAUGER, P.E i:l 
DRIVEWAY, SIDEWALK, POOL, PORCJ-4, RESIDENCl.ANO FH4CE DESIGN INCllJD!NG DE.TAtl.5 WITH SPEOHCAT10NS BY P.O. BOX 360253MELBOURNE BEACH. Fl 32951 

:r 0 OTHEflS EMAIL: MAYE.RCONTMCT@GMAILCOM MELBOURNE, Fl 12936 :e 
TEL. 321·6S2-S3l6 

fOOTPRINl PROVIDED BY ARCHITECT ANO BUILDER. DIMENSIONS ON GI\AO(NG PLAN FORilEfERENCL COtHRI\CTOR TO E-MAIL ERIN.TRAUGER@GMA.ILCOM ~ 
C) .: 

:,ENSURE CORRECT DIMENSIONS INCLlJDED PRIO~ TO CONSTRUCTION. 

SURVEVOR: ARCl!ll(CT 0PROVjO[ STAIRS PER ARCHfl(CTURAL PlANS ANO CURR~Nl FLORIDA BUILDING CODE RE:QU IREMENTS. ElEVAflON Mf.LO sfub10 ARCHITECT UR[, l lC.. _. . !f',:;- WiCT"iAM"'Mon LANO SURVEYING, INC. z 
. CHI'- ·- Olf'lf -

0) 
31S9 ALZANTE CIRCU. STl 103 LOIS TORVII:., AIA. LEED AP ;:PROVIDEDAl BOTTOM mSiA!RS 8ASEO ON INFORMAllON PROV1DE:O. ELEVATION fO 8£ CONFIRMED BY ARCH)TECT ANO 

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER PR10Rl0 CONSTfl.UC110N AN MATERIAL OROtR i ~2 GUAVA AVEMELBOURNE, FL 32940 I::=== .. ,If-, - ... TEL;32 l•15l-~4tt MELBOURNE, Fl 32935' 
MATCH EX PROVIDE DRAINAG( COLLECTIONSWAU WITH POSITIV[ 0 1SCl~AFtG£ TO RtGHT or WA'{, NO POINT SHAU BE HJGHER THA14 TEL. 321-428-3869 

EL 140 TOP OF BANK ElfVATION BETWEEN TOP OF BANK ,AND RIGHT OF Wt>Y SWALE. EMAIL: lO\S@ME LDARCH.COM 
MATCH EX. 

4S ' :e 
;§ ,3LEGAL DESCRIPTION: (Per O.R. Book 6447, Page 687) .. 

The West 20 feet of Lot 14 , all of Lot 15, and the East 20 feet of Lot 16, Block 3, 
WILCOX PLAT OF MELBOURNE BEACH, accord ing lo the plat thereof as( 

~ 

recorded in Plat Book 1, Page 58, Public Records of Brevard County, Florida. ~ -
f• ,:J ~ 

~.'- . -~ DRAINAGE CALCULATIONS: & 
<I...,~,.~::,,'.. _...,, 

.....,. ,•u , •:.... "I
/

ATCH EX. 
TOTAL LOT A.REA'. l S.0005.F EL 145' 
REQUIREDTREATMENT VOlUME· 
A ,Rl/4\fVlt fln ObtJMtfa& JVt.A i r1t 1.0i AAtA !U ot ;:t..,UV1btu. 
TREATMENT VOLUME R£QUlR£0"' 81NCH/12FT X 15,0005 ~ ,._ 10,000CU n. 

6' PROVtOED TREATMENT VOLUME: 
SfASON HIGti WAlER TABLE (SHWT) OETERMJNEO 10aE A MINIMUM OF 1:1.i aEtOY.. GROUND StJRFACE. 
CA.NAVERAL ·PALM BEACH· UR8AN LANDCOMPLEX OEURMINE.0 TO 8[ SOILS TYPE PER SOILS REPORTPRO\'IOEO OY ~SM 
ENGINEEfl,ING ANO TESTING REPORT DATEO JULY 29, 2020. 

TREATMENT VOLUME: PR0\110£0 "'2.534 cu.n OfSWAU VOLUM[ • 7.844 CU.FT. OF SOILSSTORAGE ...J0,3n CU.FT. 

SWALE TREATMENT VOLUME PROVIDED ~l.-l61 CU FT. IN NORTH SWAt[ AT l ' DEPTH 
:r.201 CU. fl. IN SOUWEAST SWALE ATl' DEPTH 
::872 CU. FT. IN SOUTHWEST SWALE Al 1' DEPTH 

2,534 CU.FT. SWALE STORAGE 

SOIL STORAGE VOLUME PROVIDED "AR£A. SOILS X DEPTH S01LSX POROSITY OF SAND 
= (1220 5-.F.• 3~5 S.F, •1170 S.FJ X 7' BITWE.EN GROUND AND SHWT X 0.3 SURVEYORS N01FS: 
7,844 CU.FLSOILS STORAGE 

I. £AS£44£NTS NID RIGl-fT'S-OF- WAY SHOWN HCREON D<CEPT AS a 

001.£D fOR l1'f THC Pt.AT ONLY /NCWO( THOS£ PROVIDED TO THC 
SURVC'Y'OR. THC SURVO'OR HAS WJJC NO SEARCH or TH£ PUBLIC ~ 

RCCORDS FOR SUCH. ' 
2 . ONLY OP£N N/0 NOTORIOUS CVIOfNCE OF 0.SEMENTS ANO 

RKiHT-OF-WAY ARE LOCATED NID SHOWN HUftON, TH( SURVO'OR GENERAL NOTES: 
HAS NOT LOCATED Nl'f IJNDE:RCROUND l/11UTltS OR FOUND,I.T/OflS 
'WHICH .W.Y FHCRQACH. 

J. 8£/IRINGS HERCON ARE R£FERR£.D TO ~ A.SSUMCD VA.LUC OF 
WEST FOR TH£ CCNT£RLJNE OF Ftf?ST AVcNU£. 1 CONTMCTOR SHALLBECOME FAMlltARAND COMPtVWfTh All PERMITS AND P£RMITCON01TIONS. CONTflJ..(TOR SHAU 

OBTAIN PERMISS!ON FROM All NECESSARY PERMIT AGENCIES PRIOR TO COMMENCINGSITE WORK. 
2.. All AREAS DISTURBED OFF-Silt: SH,6,Ll BE RESTORED TO EQUAL OR 8HT£R CONDITION THAN FRE-CONSTRUCTION. 
3 SLOPE All SIDEWALKS TO FlOW AWAY FROM 8U!LO!NG WITHMAA,IMUM 2% CROSS Sl0f)f ,5. ™5 PROPERTY IS LOCA1£D JN FtDf1W. FlOOO ZONC X, /t.Rf",,AS

125.CX DCTERMJNCD ro BE CXITSIOE me. 0.2% ANNUAL CJWiCC fl.DOD PUJN 4. PROVIDE CONSTANnLOPE SElWEEN All SPOT ELEVAnONS. wm (RE7tJO SHOWN ON FW00 INSURANCC RAT£ MAP COIJUIJNrrY NO. 12512B, 5. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE Sill FENCE A.ROUND PROJECT A.REA AS REQUIRED BY fOE P ANO BREI/ARD (01.INTY 
PANfJ.. 608 ,SUFTIX G, EF1EC1TVE tMTc JMRCH 17, 20 14, 6 All WASlE S4All 8E DISPOSED OF mF•SfTE tN A SAfE AND LE.GAL Mo\NNER UNL(SS OWNER SPEOF-ICALlY REQUESTS 

·m OO'c•> 770.iroo z 
OTHERWISLMATCH EX <(7, Atl SLOPES tH:lV OR STEEPER SHA ll BE SODDED. Al l SlOPES STEEPER TIIEN 3H:lVSHAU. BE SODDED ANO ST;.1(£0. __JL. l .50' 6. US[ ONLY PROPOffY CORN!.RS FUR CONSTRUC110N or r£NC£S AH() 8. CONTRACTOR SHAlL BE RESPONSIBLE fOR ANY DAMAGE TO PUBLIC ROADWAYS, EASEMENTS CURSS, SIDEWALKS,

OTHER JIIPROVOIOflS. 0....ORA.IN AGE S'l'SlE.M, BENCHMARKS. OR UTILITIES AS A DIRECT R.ESULTOF CONSTRUCTION. CONTRACTOR SH.All BE 
RESPONSIBLE FOR HAVING All BOONDARY C.ORNERS -\ND BENCHMARKS DlSTURBEO Oft DESTROYED DURING w
CONSTRUCTION REPLACED BY f,,. r:tORIOA LICENSED LANO SURI/EYOI\. 

9. EXCEPT Al DOORWAYS, FINISHED GRADE ADJACENTTO HOUSE SHALL SE 6" BELOW FtNISi.tEO FLOOR UNLESS IDENTIFIED __J f...9~~ADING AN D DRAINAGE PLAN@ OTHERWISE BY ARCltrTECT/~OME BUllOER OR ON GRADING PLAN ALL LOT GRADING SHt>.ll COMPLY WITH APPllCASLE LL <( 
fLOfUOA SUtlOING CODES. 

10. THIS PLAN HAS 8EEN PREPARED Wilt-! A BASE SURVEY, FOOTPRJNT A.ND LAYOUT PROV!O(O BY MELDARCHITECTS. OVIL z 
ENGINEER DOES NOTWARRANT THE ACCURACYOF THE RECORO SURVD' NOR HAVE THEY COMPlfTEDTHE DESIGN FOR THE :r: 

<(
SITE l,.AYOUT. WUJ u 

11 SEE ARCHITECTURAl/HOME BUILDfR DRAWINGS FOR 8U1LOING DIMENSIONS ANO LAYOUT, SEE PLUMBING, MECHANICAL. <( 0:::U ::::>
ELECTRICAL 4ND LANDSCAPING DRAWINGS FOR UTILITY CONNECTION lOCA110NS, HEATING/AC. ELECTRICAl AND 0 
LANDSCAPING INFORMATION. Zz a) 

w 
12 SWPPP 15 NOT INCLUDED. 0\/IL [.NGlNEER fS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR THE DESIGN OF EROSIONANO SEDIMENTCONTROLS W w 0 

OR OTl"IER POLLUTION PREVENTION PIV-CTIC(S ~ORTHl5 PROJECT 0> w z13. CLEARING SPECIFICATIONS, UTIL IT'l' DESIGN, PAVING AND OTHUI sm MATERIALS AND SPE.Cll="ICATIONS AR[ NOT INCLUDED. 
CML ENGINEER NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR THE DESIGN SPECIFICATIONS RELATED TO THESE ITEMS. CONTRACTOR TOCONSULT (./1 <( z <( 
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER ;>f!.IORTO CONSTRUCTION TO ENSURE SOILS AS ANTICIPATE DFOA. 0::S1GN w I-- 0::: 

1~ BOUNDARY, TOPOGRAPHIC ANO EXISTING INF"ORMATION INDICATED ON THESE DRAWINGS ARE PER FIELD Ot..TA SUPPLIED 0::: V) :::i f...9 
BY WILLIAM MOTT LANOSURV[YING, INC IT 1S SOULVlHE CONTRA.CTOR'S RESPONS!Slltl'Y TO VERIFI' THEIN~ORMATION zANO PROTECT SAM£ FROM DAMAGE DURING THE CONSTRUCTtON PHASE DAMAGE TO 0:1STING UTIUT1£S SHALL SE 0::: 0::: 0 
REPAIRED TO THE OWNER'S SATISfACTION AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE. UJ ~ a) 0

15. lHIS IS ASPECm C PURPOSE DRAWING SET, FOR THE PE.RMITTING ANO THE CONSTRUCTION OF A STORMWATER 
TREATMENT AREA Tl·IE ENGINEER CEfl:TIFIES TtiESE DRAWINGS ONLY fOR THECONSTRUCTION OF Tl-(A.J INF"QRMAT10N AND >- tj- __J <( 
NO OTHER PERMITTING ANO CON51 I\UCTION USES, 0:::<( 0 w 

16 CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY All DIM[NSIONS AND SETBACKS PRIOR TO STARTING CONSTRUCTION, 2m 2 f...9 

, It. ADJACENT PFIOPERTY 
, It_ ADJACENT PROPERTY 6

CRE£NEO 337' ·~:....~ ·- ~_..t~·-
El 12.35 ... . ~··.....:.. ',~..... . .... .,, 

OOL AREA 

L 13.3 
~ 

DATE: 8-9-20 

SECTION: 8SEE STRUCTURALAND
SH STRUCTURAL AND ARCH!TECTURA.l DR,\WOffiS TOWNSHIP: 285SH STRVCT\JRAL AND ARCHlflCTURAl DRAWINGS fOR DfTA!lS ANO SP(CIFICTIONS' 

ARCHIT(CTURAL DRAWINGS FOR DE.TAILS AND S!>EC1FtCTIONS 38E
FOR OETAlL5ANDSPEC!FICTfONS' 

1"=20' 

SWALE BOTTOM H 1! 0 

SECTION SECTION C-1SECTION 10· O' w· ,o· 
NTS NTS PROJECT: 20-128 

NTS 
p ■----J----J---~---· 

https://CORN!.RS
https://BITWE.EN
mailto:lO\S@MELDARCH.COM
mailto:ERIN.TRAUGER@GMA.ILCOM
mailto:MAYE.RCONTMCT@GMAILCOM
https://DRAIN.4.GE
https://lREAlMf.Nl


---

---

31

CUSTOM HOME FOR: 

CYNTHIA MAYER 
304 FIRST AVE., MELBOURNE BEACH, FL 32951 

SOUTH ELEVATION 

PROJECT SUMMARY 

PF!OJ ECT NAME MAYER RESID!:NCE 

PROJECT ADDRESS 50l. F IRST b.VEM.IE 
MELBOURNE BEACH, FL .$2951 

CONTRACTOR CA.RLO MAYER, MAYER CONTRACTING 

SCOPE OF WO?.'t<. NEW CONSTRUCTION OF A TWO STORY, S1NGLE 
FAMIL Y HOME 

PRO.POSED USE S INGLE FAMIL V RESIDENTIAL 

BlJILDtNG TYPE 

ZONING CLASSIFICATION. ~S • REStDEMT IAl 

AP?LICA9lE CODES 
FLORIDA BUILDING COO!:. 2017 FLORIDA BLJll OING CODE 
MECHANICAL COOE 2017 FBC MECHANICAL 
Pl..UMBING CODE 2017 FBC PLUMBING 
ELECTRICAL CODE NEC 201!. 
FIRE CODE f LORIDA FIRE PREVENTION CODE, 6Tt1 

EDIT1DN 
NFPA •ro1 LIFE SAFETY, 2016 EDITION 

AUTHo;:;inv / JURISD ICTION TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, FL 

SCHEDULE OF DRAWINGS 

5µeer DESCRIPTION 

AO.I COVER SHEET 
Cl.0 C1>/IL SITE PLA.N 
A0.2 ARCHITECTURAL SITE PL.AN 
AO. 3 LANDSCAPE PLAN 
ALO FIRST FLOOR PLAN 
ALI SECOND FLOOR ?LA.N 
A2.0 NORTH AMO SOUTH ELEVATIONS 
AZ.I EAST ANO WESi ELEVATIONS 
A.5 O 9UILDING SECn ONS 
AJ I WALL SECTIONS ANO DETAILS 
Al.. 0 WINDOW SCHEDULE ANO 0ETA1LS 
Al. I ODOR SCHEDULE ANO OETAILS 
A5.0 ROOF PLti.N ANO CETA!LS 
A6.0 FIRST FLOOR REFLECTED CEILING PLAN 
Ab.I SECOND FLOOR REFLECTED CEIUNG PLAN 
El 0 FIRST FLOOR ELECTRICAL PLAN 
El.I SECOJ-..'D FLOOR ELECTRICAL PLAN, ELECTRlCAL OEMAr--D CALCULATIONS. ELECTRICAL 

RtSER ANO PLUMBING RISER 
SI STRUCTURAL NOTES 
S2 FOU/\.'{)ATION ?LAN AND DETAIL$; 
S3 SECOND FLOOR FRAMING PLAN AND OE:Tti,!L!:i 
St.. ROOF FRAMING PLAN ANO DETAILS 
S5 DETAILS 
S6 OE TAILS 

GENERAL NOTES 

OWNER/CLIENT RESPOt-.SIBILITIES REFERENCE IS MADE THROUGHOUT THESE GENERAL 
NOTES TO RESPONStB!LITIES ANO ST.6.N)ARDS OF CASE TO BE FULFILLED BY THOSE 
PROVIDING SERVICES IN THE CEVELC?HENT AND CONSTRUCTION OF THIS PROJECT. 
OWNER/ CLI ENT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ADHERENCE TO THOSE REQUIREMENTS 8 '1' 
THE OWNER, BUILDER, GENERAL CONTRACTOR, SUBCONTRACTOR$ All.IQ OTHER 
PROFESSIONAL CONSULTANTS NOT REU,\NED BY THE ARCHITECT 

2 PERMIT ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS THIS SET IS SUFFICIENT TO BE PART Of THE PERMIT 
SET TO OBTAIN A BUILDING ?ERMIT. THIS SET DOES NOT INCLUDE THE REOUIREO SHOP 
DRAWINGS/NOA REOUJRCO FOR PERMITTING. THE CONTRACTOR SHOULD CHECK WITH TKE 
OWNER TO DETERMINE THE SCCPE OF VIORK CF THE AROllTECT. THE GENERAL 
CONTRACTOR IS RESPONS!BLE FOR OBTAIN Tl-'E BU1LOING PERMIT. 

~ BUILDING MAINTENAt,,CE THE EXPOSED MATERIAL USED IN THE CONSTRUCTION OF THIS 
PROJECT WILL DETERIORATE AS Tl-IE COMPLETED PROJECT AGES UNLESS PROPERLY AND 
ROUTINELY HA1NTAINED, OWNER/ CLIENT ~fJALL VIORX. WITH THE CONTRACTOR TO 
OEI/ELOP A PLAN TO KEEP THESE EXPOSED MATERIALS PROTECTED AND MAINTAINED 

I.. ALL CONSTRUCTION SHALL COl-'.PLY WITH iHE MOST STRINGENT REQUIREMENTS OF ALL 
CURRENT A.P?!,JCABLE CITY, COUNTY. STATE, A/'IO FEDERAL LAVI~. RULES, CODES. 
OROINANCES At() REGULA TIONS IF THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR OR ANY SUBCONTRACTOR 
PERFORMS AN'1' WORK IN CONFLICT WITJ.I THE ABO\ E MENTIONED LAWS. RULES. CODES, 
ORDINANCES ANO REGULATIONS, THEN THE CONTRACTOR 15 IN VIOLATION AND SHALL 
BEAR ALL COST OF REPAIR ARJ51NG OUT o~ THE NON•CONFORMING WORK. 

5 THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR MUST THOROUGHLY EXAMINE THE JOB SITE AND FINAL 
CONSTRUCTION CRAW1NGS PRIOR TO STARTING CONSTRUCTION. If ANY CONFL ICTS ARISE, 
THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR MUST NOTIFY THE ARCHITECT AND ALLOW FOR SUFFICtENt 
TIHE FOR RESOLUTION WITHOUT DELliYING WORK. 

6. SUBSTITUTIONS /CHANGES NO SUBSTITUTIONS/CHANGES CAN SE MADE WITHOLJT WRITTEN 
AUTHO~IZAT!ON BY THE OWNER/CLIENT THE ARCHITECT COES NOT TME 4NY LIA.EILITY 
FOR ANY SUSSTITUTIONSI CI-IANGES WITHOUT THE ARCHITECTS WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION 
ANY APPROVA,L REQUIRED BY THE BUILDING OFFICIAL FOR SUBSTITUTIONS/ CHANGES 
~HALL BE TI,E REZPON$181LITY OF THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR. 

7 DO NOT SCALE FROM PL4NS PLEASE CLLL THE ARCHITECT IF YOU REQUIRE ANY 
DIMENSIONS 

AREA CALCULATIONS 

CONDITIONED :-PACE 

1ST FL CONDITIONED SPACE 2,2B0 so. FT 

2ND FL COND ITIONED S?ACE 625 SO. FT. 

TOTAL AREA 2,905 so "· 
UNCONDIT IONED SPACE 

1ST FL UNCONDITIONED SPACE 982 SO. FT 

2ND FL UNCONOITIO~ED SPACE 125 so. FT 

so. F T. 

TOTAL AREA Z,0l.2 

GARAGE 935 
s.a. FT. 

TOTAL CONOITIONEO SPACE 2,905 so. FT. 
TOTAL UNCONDI TIONED SPACE 2,0t.2 so. FT. 

TOTAL ~OUARE FOOTA.GE SO. FT.~ 

LDT COVERAGE CALCULATI O NS 

LOT DIMENSION 150.00 X 100.00· X 150.00' X 100.00' 

LOT SIZE !5.000 so n . 

BUILDING LOT COVERAGE l,3l.5 SO. FT 

so FT.ADD'L PERVIOUS COVERAGE 2,09!. 

TOTAL LOT COVERAGE £8 9% 

TOTAL ?ERVIOUS LOT ARE.A.. 58% 

B U ILD I NG INFORMATION 

GARti..GE SPACES 3 CAR 

SET aACK LINES 

FRONT 25' •0" 
SIDE· IS' •O" 

REAR 25 -0 

NUMBER OF STORIES. 

MAX HEIGHT OF STRUCTURE 28' --0"' (El . l.l ,6l. ') 

CROWN OF THE ROAD EL . !Z,IL 

LOCATI O N MAP 

PROJECT T EAM 

CONTRACTOR MA YER CONTRA(TING CO. 
CA.FILO Mt.YER 

ARCHITECT MELD STUCIO ARCMFTECTURE. LLC 
LOIS TORI/IK. ARC,,ITECT ISt.2 
GUAVA A IE UNIT A MEI.BOURNE. 
FL 329JS 
321· l.28-~869 

STRUCil.'R,::r,L 
ENGINEER 

~ 
studio 
ARCHITECTURE 

1 5 • 1 0 II II Y • I. V l • 
"'E L IIOlJ ,UIE P" l l1tl~ 
l l I_ 4 1 t, 1 at I 
lll>O~a ... , 1c1111~.c,1 r<;t,,l~lli.,,U .,, 

JOB If· R-2020-004 

DRAWN LAT 

CHECKED· JB 

DATE 
oso 

o oo 

■P&ZSubrnrttal~ 

□PERMIT 

□co 

REV1SfDNS 

8 

T"" 

lO 
O> 

C").E 
'- N 

IDu '- . _j
Q) Q) LL 

C >. > 
ID ro <( ..c 
~~ en u 
C/l ._ ro 
ID ro ·- ID 

0::: i: LL CO 
E c ~ ID 
0 >. C") C- (.) '-(/l ::J 
::J 0 

(.) .0 
Q) 

~ 

08 1121) 

SHEET TITLE 

COVER 
SHEET 

SHEET NUMBER 

A0.1 

https://FOOTA.GE
https://COl-'.PL


32
CIVIL SITE GRADING NOTES: GENERAL IN FORMATION: 

CONTRACTOR TO ENSURE POSITIVE DR.AINAGE PATH TO STORMWATER TR,EATMENTARfA r "'I 

lOTH 
£'.OCK , 

,. CONTRACTORTO COORDINATE GRAOl/l;G A.LONG COMMON LOT LINE WflH ADJACENT NEIGHBORS TO ENSURE 
CONTINUED POSITIVE DRAINAGE. CAREro BE T/\t;fN DURING G.RAOING EFFORTS TO M.&.INTA!N f X!STING DRAINAGE 
PATHS OF ADJAC ENT NEKiHSORS WHICH SHA.tl NOfBE BlOC.:.EO. 

DR1VEWAY, $j0{WAlK. POOL PORCH, RESIDENCE AND FENCE DESIGN lNCI..UDING 0€iAtl5 WITH SPECIS:OTJONS avC) OTHERS. 

FOOrPfUNT PROVIDED BV ARCHITECTAND BUILDER. DIM ENSIONS ON GRADING PLAN roR REHREWCE CONfAACTOR TO 0 ENSURt CORRECT DIMENSJONS INCLLlDED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION, 

CONTACT INFORMA'TlON 

OWNER OVILENGINEER: 
Evm'RTA MAVER TAAUGER CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC. 
304 FI RST AVENUE ER1NTRAUGEI\ P.E. 
MELSOURN[ BEACH, Fl 329$1 P,O, 80)(360253 
LVIA IL: MAVERCONTRACT@GMAIL.COt-.-1 MELSOURNF: Fl 32936 

'TEL: 32l--6SUi3I6 
E-MAIL: ERI_N.TAAVGER.@GMAIL.COM 

40.00' 
MATCH£):. 

L 14,0 

40.00' 

f'R.OVIOf STAIRS PER ARCHITECTlJRAL PlANS AND CURRENT FLORIO.A BUILDING CODE REQUIREMENTS. (L€VAltON0 PROVtDEOAf BOTTOM Of STAIRS M.SED ON INFORMATION PROVIDED. ELEVAllON TO BE CONf lRMEO B't' ARCH ITECT AND 
STRUCTURAL ENGIN [ER PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION AN MArERIAL ORDER,. 

FA;OVIDE DIWNAGE COLLECTI ON SWALE WITH PO.StTIV[ DISCHARGE TO RIGHT m WA'(, NO POINT SH.All BE k 1GHfRTHAN 
TOf> OF BAN~ ElfVATION BITWE:N TOP OF BAN KAND RIGHT OfWA.Y SWo\tE. 

SURVfYOR: ARCHITECT; 
~ OTTLAND SU~VEVING, INC ~ 10 ARCHITECTU~E, LLC 
HS9AllANTE QRCLE, STI 10 3 LOIS lOiMK. AIA.. LEED AP 
MHSOURNE. ~l 329-10 15d2 GUAVA AVE. 
TH: 321-751-4444 MElBOURNE ~ 32935 

lEL: 321-428-3969 
O,,tt,tL; LOIS@MELDARQ1.COM

'" 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION : (Per O.R. Book 6447, Page 687) 

The West 20 feet of Lot 14, all of Lot 15, and the East 20 feet of Lot 16, Block 3, 
WILCOX PlAT OF MELBOURNE BEACH, according to the plat thereof as 
recorded in Plat Book 1, Page 58, Publ ic Records of Brevard County, Florida. 

.... 

~ 

Wl<if~ --¥ 
LOT 15 
l!I.CQI'~ DRAINAGE CALCULATIONS: 

TOTAL LOTAREA: 15,000 S.F. 

REQUIRED TREATME NT 1/0lUME: 
AIMAIMHJI VULOMt_ mo UVbR I Ac ldl ARd( 10 a~ Pi\JVID1:0. 
TR EATMENTVOLUME REQUIRED"' 81NCH/ J2f'.T X 15,000 S.F. ,. 10,000 CU.FT. 

PROVIDED TREATMENT IJOLUM£; 
5t.As6N HIGHwAT1:ATABLE{SAWI) mIEKM1NEb TOBE AM1N1MuM OF 84' BhbW GAbuNbSORFAd. 
CANAVERAL-PALM 9EACH- URBAN lJi.ND COMPLEX DETERM INED TO BE SOILS TVPE PER SOilS REPORT PROVIDED B'r' KSM 
i:NG!NEE.RINGAND TESTING REPORT DAl(D JULY 29, 2020. 

TftEATME.NT VOLUMEPROVIDED =- 2,324 CUH OF SWALE 1/0llJME • 7,844 CU.FT. OF SOILS STORAGE= 10,168 CU.FT 
SWALE TREATMENf VOLUME PROVIDED s.l,J41 CU, FT. IN NORfH SWAl E AT l DEPTH 

•l83CU.Fl tN NORTHEAS'T S\NAlE AT l OEPlH 
..aoo cuRn- IN NO,!lHWEST SWALE AT l ' DEPTH 

1.32" Cu.FT SWALE STORAGE 

SURVITORS NOTFS: 
1. EASEMENTS ANO RIGHTS-OF- WAY SHOWN HDf£0N EXCEPT AS 

CAU.ED FOR BY THE PL.Ar ONLY INCLUO£ nKJSE PROYIOED TO THE 
SUR'vD'OR. mE SURVE:YOR HAS IMO£ NO SEARCH OF THE PUBUC 
R€COROS FOR SUCH 

SOIL STORAGE VOLUME PROVIDED : AREA S01LS X DEPTH SOILS XPOROSITY OF SAND 
c f2220 S.F ... 345 S.Fc • 1170 S_F_) X 7 BETWE£N GROUND AND SHWT X 0,3 
7,844 CU,H SOILS STORAGE' 

~ 

~ ~ADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN* 
2 

2 . ONLY OPEN AND NOTORIOUS EVIDENC~ OF EASEJ,i£NJ'.S /IND 
RIGHT-OF-WAY AR£ LOCH'f.D ANO SHOWN H£RfON. THE SUR\O'OR 
~ N0r l0OU[O N'l'I UNDERGROUND vnunB OR F'OUNDAnONS 
WHICH W.Y CNCROACH. 

.l. 8£ARINCS Hffi.£0N ARE RDTRRW r0 AN ASSUMED VALUE" OF 
BEAR/NC,,,,,, 

f. rrP£ Of SUMY.· rYPE" 

5. THIS PROPERTY ,S, L~1£D fN F£DDW.. Fl.000 ZONE X, AREAS 
0£TERMINED TO E£ OU1SIOC THE O.ZX AHHWJ.. CtWIC£ FlOOO PUJN 
SHOWN ON FLOOD fNSIHWICE RAT£ IJAP COUl,fUHfTY HO. COMMUJ. 
PANEL 0000 ,SVF'FTX G. EFrfC1M (M.Tl' IMRCH 11, 201-f, 

6. USE ONLY PROPllm' CORNtRS FOR COHSTRUCOON OF FFNCCS ANO 
OTH£R IMPROvEMENTS. 

GENERAL NOTES: 
, 

1. CONTRACTOR SHALL BECOME FAMILIAR AND COMPLY Willi ALL PERMITS ANO P~MJTCONO!TIONS. CONTRACTOR SHALL 
OBTAIN PERMISSION FROM ALL NECESSARYPERMIT AGENCIES PRIOR TOCOMMENCING S,l[ WQR(, 

2. All .\REAS DISTURBEOOFF·SITE SHALl BE RESTORED 10 EQUAL OR BETTER CONOIT10N THAN PRE-CONSTRUCTION. 
3. SLOPE All Sl()tWAU:S TO FLOW AWAY FROM 8UtLDtNGWITH M.A.X!MUM '2% CROSS St.OPE. 
4 P~0Vl 0[ CONSTAf'IT SLOPEBE1WEENAt.L SPOT El(VATIONS. 
5 CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDESILT FtNCE AROUND PROJECT ARE/I, AS REQUIRED BY FDE'PANO BR[Vl\f\D COUNTV 
6 . ALL W4.STE SH4.Ll8E O!SPOSEOOFOF F-SITE IN A SAFEAND LEGALMANNER UNLESS OWN ER SP(Clf lCALLY REQIJlSTS 

OTHERWlS€. 
7. All SLOPES 4H:1VOR STfE?ER SHAU BE SODDED. ALL SLOPES STEEPERTHEN 3H:1V SHALL BE SODDED ANO STAKED. 
8, CONTAACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FORAN'r 0/tWIAGE TO PUBLIC ROADWAYS, EASEMENTS, CURSS, SIDEWALKS 

DRAINAGE SYSTEM. BENCHMARKS, OR UllllTIES/1S ADIRECT RE'SUtTCf CONSTRUCTION. CONTRACTOR SHA LL BE 
RESPONSIBLEFOR H.AVING All BOUNDARY CORNERS AND BE:NCH~ARKS DlSTUI\BEDOR O(STROYED DURING 
CONSTRUCTION REPlACfO BY A FLORIDA UCE:-.JSED LANO SURVEYOR. 

9. EXCEPT AT OOORWAVS. FINIS~DGRADE ADJACENT TO tiOUSf SHAll SE 6" BELOW flN!SHEO FLOOR UNLESS IDENTIFIED 
OTHERWISE BY ARCHITECT/liOME BUI LOER OR ON Gf.'4.0\NG PLAN, All LOT GRADING SHAll COMPLY WITH APPltCABLE 
FLORIDA BUILOJ NG CODES. 

10. THIS PLAN Hl\5 BEEN PREPARED WITH A BA'St SURVEY, FOOT PRINT ANOLAYOUT PROV1Dt:D BY MELD ARCHITECTS. OVIL 
ENGINEER DOES NOT WARRANT'THE ACCUAACYOF Tl1E RECORD SURV£V NOR HAVE Tl-1EY COMPLETED THE DESIGN FOR THE 
SITE LAYOUT. 

11. SEE ARCHITECfURAl/HDME BUlt D[ ~ DRAWINGS fOR, 8UlLDlNG DlMENS!ONS ANOLAYOUT, SEE PLUM 8!~G. MECHANICAL 
ElECTRIC~LANO lANOSCAPING OR.A WJNGS FOR UTILITY CONNECTION LOCATIONS HE.A JING/AC, ELECTRICAL ANO 
LANDSCAPING INFORMATION. 

12. SWPPP IS NOT INCLUDED. CIVIL ENGINEER IS NOT RESPONS1BlE FOR THE DESIGN or EROSIONANO SEDIMENT CONTROLS 
OR OTHER ~LLUTION PRfVENT~N PRACTICES fOR THIS PROJECT 

13. CLEARING SPECIFICATIONS, UTILITY DESIGN, PAVING AND OTliEfl. SI TE MA.HRIAlSAND SPECtFJCATtONSARE NOT INCLUDED, 
CIVIL ENGINE.ER NOT RESPONSIBLE fOR THE DESIGN SPEClf!CATIONS RELATED TO THESE ITEMS. CONTRAClOR TO CONSULT 
GtOTECHNICALENGINEfR PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION TO ENSURE SOILS A.S l'NTICJPATEO FOR DESIGN. 

14. BOUNOAR'i', TOPOGRAPHIC AND EXISTING INFORMATION INOJCATED ON THESE DAAWINGS ARE PER FIELD DATA SUPPLIED 
6V WILLtAM MOTT tAND SURVEVl NG, INC. ll IS SOLED' THE CONTAACTOl\'S RESPONSIB1LITYTOVERlfY THE INFORMATION 
ANO f>ROTECTSAME FROM DAMAGE OUPIN"G THE CONSTIHJCTION PHASE. DAMAGE' TO EXISTING UTIUTIE.S SHAU BE 
RE.PA IRED TO THE OWNER'S SATISFACTION ATT,iE CONTRACTOR'S EXP ENSE 

15. THIS IS A SPECl~IC PURPOSE DRAWING SET, FOR WE PERMITTI NG 4. ND TH£ CONSTRUCTION OF ASTORMWATER 
TREATMENT AREA TH E ENGINEERCERTtflES THESE DRAWINGSONLY FOR Tl1E CONSTRUCTION Of THAT INFORMATION tiND 
NO OTHER PERMITTING ANO CONSTRUCTION USfS. 

'- 16. CONTRACTOR SHALL VER!F'i' All DI MENSIONSANO SETBACKS PR!OR To STARTING CONSTRUCTION. 

' 

_J 

LL 

:r: 
LU LU u 
u :::, <( 
Zz LU 
LUw co 
0> L1J 
vi<( z 
LU I- a: 
a: V) :::, 
a: a: 0 
LU LL co 

_J>-<( s::t L1J 

~~~ 

z 
<( 
_J 

0.. 

LU 
l9 
<( 
z 
<(
a: 
0 
0 
z 
<( 

l9 
z 
0 
<(
a: 
l9 

IS 
LS' 

C•EENED "f.. ADJ ACENT PROPERTY ,,, · v••••a ~ .. ~; ~ ,.,, 
OOL A8EA 

~ 
l 13,3 El. 12.35 

---
~ 

.....,9d'"' . • -••..:,,__,. ___ 
.. -.....--.......... .,___, 

DATE: 8-9-20 

SEE STRUCTURAL AND 
ARCHIHCTIJAAL DRAWINGS 
FOR OfTAILSANOSPEClFICflONS' 

SEE STRUCTURAL AND 
AflCHITECTURAl DRAWINGS 

FOR OfTAKSAND SPEOflCTIONS 

SH STRUCTURAL AND 
ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS 

FOR DETAllS ANO SP(CIFtCTIONS 

SECTION: 

TOWNSHIP: 

8 

285 

RANGE: 38E 

SWALE BOTTOM El. 11.0 SECTION 
NTS SECTION SECTION 

20 O' ,o 40 
NTS NTS PROJ ECT: 20-128---- C-1 



33

cl) 
,;--;(________________________________ studio 

ARCHITECTURE 

/ / 

/ 

\ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

J08 I R~2020-004 

DRAWN. LAT 

CHECK.EC. JB 

o so 
DATE 

28'- 6" 

O DO 

■ P&Z Submrttal __-

□ PERM IT ~ 

DRIVEWAY 

/ / / 

/ / 

/ 

/ 

/ / 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ / 

RST AVENUE 
12.14' 

I 
1/ / 

f / 

i / 

I 
I 
I 
I•I 
I / 
I 

: ✓ 
I 

I 
I 

I 

I / / 

/ 

I 
I 

~ / 
I 
1 / 
I 
I 
I / 
I 
[ / / 
I:/ / 
I 

/ 

/
/

/ 
/

/ 

/
/ / 

/
/ 

/ 

/
/ 

/
/ 

/ /
/ 

/
/

/ 
/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/
/ 

/
/ 

/
/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 
/ 

// i 
/ 

/ [,, / 

50'-0"/ 
/ , 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/
/ 

/
/

/
/ 

/ /
/ /

/ 
/

/ /
/ 

/
/

/ / /
/ 

/ 

/ 

/
/

/ 
/ 

D 

/ 
/ 

,· 
/ 

D 

! 
i 
I 
I 

COVERED 
PORCH 

POOL 

/ 
/

/
/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 
/ 

/
/ 

/
/ 

/
/ 

/
/

/ 
/ 

/
/ 

/
/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ / 

/
/ 

/
/

/ 

/ 

/ 
/ 

/
/ 

/
/ 

/
/ 

/ 

/ / / 

/ 

/ / 

/ / 

/ 

/ 

/ 

-08.ILW 

SHEET TITLE 

RCHITECTURAL 
S ITE 

P LAN 

ARC HITECT URAL SHEEl NUMBER 

A0.2 



34

~ 
studio 
ARCHITECTURE 

1 5 • ? 0U ... V4 AVf ,

tE1L~O.U ~N/\ f.l) l/!J: 
,tn'9~ Cjj1"1elcl1!..a,t1•t ~!.ct,,,1.c.o"' 

/ 
JOB t R-2020--004 

/ / / / 
DRAV\.'N. LAT 

CHECKED JB 
/ / 

DATE 
□SD ---

/ / 
O DD ---

/ / / 
■ P&Z Submittal oa., , .20 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ / 
/ 

/ / 

/ 

/ / / 

QPER1,m 

QCD 

/ / 

NEW 
PAVER 

--~=--=·=--:i;::;:::',r'~~J\....-_j:'::=::::::~::==~~ ~ =.b/~/~/~/=/=/=,~/=/=/~===~ --- LIIIJ_J / 
t___J 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ / 
/ 

( 

/ 

/ 

REVISIONS· 

8 

DRIVE / / / 
/ / / 

/ / 

/ 

/ 

GRA 
/ / 

/ 

/ 

/ / 

/ / / / 
/ 

I----------' 
/ 

/ / 
/ / / 

IRST AVENUE 
12.14' 

/ 

/ 

/ / / 

I /
1/ 
I 
V 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
~ 
I 
I / 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I: / 
:/
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

" : / / / 

: / 

I / / r / /
I / 
I 
I 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ / 

/ 

fa 

/ 

/ . 

/ 

ASS 

/ 

/ / 

/ 

/ / 

/ 

NEW 
PAVER 
WALKWAY 

/ / / 
/ 

/ 

/ / / 

/ / 

/ / , 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ □ 
/ / 

/ 

/ / / 

COVERED PORCH 

/ / / 

/ / / 

□ 

COVERED PORCH 

/ 

/ / 

/ / 

~y 
1~E 

D 

POOL 

/ / / 

/: / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/
/ 

/ 

/ / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ / 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ / 

/ 

/ 

/ / 

/ / 

/ 

/ / 

/ 

/ 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / 

/ / / 

/ / 

/ 

/ 

A 
A 

/ / 

/ 

/ 

/

/; ) 

I /
I 

: / /
I , 

1 ✓ / 
I 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

V 
I 

: 
I 

/ / 

I / / 

r 
I 
I 

/ 
/ 

081 120 

I 
I SHEET TITLE 
I /: / 
I 

: ✓ 

/ / 

/ 

/ 

/ 
/ D R A INA GE 

P LA N 
,.......... / /
1"7-----' .. ----------

,..-
1 
I 

NOTE: STANDARD WELL-FED IRRIGATION TO SHEET NUMBER 

I 

I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

BE PROV IDED. SPRINKLER HEADS SPACED 
PER BEST PRACTICES FOR COMPLETE COVERAGE A0.3 

I 
I 
I 



I

---
---

---

35

I 
I ~ 

l l studio,-------l 

~ t i i Jk® 
1 

e-+------' 

- - +-----+---

I ~ ----------, IOI 
I I 
I I 

.5'-0' •· I 

w°""
BE~CH 

THREE·CAR 
GARAGE[

_l 
--- -E------, 3.9 -z· 

·4 I REF 

{ I 

T' I 
: I ;,
!I 1io91 
, l-= I 
I I 

4~~~ ~ I P. 
OVER NI$ 

·~ I i I Q,MENSION !1 _________ _! u 
l::.:='.'.l'::.._=:..._44-.'.======================::::::Jl~~======:::::::::::i;.~=====~~I -'9" 1@) i!i ,. 

' -
IZ O' 

i
/!

OEC.ORAnvE____/ t 
RAILING ! 

"-·~ 

I NTER I OR DOOR SCHEDULE 

TAG DESCRtPT!ON 

Y-o· x a·-o· oooq 
3' -0~ x 8' -0" POCK.ET DOOR 

(2) 1•-6· X s·-o· DOORS 

IQ] (2) 2' -b" X s·-o· DOORS 

2' -0 ' X B'-0" 318" THICK TEMPERED GLASS SHOWER DOOR 

.Y-0" .'( 8' .(l" 20 MIN. RATED COOR 

PLA N NOT ES 

I DIMENSION STRINGS TAKEN TO ONE SIDE OF INTERIOR 
WALLS. TYPICAL.I Z. INTERIOR WO.LLS TO BE ,5 t STUO WALLS WITH GYPSUM 
BOARD EACH SIDE, UNLESS OTHERWISE OIMENSIONEO 
PLAN, 

}. DOORS TO SE PLACED WITH b~ JAMB TO CORNER, 
UNLESS OTHERWISE DIMENSIONED ON PLAN. 

I 

I 

KITCHEN 
10 -o·cu, 

1 ~"'' 1~1____J ... 

t..• PARTITION BLOC~ 
WITHS.$ . CA91NET 

I !NSERrs ANO GRILL, 

I TO BE SELECTED 8V 
O'hNER ' 

\__18' OVERl·H•NCi ON JSl.A~ 
FOR SEAT ING PROVIDE 
Sl.Pf'ORT AS NEECEO 
BASED ON COONTERTOP 

---il'O UPPER HATERIAl SElECT!O't 
CAB IN!;T TO 
COi.iNTER 

1a-1.· 

DINING ! 1Ei 
ROOM ' 
I0' -0" CLG. i 

-.H»:--,+-----+~ ·•·------+ -g_:::::-- U '·••· ,: 1 '•0' CASEO CPEN N~ ::::- ..r::::::: 
;, 

OUT DOOR 
LIVING 

' 
' 
' ' ' ' i--~ 

I 

--\-----\-·--

I 7 
GUEST 

BEDROOM I 
10 ,o• CLC 

I 

I 

5-10· 

' llli 
I 

POOL t 

- C-

f-

I 

" 

I 

I 

ARCHITECTURE 

1! • l G U A VA. AV! . 

~ E1~ ~0-0~111E e H1 J.2!'! 
OU t ~0""'~~1,~,ot,u,,~th"t tOOII 

JOB I R-2020-004 

ORA~ lAT 

CHECKEO JB 

DATE 
□SD 

O DD 

■ P&Z Submittal ~ 

□ PERMIT 

□ CD 

REVIS10NS 

8 

~ 

LO 
C1> 
N 
C') 

Q),_ · _j
o ID Q)LL
C: >- >
wro<C --a -=::: ..... .c: 

·- c:::: Cf) 0
fil ro .!::: row 
0:: i: LL a:l 

E c ~ w 
0 >-C"") C: ..... () '-
Cf) :::J 
:::J 0u ..0 

Q) 

~ 

O& 11..2{) 

SHEET TITLE 

FIRST 
FLOO R 

P LAN 

SHEET NUMBER 

6-2' 

bl ·10' 

, FIRST FL OOR PLAN A1 .0.I S.ChLE· !fl - t'--0' 



--

I 

_

36

Z1 ' ~ 
(ill) @l® ® ® 

•IG
0 

Iti.EIOYE .180YE ABOVE t.80'1E ABOVE 

1'·6 11:,- Z'·6· 2·-~- z·-~· z·-t.· l'-b l/h lt. ·-w studio 
I @) @ I@ @ ](i,j'ji ARCHITECTURE 

JOB I· R-2020-004 

DRAWN 

CHECKED. JS 

oso 
DATE 

ooo 

■ P&Z Submittal 06_11_20 

- ----- -~ Q PERMIT ---

r -
1 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

_j MASTER 
BEDROOM 2 I ~ ~ 

~ ~ 
~ 

□ c o 

REVISIONS 

A 

~ 

I 
I 
I /~
I 
I 
I 
I 
I --------------~-IL _________ _ ------ __ _ T ___ _ ________ _ _ _ --------------- I 7 

--- --------------LII I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I ,.Ir:-,, 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I II I 
I I I 

: I 

~ i____j 

c------~~ 

I 

I 

MASTER II 
CL. 2 1, 

,.,. lI 
I, 
I J 

F 

u-r1 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
II 

MAST ER 

BALCONY 

IO-t0· 

1 

I l 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I II 11--t----------

8. 

8. 

-,-
I.() 
0) 
N 
(") 

T----------

/ 
1 ~ 1 

I 
L ___7 

I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
Ir:- ___ _j 

I ___ _________________ ______________l __ 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

J 

OS 11.20 

SHEET TIT LE 

SECOND 
FLOOR 
PLAN 

SHEET NUMBER 

SECOND FL O OR PLAN 
SCALE Ill. - I -o· A1.1 



---

37

~ 
studio 
ARCHIT ECTURE 

1s •2 GUA\/ A A \/E 
t,1 £ L9 0 U IHU: , FL JUJ~ 
1 2 I • 2 $ :I .$ i 
t u g.,_g.,.ia,1~a.u«,i,l!• <t~•• = 

S TAND ING Sft.M 
l"ETAl. ROOf 

JOB I . R-2020-004 

ORAv\JN· LAT 

CHECKED: JB 

BRAtllET. SE.E. 
DETAIL I/ } Z DATE 

□ SD 

O DD 
CAP ANO TRIM 
PAINTED ■P&l Submttal ~ 

Q PERMIT 

□cD 

RE.VISIONS. 

8 
ROOF TRUSS BEARING 
~.l!..,i.A,8A..QL_ ___ _ _ 

•l281" 

CONTROi,,. ...OINT . 
SEE WM.L SECTION 
DETAIL 11/5.Z 

SMOOTH s Tucc 

SIDING ~ 

• 
FINISH, PAINTED 

t.: STUCCO TRIM 
8 ,'t,NO!NG 

~ ~t~¥~!L_-~ -
1 ~~~f~A_Gt..._ _ __ ___ _ ___ _ _ _ - -

~;;~=-~ -------------------- ------------------ -------- -------------------- ----------~~~.m 
SOUTH ELEVATIO N 

SCALE IIL • l'·O· 

□ on O FLR • scor, WALL ~~fCO>l 
_ ~ ~ _ _ _ROOF TB'JS,;:~~:~ 

B~ACl',ET. ScE 
OE"lAIL 1/5 2 

AP ANt, TRIM, 
PAINTED ~ 

• 

.., 

FASCIA. see EA't'E 
O::TAJLS SHEEr Al.S 

08 11.20 

DD 
---- 0

SMOOfH STUCCO~ ------SMOOTH STUCCO ~ 
FINIS,-.. PA!NTEO -------- FINISH. P41Nlf0 SHE.ET TITLE 

r-----1..-SiLJCCO BANDING N ORT H 
STUCCO 8A'Sf----- A N D 
0ETA1L &14~ 27 .....___ SO UTH 

= ELEVATI ON S 
~ ~T..IlQ.OE - ·-~ -- -- -

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------t~MOF~➔ SHE ET NUMBER 

N O RTH E L E VAT I O N 
SCA.LE Ill. · l'•O• A2.0 



--

---- -- ------ ---------- - - --

38

I'--
~_!>~S<ANO~O SE~'f ~ 6 MET.O.LR~ 

----L- ·- __.,___. 

ROOF TR\JSS EIEARING · - - -~ - - - ~Rl,!S~11_7B--$- - 1-- - -~:Ztu.~~Ag_ ___f-------- _ ___ _ 

FASCIA. SEE fA'IE fffT -II II II 
I II I I T = II 71 == DETAILS ShEET All 

II II II ~ II 

CET"AILS SHEET Al .5 ~ \_FASC IA. SEE EAVE 

~ 

I II T I -
II 11 TI "'-S~OOTH STUCCO; □r

ROOFLET.SEE ~ 

lm 
II 

" 
~ 

" 
f'lNlSH PAINT ED

BRACKEi" DETAIL I l l II I I ~ • 
- .SHEET All Ill II II l 111111 == === 

.........------.srucco !JASE' 
__/" CETAIL 81Al lHAROIE- F'LAJ\••~·~ 

SIDING I,,,,. 
tiAROIE TR IM 

· - 1---C~NER 80AAO - - -- - - - - -
!~r~~~¾CL__ 

~~w~N OF-~ _~ -

EAST ELEV A TIO N 
SCALE· lfl, - r -o· 

- ________________!Qv..1~:-{H 

I 

ROOF TRUSS ~EAR NG 

- --~{ASTG~~~ 

ROOF TRUSS SEARING 

----1-~ST G~;f~t-+---
FASCIA. SEE EAVE -

1----

L, ROOFLET. see 
aR:.ci<:ET DETAIL 

DETAILS SHEET All 

f------
~ t." STUCCO 8ANl)ING ---..J.....___~-...j SHEET Al 1 

SHOOTH STUCCO____/ 
FINI~. J>AINTfO Sl'-\OOTH ST UC.CO 

1-- FIN~, PA INTED --STUCCO EIASE~ -
OETtl.CL flAl l ----...... ===-

- - 1..--------- - ....~ - - --~~~~~----_c---
---------- - - --- ~ - - _ ToPQi'CURB ~~~¼--1 --

--.......__ - ..&SQ.iJ~ OF .~f~~~ 

WEST ELEVAT ION 
SCALE !It. - 1•-0· 

~ 
studio 
ARCHITECTURE 

, ,~2 c; uio.vA AYi , 
~ El lO U RHE r L l2tl~ 
3 11 . 4 2 a., • , 9 
O•"'ll"Q"'•lOotol .o~,u,ueoi- .com 

JOB I . R-2020-004 

DRAVIM: LAT 

CHECKED· JB 

DATE 
o so 

□ DD 

■ Pt.ZSubmittal ---
~ 

□PERMIT 

□co 

REVISIONS: 

8 

6. 
6. 

"'""" l!) 
0)

1- N.2 (") 

081120 

SHEET TITLE 

EAST AND 
WEST 

ELEVATIONS 

SHEET NUMBER 

A2. 1 

https://OETtl.CL
https://MET.O.LR


39

TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH 

BREVARD COUNTY'S OLDEST BEACH COMMUNITY ESTABLISHED 1883 

Site Plan Review 
Applicable Codes 

Town of Melbourne Beach Land Development Code 
2017 Florida Building Code 

Date: August 14, 2020 
Owner: Smith, J Bentley; Smith, Carolyn S 
Owner Address: 309 Hibiscus Trail Melbourne Bch FL 
Site Address: 309 Hibiscus Trail Melbourne Bch FL 
Parcel ID: 28-38-06-75-13-5 
Zoning: 2RS 

Proposed Project: Entry Porch Addition to a single-f amity dwelling. This 
addition will not require any changes to any outbuildings or removal of 
trees. 
References: Town of Melbourne Beach Code of Ordinances: 7A-32 

Request: Approval by Planning and Zoning Board, Town Commission for 
construction of an entry porch addition to a single-family dwelling. 
Staff Review: The property lies in Zoning District 2RS 
1). Project is an addition to a single family dwelling as a principle use. 

2). The Building Lot Zoning District requirements of min. lot area, width and depth. 
Lot area is 15,819.69 sq. ft. min. 11,250 sq. ft. 
Lot width is 116.63 ft. min. 90 ft. 
Lot depth is 135.64 ft. min. 100 ft. 

3). Lot coverage has a maximum of 30% for principle structure. 
Lot coverage per plan is 18.5 % Footprint of Primary Structure is 2,928 sq. ft. 
Max allowed for Primary Structure is 4,745.91 sq.ft. for Lot Area of 15,819.69 sq. ft . 
Minimum pervious area per lot is 30%. Pervious area is 59.28 % 

4). Structure maximum height for zoning district is 28 ft. 
The proposed height provided is the same as the current primary structure. 
Flood Zone X 

5). Zoning District Setback requirements 
Proposed addition Front Setback less than the current setback of the primary 
structure at 39.9 ft. (min. 25 ft.) 
Proposed addition all side and rear setbacks are contained w ithin the current 
primary structure. This addition only affects the front setback. 

Updated 03-01-2020 

https://15,819.69
https://4,745.91
https://15,819.69


40

6). Sediment and Erosion control measures shall be met and approved by the Building 
Official in accordance with the Town of Melbourne Beach Code of Ordinances 
(27-28) and Florida Building Code (3307.1). 

7). On-site Storm water Retention Control measures shall be met and approved by 
the Building Official in accordance with the Town of Melbourne Beach Code of 
Ordinances (27-28) and the Florida Building Code (3307.1). Topographic maps may be 
required. This addition is not a modification greater than 50% of the appraised value 
as per Ordinance 2019-06. 
Minimum Landscaping Standards shall be met. 

Based on the above review, I find the proposed site plan for the referenced property is 
in compliance with The Town of Melbourne Beach Code of Ordinances. 

Jo n Stone 
Building Official 

Updated 03-01-2020 



41

,.,,,,. MAP OF BOUNDARY SURVEY 
110 fl 

PC 

ij 

~lo-------,1--➔-............,,_. 

& 

. -T(TYP) · 

FHCa.Jf'OH 

S 115'38'23' VI !35.39' 

LOT 6, Bl..00< I3 

PC - POtHT OF' ~TURE 
A - ARC LEOEND PCC - POIHT or OON"'CXRC> OUR'VJ',TURE 

PCP - P£ll'lMAN£NT 00NTROL POll(J'FDM - fElERAL. EME1tGENCY ~ AG'EHC't"'~ =......,._~~~ Pf-~or:~__ P:Y-FlfCSttEDR..OClft ...... PROFE$.$10rfW..LNC)~ 
111..K - 8LOCK P08 - POfl,lf' OF ~ 
.,,.,. __ A..S -FNC-FENCE ---- FN>--

FPM.. - ~ ~ - ""°""'" OF'~ 4t LIGHT F1'0C ~ 
PRC - POfNT' OF ft£VERS£: ~TUR£10- ~TlOH

(C) - CAL.C<&ATED PRW - R£FEJlt:EHc£' ~ ,,.,,. - JftOH PIPE RXJHDoav-CAat.£~ PSM - SUR\l'E'r'0R N«J MAPPER~ - MON ROO • CAP FOOHOC8S - CONCAET£ Bl.OCf( STRUC'Tt.ftE ~-jR()NROOFO(JHD PT -
CHO - ...,. __Cttom> PUCE -

R-RADOUSW.=~l'ENC£ ~=~~~53&· -

al -~ MlHUUEHT FOUND LS-w~~~ 
PUE 

CMP - OOftRUQIOU) MED'L PF£ 
C0NC - 00HCAETr R:/W- ff/GffTOf'""""'YOOR-.,,__ ~ --~~ ~ ---DATUM 

HOF - ""8.. a DISK FOUND SEC,_ -__sa::TION 
~ - s::F"Et:XAl... FLOOO ~ ~ 
TEL- lEl.EPHOHE RtsER 

0.,,., - DE:l.D\ ~~==800K ~--,~~NM..~~~ 
~EIS> - n.u,n,,c ,.,... -

G.£V - El.,,£'\M.TIOH up - UTlUTY POLE ---~RSX)ftOS BOOKEHC- ~ = WD - W000 
D)P - El>c:E: OF PA\IEMENT Oft• 0FJ=SET wrT-c:oR - 5/8- aRON ROO SD" WJJH ON' "'MTN£SS' LB ~ 
E:SUr-FASEMEHT WM - IICo\TER MEJ'ER 
,a - FE..D BOOK ~ =~l llOOK NCF" - CftOSS" cvr FO<JHO 

NOTES:LEG'\L. DESCRIPTION: 
1. ~ a-.SED ON TH£ £. ,VW- UHE SEJN~ NORTH AS PER Pl.AT (Sa:

LOT S. BLOCI< 13. ISI..ANO SHORES OF" MELBOURNE BEAC H . s,<£TCH) 
ACCORDING TO THE Pf-A.T TI-ff:RE'OF. AS RECOROED IN PU\T 2. n.£'\O\TIOHS 8"SED ON ____ 

3.. FLDOO ZONE"~- MAP Ho.. 120090CM!IICNIC: OOMMtJNffY No. 725173. 
MllliRCti 17. 20,... A.000 Z0H£ ~ 0EPtCTED HER£0H tSCOUNTY. Fl..ORfOA ~TE. ~ ftlrr~ $Ot£ AUTH0fllT'r" ~ BI04JN0ARY 

l----===------,----,-=---:--:,----,---.,-------=-- -i4. Nm OF MEE1S OR EXCEEDS 7HE' /IICCI.JRN::Y REQUJREMEJl.n'S 

r:,QOK 10. PAGE 52, PUBUC RECORDS OF" BREYARO 

1--~-""""'°"""-----------!l---'°"-rn~a~~--'-'-'-/J-9_-+JOe--No.--~-~-----1 5.. ,::~~ST~~~~OOJPlAT. oao 
Oft $N)WNOJ><mwlSE 

1----- -------...._________-'-'-'""-""""'/U=-===-" ~' ---1"° ~~~~~~~S~A 
SlJR'w:Y MAP$ OR R£POR7S 8Y O~ 1N.AN n,c s,CMNQ P/l<A.TY.CERTlF1ED TO: IS PRC»cena., MlNQUT ~ OQHSENT OF nE" SIGNING PARTY. 

C\ROLYN S . SMITH ANO BENTLEY J . SMITH 7 . THE ~ HA.S l«1Y &..OQIQ"EO NOR ATTDrlF'JE> 1'0 a..00'.TE NlY 
HOME GROUP FUNDING. rNC. lJHDERC:ftOUND Ul'1U1ll!S. ~TJOHS. OR S'J'ftUC7URES 01'Hf:R THN'if 

PRESTIGE TTn.£ OF' SREVARO. LLC TJil'IOSE°7'MTMII.TBESl«lWN"Hl!i:REON. 
a. OHL.Y ~ OOAfrr,IER- UOHUMOffS AS SHOWN HEREON ARE.. TO B E 

STEWART TTn.£ ~ COMP»N USED f"0R 'THIE' LOCATION N«l 00HS"l'RUC7ION OF ~f-----------------------------jP. ~ OTMERW'ISE ....otCA'JEI> TNS SURVEY WAS PR£PNtEI) wrn-K>UT 
BIENEJCTT OF A TrnE S01RCtt OR ATT'ORNEY"'S TIT1..£ OPfN10N. 

Kane Surveying, Inc. 
R1IIIJA uaNSED 8IISl£SS No. 1B 78lB sm llS111IJU1l(M 11{1',£ 

ISBCUN;R.all.\432904-
(lZt) 6'16--0427 FAX (lZt) 984-1#8DRAWN~ JL 

https://P/l<A.TY


42



43

TOWN BOARD VOLUNTEER APPLICATION 
Town of Melbourne Beach 

507 Ocean Avenue 
Melbourne Beach, Florida 32951 

Phone: (321) 724-5860 Fax: (321) 984-8994 

r- 'o/ ,

1. Home Phone: ~, ,1 1 () · •7")) :-> O 

2. 

3. 

Business Name: __________ Business Phone: __________4. 

5. Resume or Education & Experience: ________________ ____ 

(Use additional sheets if necessary or submit resume) 

6. Date of birth: a /~()f~~ (to verify voter registration) 
~ (optional) 

7. Are you a qualified elector of the town? 0'YES D NO 

8. Are yo'u a resident of the town? ~ YES □ NO 

9. Do you reside in the town for at least ten (10) months of each calendar year? ~ YES D NO 

10. Do you hold a public office? D YES Q-N6 
11 . Do you currently serve on a Town board?~ ES □ NO ...... 

If yes, which board? ff~ M"°) (5,, U ~,~ 
12. Please check the board(s) you are interested in serving on : 

Audit Committee History Center Board □ □ 
Board of Adjustment History Preservation and Awareness □ □ 
Civil Service Board Parks Board □ □ 
Code Enforcement Board ffi Planning and Zoning Board □ 

D Environmental Advisory Board D Police Pension Fund Board of Trustees 

13. Why do you think you are qualified to serve on this board? uJ{~ ~ wtb~ 

14. Would you consider serving on another board other than the one(s) you have selected above? 
□ YES ~ O 

Note: Persons a ointed to certain town boards must file a financial disclosure form with the Brevard 
County Superv· o of Ele ions and__Elorida Commission on Ethics. If you have any questions, please 
call the Town I k's o · at 724'5860. 

Date: 8 {zlfJ,.b 
I 



44

TOWN BOARD VOLUNTEER APPLICATION 
Town ofMelbourne Beach 

507 Ocean A venue 
Melbourne Beach, Florida 32951 

Phone: (321) 724-5860 Fax: (321) 984-8994 

1. Name: Douglas Hilmes Home Phone:321-506-9202 

2. Home Address: 443 Riverview Lane, Melbourne Beach, FL 32951 

3. Mobile Phone: 321-506-9202 E-mail address: dhilmes@bellsouth.net 

4. Business Name: Enghouse Networks Business Phone: 321-506-9202 

5. Resume or Education & Experience: Planning & Zoning board since 2017. 

(Use additional sheets if necessary or submit resume) 

6. Date of birth: 11/25/1963 (to verify voter registration) 
(optional) 

7. Are you a qualified elector of the town? @YES □ NO 
8. Are you a resident of the town? @YES □ NO 
9. Do you reside in the town for at least ten (10) months of each calendar year? 0 YES D NO 

10. Do you hold a public office? □ YES 0 NO 

11. Do you currently serve on a Town board?0 YES D NO 

If yes, which board? _P_la_n_n_in_g'--&_Z_o_n_in-"g'------- ---

12. Please check the board(s) you are interested in serving on: 

Audit Committee History Center Board □ □ 
Board of Adjustment History Preservation and Awareness □ □ 
Civil Service Board Parks Board □ □ 
Code Enforcement Board 0 Planning and Zoning Board □ 
Environmental Advisory Board Police Pension Fund Board of Trustees□ □ 

13. Why do you think you are qualified to serve on this board? I have been serving on the 

Planning & Zoning board since 2017. 

14. Would you consider serving on another board other than the one(s) you have selected above? 
□ YES lZ]NO 

Note: Persons appointed to certain town boards must file a financial disclosure form with the Brevard 
County Supervisor of Elections and Florida Commission on Ethics. If you have any questions, please 
call the Town Clerk's office at 724-5860. 

ISignature: _S)~....,,__··___i_·~..,_-·_-_·-_ -_·______ _ Date: 

mailto:dhilmes@bellsouth.net


45

TO\VN BOARD VOLUNTEER APPLICATION 
Town or Melbourne Beach 

507 Ocean A venue 
Melbourne Beach, Florida 32951 

Phone: (321 l 724-5860 Fax: <J21) 984•8994 

1. Name:C.YlQ6\:~~ '£,½,\ C,Q Home Phone:; i 1 q/'] -(o qso 
2. Home Address: 3) :3 Wib)Sc..L& :fr-~ . . 
3. Mobile Phone:) u -q l] - Lpq S-lE-mail address: crn¼~sk.!>'v»a.~@ fum,a.,\ .c..o 

Business Name: __________ Business Phone: _________4. 

5. Resume or Education & Experience: 'bs -B,';:>~ tS LO~\) ,45 £:\.,"7, y-~ 1 a~~ I 
(Use additional sheets if necessary or submit resume) I'\ Lt~ ~p.~\.\.&\--~~·-. ~ 

. . 'S \.l.~~"\ ~ t. ft.M., p~
6. Date of birth: 0£.o[ 21, IJ :3 (to verify voter reg,strat,on) -h"°~\~'Y 

(optional) ) 

7. Are you a qualified elector of the town? ~ES □ NO 

8. Are you a resident of the town? ~ES □ NO 

9. Do you reside in the town for at least ten (10) months of each calendar year? 9(1ES □ NO 

10. Do you hold a public office? □ YES (~O 

11. Do you currently serve on a Town board~ YES □ NO 

If yes, which board? ~ Y'.)V) (Or')~ Aol.vS ,-0~~°'"~ 'St...V\..l.Q 2DI 
12. Please check the board(s) you are interested in serving on: 

□ Audit Committee □ History Center Board 

□ Board of Adjustment □ History Preservation and Awareness 

□ Civil Service Board Parks Board □ 
□ Code Enforcement Board Planning and Zoning Board □ 
~ Environmental Advisory Board D Police Pension Fund Board of Trustees 

13. Why do you think you are qualified to serve on this board? ~ ~t,L) <-& 1ui1 
k±: t ~ Lt(~ c,_~.(. ~V\rt., ~ .G.A (h Ol~Y\:tlJ! s. 

14. Would you ~ider serving on another board other than the one(s) you have selected above? 
□ YES J()NO 

Note: Persons appointed to certain town boards must file a financial disclosure form with the Brevard 
County Supervisor of Elections and Florida Commission on Ethics. If you have any questions, please 
call the Town Cl 's office at 724-5860. 

Date: ~) 2\ \ 1.DU:> 



46

TOWN BOARD VOLUNTEER APPLICATION 
Town of Melbourne Beach 

507 Ocean Avenue 
!Ylelbourne Beach, Florida 32951 

Phone: (321) 724-5860 Fax: (321) 984-8994 

1. Na~to/lMo~\O~ Home Phor€1-t'-f)Jt() -)Q00 
2. Home Address: 4 l~ ~Av£:t-z tt2lffi,R~~£L zL.35 I 
3. Mobile Phone: ________ E-mail address:ctf51f11oo:hn@~tr:Pl I ..~ IYJ 

4. Business Name: __________ Business Phone: __________ 

5. Resume or Education & Experience: HI ¾~:z:tlEf~Jlio(~~t\:~.( 
(Use additional sheets if necessary or submit resume) ~\lN\,:::/TM <~ 

6. Date of birth: ~liol~, \, 94fo (to verify voter registration) 

7. Are you a qualified elector of the town? ·li]YES □ NO 
8. Are you a resident of the town? -ml YES D NO 

9. Do you reside in the town for at least ten (10) months of each calendar year? -lil1 YES D NO 

10. Do you hold a public office? □ YES 

11 . Do you currently serve on a Town board?□ YES ljlj NO 

If yes, which board?[ds)-'\ -~&i8Q lj\lzTvRt' ~_VA::.Ti orJJNJ.J~'t~ ~l7 

12. Please check the board(s) you are interested in serving on: 

□ Audit Committee □ History Center Board 

Board of Adjustment • History Preservation and Awareness □ 
□ Civil Service Board Parks Board□ 
□ Code Enforcement Board □ Planning and Zoning Board 

□ Environmental Advisory Board □ Police Pension Fund Board of Trustees 

13. Why do you think you are qualified to serve on this board? ::I,c.p..~ ~\ 
K_t:z--C-v~ \P:g'f3hl.JA;\to,J 

14. Would you consider serving on another board other than the one(s) you have selected above? 
.i YES □ NO 

Note: Persons appointed to certain town boards must file a financial disclosure form with the Brevard 
County Supervisor of Elections and Florida Commission on Ethics. If you have any questions, please 
call the T n lerk's office 2 5860. 

Date:[~-,:: W2...0 



  

  

   

   

 
    

  
  

  

   
 

  

     
 

47

Attachments: Ordinance 2020-03 

Date Prepared: 09/10/2020 

Prepared By: TA Repperger 

Meeting Date: 09/16/2020 RTCM 

Agenda Category: 
Proclamations & Awards X Public Hearings 
Presentations Old Business 
Boards & Committees New Business 
Consent Other: 

Subject: Second Reading of Ordinance 2020-03, related to 
Boats/Recreational Vehicles 

Recommended Action: Consider Approval of Ordinance 2020-03. 

Background Information: Amending section 7A-67, Appendix A, Land 
Development Code 



48



  

     
     

    
     

   
     

  
      

  
    

    
    

     
   

     
   

   
     

    
   

     
     

    
     

    
     

     
  

       

        

   

        

          

         

49

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-03 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE 
BEACH, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF THE TOWN OF 
MELBOURNE BEACH REGARDING TRAILERS, BOATS 
AND RECREATIONAL VEHICLES; AMENDING 
SECTION 7A-67; AMENDING THE MAXIMUM LENGTH 
OF TRAILERS, BOATS, AND RECREATIONAL 
VEHICLES STORED ON ANY LOT WITHIN THE TOWN 
TO FORTY-FIVE (45) FEET; PROVIDING THAT 
TRAILERS, BOATS, AND RECREATIONAL VEHICLES 
MAY BE CONNECTED TO ELECTRICAL POWER 
SOURCES FOR MAINTENANCE PURPOSES; AMENDING 
THE CONDITIONS FOR STORAGE OF TRAILERS, 
BOATS, AND RECREATIONAL VEHICLES ON CORNER 
LOTS TO REQUIRE SAID TRAILERS, BOATS, AND 
RECREATIONAL VEHICLES TO BE SUBSTANTIALLY 
SCREENED BUT NOT COMPLETELY SHIELDED FROM 
VIEW; PROVIDING THAT EXTERNAL SIDE-ROOM 
EXTENSIONS ON RECREATIONAL VEHICLES CAN 
ONLY BE EXTENDED FOR LOADING AND UNLOADING; 
AMENDING THE ALLOWABLE PERIOD OF ACTIVE 
LOADING AND UNLOADING OF TRAILERS, BOATS, 
AND RECREATIONAL VEHICLES TO FORTY-EIGHT (48) 
HOURS IN ANY SEVEN (7) DAY PERIOD; PROVIDING A 
SERVERABILITY/INTERPRETATION CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR 
REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES AND 
RESOLUTIONS; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND PROVIDING AN ADOPTION SCHEDULE. 

WHEREAS, the Town of Melbourne Beach desires to amend the Land Development Code 

of the Town of Melbourne Beach regarding the parking, placement, storage, and screening of 

trailers, boats, and recreational vehicles within the Town of Melbourne Beach; and, 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach, after duly noticed 

public hearings, has determined that the amendments to Section 7A-67 of the Land Development 

Code proposed in this Ordinance will provide for the improved regulation of the parking, 



      

      

           

          

            

  

  

        

  

            

    

   

           
            

       
  

      
         

       
        

            
      

         
 

             
        
        

  

50

(a) 

provided the following provisions are complied with: 

placement, storage, and screening of trailers, boats, and recreational vehicles in the Town of 

Melbourne Beach, consistent with currently acceptable community standards for the same; and, 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach, after duly noticed 

public hearings, has determined that the amendments to Section 7A-67 of the Land Development 

Code provided for in this Ordinance are consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and are in the 

best interests of its citizens and promote the general health, safety, and welfare of the residents of 

the Town of Melbourne Beach; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE 

BEACH, FLORIDA: 

SECTION 1. That Section 7A-67, Appendix “A,” of the Town Code of the Town of 

Melbourne Beach, Florida, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

§7A-67.  TRAILERS, BOATS AND RECREATIONAL VEHICLES. 

General parking restrictions. Trailers, boats and recreational vehicles which do not exceed 
26 forty-five (45) feet in overall length may be parked, stored or stopped on any lot in the Town 

(1) Such trailers, boats, and recreational vehicles, or any combinations thereof, shall not 
be used for residential, office or commercial purposes. 

(2) Such trailers, boats and recreational vehicles, or any combinations thereof, shall not 
be connected in any manner to utilities, except for the purpose of charging batteries 
thereonconnection to electric service for the purpose of charging batteries or 
maintenance only. The use of trailers and recreational vehicles for sleeping, 
housekeeping or living quarters while so parked shall not be permitted. 

(3) Such trailers, boats and recreational vehicles shall be located to the rear of the front 
building line and in no event, less than twenty-five (25) feet from the front lot line, 
except for purposes of loading and unloading for reasonable periods of time as 
provided for in Section 7A-67(c)(1). Additionally, on any corner lot, no trailer, boat or 
recreational vehicle shall be located in front of the building line of any side of the 
structure which abuts a street, unless the boat, trailer or recreational vehicle is 
sheltered substantially screened, but not completely shielded from view, by a 
vegetative barrier or fence. 



 
            

 
 

  
 

        
    

 
            

          
 

 
           

 
 

            
             

         
  

 
  

 
       

          
          

          
        

          
         

              
 

 
             

        
             

              
           

 
 

-
-----

51

(4) Such trailers, boats, and recreational vehicles shall not be parked on any part of the 
road right-of-way. 

(5) Such trailers, if collapsible, shall be parked or stored in a collapsed condition only. 

(6) The sites upon which such trailers, boats, and recreational vehicles are parked shall be 
well-kept and free from weeds and other growth. 

(7) Any deviations from the provisions of this subsection (a) shall be by special permit 
issued by the Town Commission setting forth the specific use to be made and the term 
of such use. 

(8) Recreational vehicle side-room extensions may only be extended for the purposes of 
loading and unloading.   

(b) Parking cargo trailers restricted. Cargo trailers shall not be parked in the Town, except for 
purposes of loading and unloading for no more than forty-eight (48) hours in any seven (7) 
consecutive day period reasonable periods of time, unless stored fully within a garage, carport or 
fenced yard. 

(c)   Temporary parking; placement, storage, or parking on vacant lots. 

(1) Parking trailers, boats, and recreational vehicles on residential lots prohibited, with 
exceptions. Trailers, boats, and recreational vehicles which exceed 26 forty-five (45) 
feet in overall length, whether powered or unpowered, shall not be parked, stored, or 
placed on any residential lot located within the Town except for purposes of active 
loading and delivery. Said period of active lLoading and unloading of any trailer, 
boat, recreational vehicle or combination thereof exceeding forty-five (45) feet in 
overall length or not parked in compliance of with subsection (a) of this Section shall 
not exceed two six- hour periods forty-eight (48) hours in any seven (7) consecutive 
day period. 

(2) No trailer, boat, recreational vehicle, or camper, regardless of size, may be parked, 
placed, or stored on any vacant lot. No trailer, boat, recreational vehicle, or camper, 
regardless of size, may be used as a place to live, temporarily or permanently, on any 
vacant lot. For the purposes of this paragraph, a VACANT LOT is a lot without a 
structure used as a principal permitted use or use for which a special exception has 
been issued. 



     

       

            

      

          

            

 

        

 

     

    

        

              

           

 

         

            

          

    

  

52

SECTION 2. Severability/Interpretation Clause. 

(a) In the event that any term, provision, clause, sentence or section of this 

Ordinance shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be partially or wholly 

unenforceable or invalid for any reason whatsoever, any such invalidity, illegality, or 

unenforceability shall not affect any of the other or remaining terms, provisions, clauses, 

sentences, or sections of this Ordinance, and this Ordinance shall be read and/or applied as if the 

invalid, illegal, or unenforceable term, provision, clause, sentence, or section did not exist. 

(b) In interpreting the provisions of this Ordinance, the following rules and 

symbols shall apply: 

(1) Words underlined are additions to existing text. 

(2) Words stricken through are deletions from existing text. 

(3) Asterisks (* * *) indicates a deletion from the Ordinance of text 

existing in the Code of Ordinances. It is intended that the text in the Code of Ordinance denoted 

by the asterisks and not set forth in this Ordinance shall remain unchanged from the language 

existing prior to adoption of this Ordinance. 

SECTION 3. Codification. The provisions of this Ordinance shall be codified as, and 

become and be made a part of, the Town of Melbourne Beach Code of Ordinances. The sections 

of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered to accomplish such intention. 

SECTION 4. Ordinances and Resolutions in Conflict. All ordinances or resolutions 

or parts thereof that may be determined to be in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

SECTION 5. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption.  



      

            

         

   

 
 

    
 
 

      
 

 
       

 
 

_______________________ 

53

SECTION 6. Adoption Schedule. 

PASSED by the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach on first reading on 

the 19th day of August, 2020, and ADOPTED by the Town Commission of the Town of 

Melbourne Beach, Florida, on final reading on the 16th day of September, 2020. 

TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, FLORIDA 

By:____________________________ 
     JAMES D. SIMMONS, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
(TOWN SEAL) 

Jennifer Torres, 
Town Clerk 



54



  

  

   

   
 

 
     
    
    
     

 
   

   
  

 
 

    
 

 

55

Attachments: Ordinance 2020-04 

Date Prepared: 09/10/2020 

Prepared By: TA Repperger 

Meeting Date: 09/16/2020 RTCM 

Agenda Category: 
Proclamations & Awards X Public Hearings 
Presentations Old Business 
Boards & Committees New Business 
Consent Other: 

Subject: Second Reading of Ordinance 2020-04 

Recommended Action: Consider Approval of Ordinance 2020-04 related to 
Binding Development Agreements. Planning & 
Zoning unanimously recommended approval at their 
08/04/2020 meeting. 

Background Information: Amending section 7A-102, Appendix A, Land 
Development Code 



  

     
     

     
  

    
   

    
     

  
    

   
   

    
   

     
 

           

          

        

            

       

         

 

            

   

          

          

56

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-04 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE 
BEACH, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF THE TOWN OF 
MELBOURNE BEACH, AMENDING SECTION 7A-102 TO 
AUTHORIZE THE CONSIDERATION OF CONDITIONS, 
LIMITATIONS, OR REQUIREMENTS IN A PROPOSAL 
FOR ZONING CHANGE OR AMENDMENT 
VOLUNTARILY PROFFERED AS PART OF A BINDING 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT; CREATING SECTION 
7A-103 AUTHORIZING BINDING DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENTS; PROVIDING A SERVERABILITY 
/INTERPRETATION CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF 
CONFLICTING ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN ADOPTION SCHEDULE. 

WHEREAS, Section 7A-102, of Appendix A of the Code of Ordinances of Melbourne 

Beach (“Land Development Code”) provides that “[n]o proposal for a zoning change or 

amendment affecting particular property or properties shall contain conditions, limitations, or 

requirements not applicable to all other property in the district to which the particular property is 

proposed to be rezoned;” and,  

WHEREAS, the limitations of Section 7A-102, Land Development Code, operate to 

prohibit the Town from considering Binding Development Agreements voluntarily proffered by 

applicants proposing zoning changes or amendments; and,  

WHEREAS, the Town Commission has determined that the prohibition of its ability to 

consider Binding Development Agreements voluntarily proffered by applicants proposing zoning 

changes or amendments limits its authority to agree to conditions, limitations, or requirements 

that would otherwise ensure that a property rezoned is compatible with the property’s 

surrounding zoning and uses; and,  



     

     

  

          

           

          

  

         

           

 

         

         

     

      

             

            

     

         

           

               

 

57

WHEREAS, the Town Commission has determined that Binding Development 

Agreements are useful tools in ensuring managed and controlled growth, development, and 

location of properly sited compatible uses within the Town of Melbourne Beach; and, 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission has determined that authorizing the use of Binding 

Development Agreements in proposals for zoning changes or amendments will serve to better 

ensure that properties are developed consistent with the historic character of development within 

the Town of Melbourne Beach; and, 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission acknowledges that various courts in Florida have 

upheld the use of voluntary proffered conditions by applicants proposing zoning changes or 

amendments; and, 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission acknowledges that the Florida Legislature has 

authorized the use of statutory Development Agreements in the Florida Local Government 

Development Agreement Act; currently Fla. Stat. Sec. 163.3220 through Fla. Stat. Sec. 

163.3243; and,    

WHEREAS, the Town Commission recognizes that non-statutory Development 

Agreements may be entered into under the authority of home rule powers of the Town of 

Melbourne Beach pursuant to Article VIII, Section 2 of the Constitution of the State of Florida 

and Chapter 166, Florida Statutes,  

WHEREAS, the Town Commission desires to amend Section 7A-102, Land Development 

Code, to authorize the Town Commission to consider conditions, limitations, or requirements not 

applicable to all other properties in a district to which a particular property is proposed to be 

rezoned that are voluntarily proffered by an applicant for a rezoning by way of a statutory or 

non-statutory Binding Development Agreement, 



    

          

 

          

           

 

           

           

              

  

        

  

           

   

            
         

        
            

       

           

    

  

        
         

          

58

WHEREAS, the Town Commission desires to create Section 7A-103, Land Development 

Code to authorize the use of statutory and non-statutory Binding Development Agreements in 

rezoning proposals; 

WHEREAS, the Town Planning & Zoning Board, sitting as the Local Planning Agency, 

has found that this Ordinance is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and will promote the 

public health, safety, and welfare of the Community; and, 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach, after duly noticed 

public hearings, has determined that the amendments to the Land Development Code, provided 

for in this Ordinance are in the best interests of its citizens and promote the general health, 

safety, and welfare of the residents of the Town of Melbourne Beach; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE 

BEACH, FLORIDA: 

SECTION 1. That, Article VI, Section 7A-102, Appendix “A,” of the Town Code of the 

Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

§ 7A-102.  LIMITATIONS. 

No proposal for a zoning change or amendment affecting particular property or properties 
shall contain conditions, limitations, or requirements not applicable to all other property in the 
district to which the particular property is proposed to be rezoned, except where such conditions, 
limitations, or requirements are voluntarily proffered by an applicant proposing a zoning change 
or amendment as part of a statutory or non-statutory Binding Development Agreement. 

SECTION 2. That, Article VI, Section 7A-103, Appendix “A,” of the Town Code of the 

Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida, is hereby created to read as follows: 

§ 7A-103.  RESERVEDBINDING DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS. 

(a) For purposes of this article, Binding Development Agreements are defined as 
agreements voluntarily proffered by applicants proposing a zoning change on a particular 
property or properties that propose conditions, limitations, or requirements not applicable to all 



            
          

         
           

           
         

               
       

   
          

   
    

    
           

             
 

         
          

            
     

       
          

     

      
            

          
 

       
            

         
                

             
        

  

          
        

           
           

 

59

other property in the district to which the particular property or properties is proposed to be 
rezoned. Binding Development Agreements may only be utilized in proposals for zoning 
amendments and may only propose conditions, limitations, or requirements that are more 
restrictive than those found in the zoning district to which a property or properties is proposed to 
be rezoned. A Binding Development Agreement may provide for specific conditions of site 
development or dedications, such as those reflected on site or subdivision plans, but only to the 
extent that such plans are proposed as part of a proposal for rezoning. Binding Development 
Agreements may be either statutory or non-statutory. 

(1) Statutory Binding Development Agreements. Statutory Binding 
Development Agreements are those adopted in accordance with the Florida Local 
Government Development Agreement Act, Fla. Stat. Sec. 163.3220 through Fla. Stat. 
Sec. 163.3243 or as may be amended. 

(2) Non-statutory Binding Development Agreements. Non-statutory Binding 
Development Agreements are those adopted under the authority of the home rule powers 
of the Town under Article VIII, Section 2 of the Constitution of the State of Florida and 
F.S. ch. 166. 

(b) An applicant proposing a zoning change or amendment affecting a particular 
property or properties may voluntarily proffer conditions, limitations, or requirements not 
applicable to all other properties in the district to which the particular property or properties is 
proposed to be rezoned by way of a statutory or non-statutory Binding Development Agreement. 

(c) Statutory and non-statutory Binding Development Agreements may be considered by 
the Planning and Zoning Board and the Town Commission as part of any proposal for zoning 
change or amendment affecting particular a property or properties. 

(d) An approved statutory or non-statutory Binding Development Agreement shall be 
recorded in the Public Records of Brevard County, Florida and shall act as a restrictive covenant 
which runs with the particular property or properties subject to the Binding Development 
Agreement. 

(e) Unless otherwise provided by law, the initial term of a statutory or non-statutory 
Binding Development Agreement may not exceed thirty (30) years, but may be automatically 
extended for and unlimited number of successive defined renewal periods upon the mutual 
consent of the Town and the applicant for rezoning at the time of adoption of the Binding 
Development Agreement after an initial public hearing. A public hearing for the consideration 
of a Binding Development Agreement may be noticed and held in conjunction with a public 
hearing for a proposal for rezoning. 

(f) Nothing in this section shall obligate the Planning and Zoning Board or Town 
Commission to consider or approve any proposed Binding Development Agreement, nor shall 
this section be interpreted to create any independent cause of action against the Town of 
Melbourne Beach arising from the denial of a proposed Binding Development Agreement by the 
Town Commission.     



     

         

            

      

          

            

 

          

 

       

      

          

              

           

 

          

            

           

            

   
 
  

 

60

SECTION 3. Severability/Interpretation. 

(a) In the event that any term, provision, clause, sentence or section of this 

Ordinance shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be partially or wholly 

unenforceable or invalid for any reason whatsoever, any such invalidity, illegality, or 

unenforceability shall not affect any of the other or remaining terms, provisions, clauses, 

sentences, or sections of this Ordinance, and this Ordinance shall be read and/or applied as if the 

invalid, illegal, or unenforceable term, provision, clause, sentence, or section did not exist. 

(b) In interpreting the provisions of this Ordinance, the following rules and 

symbols shall apply: 

(1) Words underlined are additions to existing text. 

(2) Words stricken through are deletions from existing text. 

(3) Asterisks (* * *) indicates a deletion from the Ordinance of text 

existing in the Code of Ordinances. It is intended that the text in the Code of Ordinance denoted 

by the asterisks and not set forth in this Ordinance shall remain unchanged from the language 

existing prior to adoption of this Ordinance. 

SECTION 4. Codification. The provisions of this Ordinance shall be codified as, and 

become and be made a part of, the Town of Melbourne Beach Code of Ordinances. The sections 

of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered to accomplish such intention. 

SECTION 5. Ordinances and Resolutions in Conflict. All ordinances or resolutions 

or parts thereof that may be determined to be in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

SECTION 6. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption.  



      

            

         

   

 
 

    
 
 

      
 

 
       

 
 

_______________________ 

61

SECTION 7. Adoption Schedule. 

PASSED by the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach on first reading on 

the 19th day of August, 2020, and ADOPTED by the Town Commission of the Town of 

Melbourne Beach, Florida, on final reading on the 16th day of September, 2020. 

TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, FLORIDA 

By:____________________________ 
     JAMES D. SIMMONS, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
(TOWN SEAL) 

Jennifer Torres, 
Town Clerk 



62



 
    

 
 

 

  

   

   
 

 
     
    
    
     

 
   

      

     
    

 
  

   
  

 
    

 
 
    

  
 
   

    
 

 
      

  
    

   

63

Attachments: Draft Ordinance 2020-05; Amendments to Article II, 
Chapter 11 of the Town Code and various other 
sections to establish a code enforcement special 
magistrate and hearing process. 

Date Prepared: September 11, 2020 

Prepared By: Clifford R. Repperger, Jr., Town Attorney 

Meeting Date: September 16, 2020 

Agenda Category: 
Proclamations & Awards X Public Hearings 
Presentations Old Business 
Boards & Committees New Business 
Consent Other: 

Subject: First Reading of Ordinance 2020-05. 

Recommended Action: Pass or Amend Proposed Ordinance 2020-05. 

Background Information: On September 18, 2019, the Town Commission 
consented to the Town Attorney drafting an 
Ordinance to replace the Town Code Enforcement 
Board with a Special Magistrate and to develop 
appropriate hearing process. 

The attached draft Ordinance: 

• Replaces the Town Code Enforcement Board with 
a Special Magistrate; 

• Provides additional definitions related to the Town 
code enforcement process; 

• Establishes powers and hearing procedures for 
use by the Town code enforcement special 
magistrate; 

• Authorizes the imposition of orders, fines, and 
liens by the Town code enforcement special 
magistrate and provides for the process of 
reconsideration of the same; 



    
 

 
 
 

64

• Provides for appeals of orders of the Town code 
enforcement special magistrate; and 

• Amends references to the “Code Enforcement 
Board” in various sections of the Town Code to 
“special magistrate.” 



     
 

      
     

       
     

     
    

    
    

   
     
   

    
     

     
    
    

    
      

     
    

   
    

  
    

    
  

   
   

  
    

     
    

   
  

   
     

    
  

 
           

           

    

65

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-05 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE 
BEACH, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
VARIOUS SECTIONS OF THE CODE OF MELBOURNE 
BEACH TO ESTABLISH A SPECIAL MAGISTRATE TO 
HANDLE CODE ENFORCEMENT CASES IN THE TOWN 
OF MELBOURNE BEACH; SPECIFICALLY AMENDING 
SECTION 11-15, AUTHORITY TO ESTABLISH; PURPOSE; 
AMENDING SECTION 11-16 DEFINITIONS; AMENDING 
AND RENAMING SECTION 11-17, ORGANIZATION; 
AMENDING SECTION 11-18, POWERS; AMENDING AND 
RENAMING SECTION 11-19, ENFORCEMENT 
PROCEDURES; HEARINGS; AMENDING AND 
RENAMING SECTION 11-20, FAILURE TO COMPLY 
WITH ORDER OF BOARD; AMENDING AND RENAMING 
SECTION 11-21, APPEALS; AMENDING AND RENAMING 
SECTION 11-22, NOTICE REQUIREMENTS; AMENDING 
THE FOLLOWING CODE OF MELBOURNE BEACH 
SECTIONS TO CHANGE REFERENCES FROM “CODE 
ENFORCEMENT BOARD” TO “SPECIAL MAGISTRATE:” 
SECTION 1-26, MINUTES; SECTION 27-34, VIOLATIONS; 
ENFORCEMENT; PENALTIES; SECTION 46-20, 
ENFORCEMENT BY CODE ENFORCEMENT BOARD; 
PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION; SECTION 49-3, 
DISCHARGE OF CERTAIN WATER INTO PUBLIC SEWER 
SYSTEM AND STREETS PROHIBITIED; ENFORCEMENT; 
SECTION 49-54, PENALTIES; SECTION 49-55, 
REGISTRATION OF REAL PROPERTY MORTGAGEES 
HOLDING MORTGAGES IN DEFAULT; SECTION 49-56, 
MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS; SECTION 49-57, 
SECURITY REQUIREMENTS; AND SECTION 65-6, DUE 
DATE FOR ANNUAL BUSINESS TAX; DELINQUENT 
PAYMENTS; PENALTY FOR FAILURE TO PAY ANNUAL 
BUSINESS TAX; PROVIDING A 
SERVERABILITY/INTERPRETATION CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR 
REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES AND 
RESOLUTIONS; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; 
AND PROVIDING AN ADOPTION SCHEDULE. 

WHEREAS, Article II of Chapter 11 of the Code of Melbourne Beach governs the Town’s 

code enforcement process and provides for the establishment of a Code Enforcement Board to 

conduct code enforcement proceedings, including the hearing of code enforcement cases; and, 



           

          

          

           

           

         

         

 

        

  

            

  

      

        
        

  
 

              
             

         
      
          

 
           

         
      

          

66

WHEREAS, Article II of Chapter 11 of the Code of Melbourne Beach has been adopted 

based upon the authority of Chapter 162, Florida Statutes; and, 

WHEREAS, Chapter 162, Florida Statutes, authorizes municipalities to establish a Code 

Enforcement Special Magistrate which shall have the same enforcement powers and authority of 

a Code Enforcement Board; and, 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach has determined that 

establishment of a Code Enforcement Special Magistrate is in the best interests of the Town of 

Melbourne Beach in that a Code Enforcement Special Magistrate will better protect the health, 

safety, and welfare of the public by providing a more effective and efficient code enforcement 

process as authorized by Chapter 162, Florida Statutes,  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE 

BEACH, FLORIDA: 

SECTION 1. That Section 11-15, of the Town Code of the Town of Melbourne Beach, 

Florida, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

§11-15. AUTHORITY TO ESTABLISH; PURPOSE. 

(a) This article is adopted by the Town Commission to establish a code enforcement 
special magistrate and hearing process pursuant to the authority granted municipalities in Ch. 162, 
Fla. Stat. 

(b) It is the intent of this article to promote, protect and improve the health, safety and 
welfare of the citizens of the town by authorizing the creation of an administrative board or boards 
code enforcement special magistrate with authority to impose administrative fines and other 
noncriminal penalties to provide an equitable, expeditious, effective and inexpensive method of 
enforcing the codes and ordinances in force in the town where a pending or repeated violation of 
any provision of this Code continues to exist. 

(c) To the extent that any provision of the Town Code, or Appendix hereto, references a 
Code Enforcement Board or to the extent that any Town of Melbourne Beach administrative 
policy, rule, or procedure, references a Code Enforcement Board, the term “Code Enforcement 
Board” shall be read and interpreted to be synonymous with the term “special magistrate” as 



         
  

            

 

 
      

     
 

 

 

      
     

 
 

             
        

         
 

       
          
            

  

        
    

  

67

defined in this article, and the special magistrate is hereby authorized to exercise any power vested 
in the Town Code Enforcement Board.  

SECTION 2. That Section 11-16, of the Town Code of the Town of Melbourne Beach, 

Florida, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

§11-16.  DEFINITIONS. 

For the purpose of this article, the following definitions shall apply unless the context 
clearly indicates or requires a different meaning. 

CODE INSPECTOR.  Any agent or employee of the town whose duty it is to assure 
code compliance.  Said agent or employee shall be designated by the Town Manager. 

ENFORCEMENT BOARD.  The Town Code Enforcement Board or boards. 

LOCAL GOVERNING BODY.  The Town Commission. 

LOCAL GOVERNING BODY ATTORNEY.  The Town Attorney. 

PERSON. Any natural person, individual, public or private corporation, firm, association, 
joint venture, partnership, municipality, government agency, public subdivision, public officer, or 
any other entity whatsoever, or any combination of such, jointly or severally. 

RECURRING VIOLATION.  A violation previously cited with a Notice of Violation and 
then cured before being presented to the special magistrate for a hearing within five years prior to 
the current violation. 

REPEAT VIOLATION. A violation of a provision of a code or ordinance by a person the 
special magistrate has previously found to have violated or who has admitted violating the same 
provision within five (5) years prior to the current violation, notwithstanding the violations occur 
at different locations. 

RESPONDENT OR VIOLATOR. A person responsible for the code violation, which 
includes the perpetrator and/or the owner of the real property upon which the violation occurred, 
who has been issued a notice of violation and/or has been ordered to correct a violation consistent 
with this article.  

SPECIAL MAGISTRATE. A person authorized to hold hearings and assess fines for the 
violation of Town codes and ordinances in accordance with Florida Statutes Chapter 162. 

TOWN. The Town of Melbourne Beach.    



            

    

      

 

             
  

            
           

          
       

           
    

 
              
              

     
          

          
            

           
         
         

   
 

            
          

               
         

         
 

 
              

   
 

           
             

           
   

 
          

          
 

68

SECTION 3. That Section 11-17, of the Town Code of the Town of Melbourne Beach, 

Florida, is hereby renamed and amended to read as follows: 

§11-17. ORGANIZATION ESTABLISHMENT OF CODE ENFORCEMENT SPECIAL 
MAGISTRATE. 

(a) The Town Commission shall appoint a five-member Code Enforcement Board and legal 
counsel for the Enforcement Board.  Members of the Enforcement Board shall be residents of the 
Town of Melbourne Beach at the time of appointment and throughout their entire terms. 
Appointments shall be made in accordance with applicable law and ordinances on the basis of 
experience or interest in the fields of zoning and building control. The membership of each 
Enforcement Board shall, whenever possible, include an architect, a business person, an engineer, 
a general contractor, a subcontractor and a realtor. The Town Commission may also provide for 
alternate members to the Enforcement Board. 

(b) The initial appointments to an Enforcement Board shall be as follows: one member appointed 
for a term of one year; two members appointed for a term of two years each and two members 
appointed for a term of three years each.  Thereafter, any appointment shall be made for a term of 
three years. A member may be reappointed upon approval of the Town Commission. An 
appointment to fill any vacancy on an Enforcement Board shall be for the remainder of the 
unexpired term of office. If any member fails to attend two of three successive meetings without 
cause and without prior approval of the Chairperson, the Enforcement Board shall declare the 
member's office vacant, and the Town Commission shall promptly fill such vacancy. The 
members shall serve in accordance with ordinances of the town and may be suspended and 
removed for cause as provided in such ordinances for removal of members of boards. 

(c) Each year at its first meeting in January or as soon thereafter as may be reasonably possible, 
the members of an Enforcement Board shall elect a Chairperson, who shall be a voting member, 
from among the members of the board. The presence of three or more members shall constitute a 
quorum of any Enforcement Board. Members shall serve without compensation, but may be 
reimbursed for such travel, mileage, and per diem expenses as may be authorized by the Town 
Commission or as are otherwise provided by law. 

(d) The Town Attorney shall be counsel to the town. In no event shall the Town Attorney 
prosecute cases before the Code Enforcement Board as a representative of an alleged violator. 

(a) There is hereby established a code enforcement special magistrate of the Town under authority 
of Ch.162, Fla. Stat. The special magistrate shall act as the hearing officer for violations of the 
codes and ordinances of the Town as provided in this article when violations of the codes and 
ordinances are not corrected following initial action by the Code Inspector. 

(b) The Town Commission shall select and appoint the special magistrate to such office. The 
special magistrate may be a licensed Florida attorney or retired judge of the State of Florida. 



              
      

 
            

  

 
        

 
    

               
 

   
  

                   

 
           

           

 
            

    

   
  

                 
        

          
 

 
                

              
        

          
           

         
         

 
             

            
         

  
 

69

(c) The special magistrate may be replaced when the Town Commission, at its sole discretion, 
so desires. 

SECTION 4. That Section 11-18, of the Town Code of the Town of Melbourne Beach, 

Florida, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

§11-18.  POWERS. 
(a) Each Enforcement Board The code enforcement special magistrate shall have the power to:

      (1)   Adopt rules for the conduct of its code enforcement violation hearings; 
(2) Subpoena alleged violators and witnesses to its code enforcement violation hearings.  

Subpoenas may be served by the County Sheriff or the town's Police Department;
      (3)   Subpoena evidence to code enforcement violation hearings;
      (4)   Take testimony under oath; and 

(5) Issue orders having the force of law to command whatever steps are necessary to bring a 
violation into compliance. 

(b) The Secretary of the Code Enforcement Board, or said Secretary's designee, is hereby 
empowered to act for the Board to issue subpoenas, and the Board shall have the power to quash 
any subpoena or issue protective orders. 

SECTION 5. That Section 11-19, of the Town Code of the Town of Melbourne Beach, 

Florida, is hereby renamed and amended to read as follows: 

§11-19.  ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURES; HEARINGSNOTICE. 

(a) It shall be the duty of the Code Inspector to initiate enforcement proceedings of the various 
codes described in § 11-15violations of the Town codes and ordinances.; however, no member of 
an Enforcement Board The special magistrate shall not have the power to initiate such enforcement 
proceedings. 

(b) Except as provided in divisions (c) and (d) of this section, if a violation of a particular code 
is found, the Code Inspector shall notify the violator and give a reasonable time to correct the 
violation. Should the violation continue beyond the time specified for correction, the Code 
Inspector shall notify an Enforcement Board and request a hearing shall set a hearing before the 
special magistrate and notify the respondent of the hearing pursuant to § 162.12, Fla. Stat., or as 
such section may be amended. The Code Enforcement Board, through its clerical staff, shall 
schedule a hearing and written notice of such hearing shall be hand delivered or mailed as provided 
by § 11-22 to the violator. At the option of the Code Enforcement Board, notice may additionally 
be served by publication or posting as provided in § 11-22. If the violation is corrected and then 
recurs or if the violation is not corrected by the time specified for correction by the Code Inspector, 
the case may be presented to the Enforcement Board special magistrate even if the violation has 
been corrected prior to the Board hearing and the notice shall so state. 



            
            

              
            

            
    

           

             
          

         
     

          
            

          
  

          
        

   

        
       

              
           

             
 

           
          

        
             

                
             

              
          

           
        

           
          

   
  

70

(c) If a repeat violation is found, the Code Inspector shall notify the violator but is not required 
to give the violator a reasonable time to correct the violation. The Code Inspector, upon notifying 
the violator of a repeat violation, shall notify the Enforcement Board and request a hearing set a 
hearing before the special magistrate and notify the respondent of the hearing pursuant to § 162.12, 
Fla. Stat., or as such section may be amended. The Enforcement Board, through its clerical staff, 
shall schedule a hearing and shall provide notice pursuant to § 11-22.  The case may be presented 
to the Enforcement Board special magistrate even if the violation has been corrected prior to the 
Board hearing and the notice shall so state. 

(d) If the Code Inspector has reason to believe a violation presents a serious threat to the public 
health, safety and welfare, or if the violation is irreparable or irreversible in nature, the Code 
Inspector shall make a reasonable effort to notify the violator and may immediately notify the 
Enforcement Board and request a hearing set a hearing before the special magistrate. 

(e) Upon request of the Code Inspector, or at such other times as may be necessary, the 
chairperson of the Enforcement Board may call a hearing of the Enforcement Board; a hearing 
also may be called by written notice signed by at least three members of an Enforcement Board. 
Minutes shall be kept of all hearings by the Enforcement Board, and all hearings and proceedings 
shall be open to the public. The Town Commission shall provide clerical and administrative 
personnel as may be reasonably required by each Enforcement Board for the proper performance 
of its duties. 

(1) Each case before the Enforcement Board shall be presented by the prosecuting attorney 
or by a member of the administrative staff of the Town Commission. 

(2) The Enforcement Board shall proceed to hear the cases on the agenda for that day. All 
testimony shall be under oath and shall be recorded. The Enforcement Board shall take testimony 
from the Code Inspector and the alleged violator. Formal rules of evidence shall not apply but 
fundamental due process shall be observed and shall govern the proceedings. 

(3) At the conclusion of the hearing, the Enforcement Board shall issue findings of fact based 
on evidence of record and conclusions of law, and shall issue an order affording the proper relief 
consistent with powers granted herein. The finding shall be by motion approved by a majority of 
those members present and voting. At least three members of the Code Enforcement Board must 
vote in order for the finding to be official. The order may include a notice that it must be complied 
with by a specified date and that a fine may be imposed if the order is not complied with by that 
date. A certified copy of such order may be recorded in the public records of the county and shall 
constitute notice to any subsequent purchasers, successors in interest or assigns if the violation 
concerns real property, and the findings therein shall be binding upon the violator and, if the 
violation concerns real property, any subsequent purchasers, successors in interest or assigns. If 
an order is recorded in the public records pursuant to this division and the order is complied with 
by the date specified in the order, the Enforcement Board shall issue an order acknowledging 
compliance which shall be recorded in the public records.  A hearing is not required to issue such 
an order acknowledging compliance. 



          
           

 

       
 

       
        

      
         

 

             
             

    

         
              

          
           

 

            
 

            

    

        

        
          
        

              
             
       

          
 

71

If the owner of property that is subject to an enforcement proceeding before the special magistrate, 
or court transfers ownership of such property between the time the initial pleading was served and 
the time of the hearing, such owner shall: 

(1) Disclose, in writing, the existence and the nature of the proceeding to the prospective 
transferee. 

(2) Deliver to the prospective transferee a copy of the pleadings, notices, and other 
materials relating to the code enforcement proceeding received by the transferor. 

(3) Disclose, in writing, to the prospective transferee that the new owner will be 
responsible for compliance with the applicable code and with orders issued in the code 
enforcement proceeding. 

(4) File a notice with the Code Inspector of the transfer of the property, with the identity 
and address of the new owner and copies of the disclosures made to the new owner, within five 
(5) days after the date of the transfer. 

(5) If the property is transferred before the hearing, the proceeding shall not be dismissed, 
but the new owner shall be provided a reasonable period of time to correct the violation before the 
hearing is held. Nothing herein shall prevent the Town from continuing to prosecute the pending 
code enforcement proceeding to its conclusion against either the previous owner and/or the new 
owner. 

(f) All notices required to be made as part of the Town’s code enforcement process shall be made 
as provided in § 162.12, Fla. Stat., or as such section may be amended. 

SECTION 6. That Section 11-20, of the Town Code of the Town of Melbourne Beach, 

Florida, is hereby renamed and amended to read as follows: 

§11-20. FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH ORDER OF BOARD CONDUCT OF HEARING. 

(a) The Enforcement Board, upon notification by the Code Inspector that an order of the 
Enforcement Board has not been complied with by the set time, or upon finding that a repeat 
violation has been committed, may order the violator to pay a fine in an amount specified in this 
section for each day the violation continues past the date set for compliance or, in the case of a 
repeat violation, for each day the repeat violation continues past the date of notice to the violator 
of the repeat violation.  If a finding of a violation or a repeat violation has been made as provided 
in this chapter, a hearing shall not be necessary for issuance of the order imposing the fine. 

(b) A fine imposed pursuant to this section shall not exceed $250 per day for a first violation 
and shall not exceed $500 per day for a repeat violation.  In determining the amount of the fine, if 
any, the Enforcement Board shall consider the following factors:  the gravity of the violation, any 



       

    

         
           

          
             

              
            

            
           

      
          

 

          
                

       
             

          
            

 

       
         

             
        

           
         

   

      
             

            
          

 

        
             

          
            

           

72

actions taken by the violator to correct the violation and any previous violations committed by the 
violator. 

(c) The Enforcement Board may reduce a fine imposed pursuant to this section. 

(d) A certified copy of an order imposing a fine may be recorded in the public records and 
thereafter shall constitute a lien against the land on which the violation exists and upon any other 
real or personal property owned by the violator. Upon petition to the circuit court, such order may 
be enforced in the same manner as a court judgment by the sheriffs of this state, including levy 
against the personal property. Such order shall not be deemed to be a court judgment except for 
enforcement purposes. A fine imposed pursuant to this part shall continue to accrue until the 
violator comes into compliance or until judgment is rendered in a suit to foreclosure on a lien filed 
pursuant to this section, whichever occurs first. After three months from the filing of any such 
lien which remains unpaid, the Enforcement Board may authorize the Town Attorney to foreclose 
on the lien. No lien created pursuant to the provisions of this division may be foreclosed on real 
property which is a homestead under Section 4, Article X of the State Constitution. 

(e) No lien provided for under Chapter 162, Florida Statutes, or this article shall continue for a 
period longer than 20 years after the certified copy of an order imposing a fine has been recorded 
unless within that time an action to foreclose on the lien is commenced in a court of competent 
jurisdiction. In an action to foreclose on a lien, the prevailing party is entitled to recover all costs, 
including a reasonable attorney's fee, that the prevailing party incurs in foreclosure of the lien. The 
continuation of the lien effected by the commencement of the action shall not be good against 
creditors or subsequent purchasers for valuable consideration without notice, unless a notice of lis 
pendens is recorded. 

(a) Administrative procedures. Upon request of the Code Inspector, or at such other time as may 
be necessary, the special magistrate or Town manager, through clerical staff, may call a hearing. 
The special magistrate shall cause minutes to be kept of all hearings and all hearings and records 
shall be open to the public. The Town Commission shall provide clerical and administrative 
personnel as may be reasonably required by the special magistrate for the proper performance of 
designated duties. The special magistrate may, at any hearing, set future hearing dates and may 
postpone or continue any matter before the special magistrate to a future date. 

(b) Representation. Each case before the special magistrate shall be presented either by the Town 
attorney, by the Code Inspector or by the Town Manager or designee. If the Town prevails in 
prosecuting a case it shall be entitled to recover all costs incurred in prosecuting the case before 
the special magistrate and such costs may be included in the lien authorized by § 162.07(2), Fla. 
Stat. Any person accused of a violation may be represented by counsel at the hearing. 

(c) Order of procedure and rules of evidence. At any given hearing, the special magistrate shall 
first take testimony and receive evidence from the Town, and the Town shall have the burden of 
proving the existence of the alleged violation by the preponderance of the evidence. At the 
conclusion of the presentation of the evidence of the Town, the alleged violator may present a case 
and submit evidence. Formal rules of evidence shall not apply, but fundamental procedural due 



           
  

 
         

         
    

       
            

       
            

                
          

           
          

         
          
          

         
           
            

        
 

 
            

    

       
 
        

            
           

 
 
              

           
             

               
       

          
          

           
        

          
             

          

73

process shall be observed and shall govern the said proceedings. All testimony shall be under oath 
and recorded. 

(d) Findings and orders. At the conclusion of the hearing, the special magistrate shall make a 
finding of fact, based on the evidence of record, and conclusions of law, and shall issue an order 
affording such relief as may be consistent with the powers granted herein. The findings and order 
shall be presented in written form and shall be served personally or by certified mail/return receipt 
requested upon the violator. The order may include a notice that the order must be complied with 
by a specific date and that a fine may be imposed if the order is not complied with by said date as 
provided in § 162.09(1), Fla. Stat. The order may specify the amount of the fine to be imposed and 
the date on which the fine will commence if the violation is not corrected. If the Town prevails 
then the cost of prosecution shall be included in the lien authorized under section 11-21. The cost 
of repairs may be included along with the fine if the order is not complied with by said date. A 
certified copy of such order may be recorded in the public records of the county and shall constitute 
notice to all subsequent purchases, successors in interest, or as assigned, if the violation concerns 
with real property and the findings therein shall be binding upon the violator and, if the violation 
concerns real property, any subsequent purchases, successors in interests, or assigns. If an order is 
recorded in the public records pursuant to this subsection and the order is compiled with by the 
date specified in the order, the special magistrate shall issue an order acknowledging compliance 
that shall be recorded in the public records. A hearing is not required to issue such an order 
acknowledging compliance provided by the general laws of Florida applicable to code 
enforcement. 

SECTION 7. That Section 11-21, of the Town Code of the Town of Melbourne Beach, 

Florida, is hereby renamed and amended to read as follows: 

§11-21.  APPEALS ADMINISTRATIVE FINES; COST OF REPAIRS; LIENS. 

An aggrieved party, including the Town Commission, may appeal a final administrative order of 
the Enforcement Board to the local circuit court. Such an appeal shall not be a hearing de novo 
but shall be limited to appellate review of the record created before the Enforcement Board. An 
appeal shall be filed within 30 days of the rendition of the order to be appealed. 

(a) The special magistrate, may either in the initial order or upon notification by the Code 
Inspector that an order has not been complied with or finding that a repeat violation has been 
committed, order the violator to pay a fine in an amount specified in this section for each day the 
violation continues past the date set by the special magistrate for compliance or, in the case of a 
repeat violation, for each day the repeat violation continues, beginning with the date the repeat 
violation is found to have occurred by the Code Inspector. In addition, if the special magistrate 
finds that the violation is a violation described in section 11-19 (d), the special magistrate shall 
notify the Town of such findings. The Town shall then have the right and power to make all 
reasonable repairs which are required to bring the property into compliance and charge the violator 
with the reasonable cost of the repairs along with the fine imposed pursuant to this section. Making 
such repairs does not create a continuing obligation on the part of the Town to make further repairs 
or to maintain the property and does not create any liability against the Town for any damages to 



          
           

             
          

 

        
          

          
    

            
 

            
 

 

    
         

 

     
    

     

       
       

         

         
     

74

the property if such repairs were completed in good faith. If a finding of a violation or repeat 
violation has been made as provided by this part, a hearing shall not be necessary for issuance of 
the order imposing the fine. If, after due notice and hearing, the special magistrate finds a violation 
to be irreparable or irreversible in nature, the special magistrate may order the violator to pay a 
fine as specified in subsection (b) of this section. 

(b) Fines. 

(1) A fine imposed pursuant to this section shall not exceed two hundred fifty dollars 
($250.00) per day for a first violation and shall not exceed five hundred dollars ($500.00) 
per day for a repeat violation, and in addition, may include all cost of repairs pursuant to 
this subsection and cost of prosecution provided in section 11-20 (d). However, if the 
special magistrate finds the violation to be irreparable or irreversible in nature, it may 
impose a fine not to exceed five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) per violation. 

(2) In determining the amount of the fine, if any, the special magistrate shall consider the 
following factors: 

a. The gravity of the violation; 
b. Any actions taken by the violator to correct the violation; and 
c. Any previous violations committed by the violator. 

(3) The special magistrate shall be authorized to consider aggravating and mitigating 
factors when determining the amount of fines and administrative costs associated with code 
violations. Such factors include, but are in no way limited to, the following: 

a. Mitigating factors. 

1. The violation was caused by circumstances beyond the control of 
the violator, such as a weather event; 

2. The violation has a limited impact on the surrounding community 
due to its nature or location; 

3. The amount the fine has accrued to in comparison to the nature of 
the violation and the value of the property in which the violation has 
occurred; 

4. The violator has violated the Code, at most, only once in the last five 
years and said violation did not pose a threat to the community; 

5. The violator does not have the ability to address the violations due 
to health issues; inability to enter the property; lack of legal 
authority; and/or financial reasons; 

https://5,000.00


          
 

       
   

          
 

       
  

         
      

         
 

          
       

 
   

        
          

              
            

       
         
            
 

            
          

       
              

        
            

             

75

6. The length of time it took for the violator to bring the property into 
compliance; or 

7. The property has a homestead exemption. 

b. Aggravating factors. 

1. The violator is a repeat offender of the same provision of the Code; 

2. The violator has created an unsafe condition that threatens public 
health, safety, and/or welfare; 

3. The violation has a high impact on the surrounding community; 

4. The length of time it took for the violator to bring the property into 
compliance; or 

5. The subsequent purchaser had or should have had actual and/or 
constructive knowledge of the fine(s) and/or lien(s). 

(c) The special magistrate may reconsider and reduce a fine imposed pursuant to this section. If 
a violator desires to request reconsideration of a fine, the following procedures must be followed: 

1. Any code violation for which an order has been rendered, must be in compliance. 
2. A written request must be made to the Code Inspector for an inspection to verify 

compliance of the violation subject to the order. 
3. After the Code Inspector has certified in writing that the violation for which an order has 

been rendered is in compliance, the violator must, within twenty (20) days of such certification by 
the Code Inspector, request in writing to the Code Inspector a reconsideration of the fine imposed 
by the special magistrate. 

4. The special magistrate may refer to the factors outlined in subsections (b)(2) and (3) of 
this section in reconsidering whether a fine previously imposed should be reduced. If any fine 
imposed pursuant to this article has not been recorded as a lien, the special magistrate’s decision 
on a request for reconsideration shall be deemed final. If any fine imposed pursuant to this article 
has been recorded as a lien in the public records of Brevard County, the special magistrate shall 
issue a recommendation to the Town Commission as to whether the fine imposed should be 
reduced. The Town Commission is not bound by the recommendation of the special magistrate 
and shall have the sole authority to determine for itself whether a fine imposed as lien should be 
reduced.  

(d) A certified copy of an order imposing a fine, or a fine plus repair cost may be recorded in the 
public records and thereafter shall constitute a lien against the land on which the violation exists 
and upon any other real or personal property owned by the violator. Upon petition to the circuit 
court, such order shall be enforceable in the same manner as a court judgement by the sheriffs of 
this state, including execution and levy against the personal property of the violator, but such order 
shall not be deemed to be a court judgement except for enforcement purposes. A fine imposed 
pursuant to this part shall continue to accrue until the violator comes into compliance or until 



             
 

             
          

  
 

            

    

   

             
        

       
           

   

        
 

       
          
            

          
 

    
           

          
          

            

    
             

            
 

           

 

76

judgement is rendered in a suit to foreclose on a lien filed pursuant to this section, whichever 
occurs first. A lien arising from a fine imposed pursuant to this section runs in favor of the Town, 
and the Town may execute a satisfaction or release of lien entered pursuant to this section. After 
three (3) months from the filing of any such lien which remains unpaid, the special magistrate may 
authorize the Town attorney to foreclose on the lien. No lien created pursuant to the provisions of 
this part may be foreclosed on real property which is a homestead. 

SECTION 8. That Section 11-22, of the Town Code of the Town of Melbourne Beach, 

Florida, is hereby renamed and amended to read as follows: 

§11-22. NOTICE REQUIREMENTS APPEALS. 

(a) All notices required by this article shall be provided to the alleged violator by certified mail, 
return receipt requested, or by hand delivery by the County Sheriff, a town police officer or other 
law enforcement officer, the Code Inspector, some other person designated by the Town 
Commission or by leaving notice at the violator's usual place of residence with any person residing 
therein who is above 15 years of age and informing such person of the contents of the notice. 

(b) In addition to providing notice as set forth in division (a) above, at the option of the Code 
Enforcement Board, notice may also be served by publication or posting, as follows: 

(1) Such notice shall be published once during each week of four consecutive weeks (four 
publications being sufficient) in a newspaper of general circulation in the county where the Code 
Enforcement Board is located. The newspaper shall meet such requirements as are prescribed 
under Chapter 50, Florida Statutes, for legal and official advertisements. Proof of publication shall 
be made as provided in Sections 50.041 and 50.051, Florida Statutes. 

(2) Notice by publication or posting may run concurrently with, or may follow, an attempt or 
attempts to provide notice by hand delivery or by mail as required under division (a) of this section. 

(c) Evidence that an attempt has been made to hand deliver or mail notice as provided in division 
(a) of this section, together with proof of publication or posting as provided in division (b) of this 
section, shall be sufficient to show that the notice requirements of this article have been met, 
without regard to whether or not the alleged violator actually received such notice. 

An aggrieved party, including the Town Commission, may appeal any final administrative order 
of the special magistrate to the circuit court. Such an appeal shall not be a hearing de novo but 
shall be limited to appellate review of the record created before the special magistrate. An appeal 
shall be filed within 30 days of the rendition of the order to be appealed. 

SECTION 9. That Section 1-26, of the Town Code of the Town of Melbourne Beach, 

Florida, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

§1-26. MINUTES 



   

 

  

  

        

 
 

  

     

            

 

  

   

        
         

               
         

   

  
   

77

* * * 

(e) Audio or video recordings of town commission or board meetings. 

(1) Video recordings of town commission or board meetings shall not be required to be 
made by the town. 

(2) Audio recordings of town commission, planning and zoning, board of adjustment, or 
code enforcement boardspecial magistrate meetings should be made, unless: 

(A) the meeting is closed to the public and exempt from the government-in-the-sunshine 
act,  § 286.011(2),  Fla. Stat.; 

(B) technical difficulties make it infeasible or impractical to have an audio recording; or 

(C) the town commission votes affirmatively to excuse the audio recording of a meeting, 
if permitted by the public records law, Ch. 119, Fla. Stat. 

(3) Posting of audio recordings on town website .  The audio recording of town 
commission, planning and zoning board, and board of adjustment meetings should be posted on 
the town web-site on the world wide web within 48 hours after the date of the meeting, 
Saturdays, Sundays and town holidays excluded.  Audio recordings of code enforcement board 
special magistrate meetings are not required to be posted on the town web-site. 

* * * 

SECTION 10. That Section 27-34, of the Town Code of the Town of Melbourne Beach, 

Florida, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

§27-34.  VIOLATIONS; ENFORCEMENT; PENALTIES. 

* * * 

(b) Appeal of notice of violation. Any person receiving a notice of violation may appeal the 
determination of the authorized enforcement agency. The notice of appeal must be received within 
ten days from the date of the notice of violation. Hearing on the appeal shall be before the town 
Code Enforcement Board special magistrate and shall take the date of receipt of the notice of 
appeal. The decision of the town shall be final. 

* * * 

(e) Any person found in violation and/or who fails to comply with the requirements of any 
provision of the article shall, without limitation on the town’s legal recourse, be subject to 
prosecution before the town’s Code Enforcement Board special magistrate. Each day of violation 
shall constitute a separate violation. 



   

            

    

   
  

    
   

   
 

            

   

     
  

   

       
  

            

 

        
  

            

 

   
 

78

* * * 

SECTION 11. That Section 46-20, of the Town Code of the Town of Melbourne Beach, 

Florida, is hereby renamed and amended to read as follows: 

§46-20.    ENFORCEMENT BY CODE ENFORCEMENT BOARDSPECIAL 
MAGISTRATE; PENALTIES FOR VIOLATIONS. 

The provisions of this chapter may be enforced by the Town Code Enforcement Board special 
magistrate with the penalties as provided in § 11-201, except that the provisions of § 46-21 
regarding the removal and destruction of certain personal property shall be the responsibility of 
the Police Department. 

SECTION 12. That Section 49-3, of the Town Code of the Town of Melbourne Beach, 

Florida, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

§49-3.  DISCHARGE OF CERTAIN WATER INTO PUBLIC SEWER SYSTEM AND 
STREETS PROHIBITED; ENFORCEMENT. 

* * * 

(c) The Code Enforcement Board special magistrate shall have the power to enforce the 
provisions of Articles I and II of this chapter. 

SECTION 13. That Section 49-54, of the Town Code of the Town of Melbourne Beach, 

Florida, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

§49-54.  PENALTIES. 

Violations of this article shall be subject to enforcement by the Code Enforcement Board of the 
Town of Melbourne Beach, or a town code enforcement special magistrate. 

SECTION 14. That Section 49-55, of the Town Code of the Town of Melbourne Beach, 

Florida, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

§49-55. REGISTRATION OF REAL PROPERTY MORTGAGEES HOLDING 
MORTGAGES IN DEFAULT. 



   

 
              

 

        

            

 

 

   

        
        

       
   

            

 

   

          
          

        
         

           

 

      
    

   

79

* * * 

(h) Failure of the mortgagee and/or property owner of record to properly register or to revise 
from time to time the registration to reflect a change of circumstances as required by this article 
is a violation of the Town Code and may result in a citation by the town’s code compliance 
division. Pursuant to a finding and determination by the town’s Code Enforcement Board or 
special magistrate, the town may take the necessary action to ensure compliance with this 
section. 

SECTION 15. That Section 49-56, of the Town Code of the Town of Melbourne Beach, 

Florida, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

§49-56.  MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS. 

* * * 

(e) Failure of the mortgagee and/or property owner of record to properly maintain the property is 
in violation of the town Code and may result in citation by the town’s code compliance division. 
Pursuant to a finding and determination by the town’s Code Enforcement Board or special 
magistrate, the town may take the necessary action to ensure compliance with this section. 

SECTION 16. That Section 49-57, of the Town Code of the Town of Melbourne Beach, 

Florida, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

§49-57. SECURITY REQUIREMENTS. 

* * * 

(f) Failure of the mortgagee and/or property owner of record to properly inspect and secure the 
property, and post and maintain the signage noted in this section, is a violation of this Code and 
may result in a citation by the town’s code compliance division. Pursuant to a finding and 
determination by the town’s Code Enforcement Board or special magistrate, the town may take 
the necessary action to ensure compliance with this section. 

SECTION 17. That Section 65-6, of the Town Code of the Town of Melbourne Beach, 

Florida, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

§65-6. DUE DATE FOR ANNUAL BUSINESS TAX; DELINQUENT PAYMENTS; 
PENALTY FOR FAILURE TO PAY ANNUAL BUSINESS TAX. 

* * * 



    
 

     

      

          

     

         

         

       

 

 

 

         

              

         

 

          

            

  

           

            

   

80

(c) All violations shall be referred to the Code Enforcement Board special magistrate for 
disposition in accordance with the penalties provided herein. 

SECTION 18. Severability/Interpretation Clause. 

(a) In the event that any term, provision, clause, sentence or section of this 

Ordinance shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be partially or wholly unenforceable 

or invalid for any reason whatsoever, any such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not 

affect any of the other or remaining terms, provisions, clauses, sentences, or sections of this 

Ordinance, and this Ordinance shall be read and/or applied as if the invalid, illegal, or 

unenforceable term, provision, clause, sentence, or section did not exist. 

(b) In interpreting the provisions of this Ordinance, the following rules and 

symbols shall apply: 

(1) Words underlined are additions to existing text. 

(2) Words stricken through are deletions from existing text. 

(3) Asterisks (* * *) indicates a deletion from the Ordinance of text existing 

in the Code of Ordinances. It is intended that the text in the Code of Ordinance denoted by the 

asterisks and not set forth in this Ordinance shall remain unchanged from the language existing 

prior to adoption of this Ordinance. 

SECTION 19. Codification. The provisions of this Ordinance shall be codified as, and 

become and be made a part of, the Town of Melbourne Beach Code of Ordinances. The sections 

of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered to accomplish such intention. 

SECTION 20. Ordinances and Resolutions in Conflict. All ordinances or resolutions 

or parts thereof that may be determined to be in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

SECTION 21. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption.  



     

          

       

 

 
 

    
 
 

      
 

 
       

  
 

_______________________ 

81

SECTION 22. Adoption Schedule. 

PASSED by the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach on first reading on 

the 16th day of September, 2020, and ADOPTED by the Town Commission of the Town of 

Melbourne Beach, Florida, on final reading on the 21st day of October, 2020. 

TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, FLORIDA 

By:____________________________ 
     JAMES D. SIMMONS, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
(TOWN SEAL) 

Jennifer Torres, 
Town Clerk 



82



  

  

   

   

 
    

  
  

  

    
 

  

   
 

 

   
 

   
 

   
 

    
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

83

Attachments: Ordinance 2020-06 

Date Prepared: 09/10/2020 

Prepared By: TA Repperger 

Meeting Date: 09/16/2020 RTCM 

Agenda Category: 
Proclamations & Awards X Public Hearings 
Presentations Old Business 
Boards & Committees New Business 
Consent Other: 

Subject: First Reading of Ordinance 2020-05 related to 
Police Officer’s Retirement System 

Recommended Action: Consider Approval of Ordinance 2020-05. 

Background Information: First Reading of Ordinance 2020-06, amending 
Section 11-54, Town Code of Ordinances, related to 
Police Officers Retirement System 

Attorney Bonni Jensen advised the Police Pension 
Board of the updates: “The amendment implements 
the federal SECURE Act that was signed into law by 
President Trump in December. The law, as it 
relates to Public Pension Plans, changes the age for 
the required minimum distributions from 70 ½ to age 
72 effective January 1, 2020.  Additionally, I am 
recommending that the Board’s request that the 
Town Commission give the Board the authority to 
adopt required tax compliance changes (like the 
SECURE Act) by policy and then request the Town 
Commission to add by Ordinance at a later date. 
This will help to keep the plan in compliance.  The 
SECURE Act change is mandatory.  The adoption 
of Tax changes by policy is discretionary, but 
recommended as a best practice.” 



 

  
     

     
    

   
   

     
      

     

  

 

         

 

 

84

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-06 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, BREVARD 
COUNTY, FLORIDA, RELATING TO THE POLICE OFFICERS' 
RETIREMENT SYSTEM; AMENDING SECTION 11-54, TOWN CODE, 
RETIREMENT; AMENDING SECTION 11-54 (k)(2), TOWN CODE, 
REQUIRED DISTRIBUTIONS, TO AMEND THE REQUIRED MINIMUM 
DISTRIBUTION AGE; AMENDING SECTION 11-54 (l)(4), TOWN CODE, 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS, TO ADD A NEW SUBSECTION 
ENTITLED QUALIFICATION OF SYSTEM; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY AND INTERPRETATION; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, changes to the Internal Revenue Code may happen quickly and 

frequently. There is a benefit in authorizing the Board to make appropriate changes to the 

Plan in order to maintain the Plan’s tax qualified status; 

WHEREAS, effective January 1, 2020, the Internal Revenue Code was amended 

by increasing the required minimum distribution age from 70½ to 72; 

WHEREAS, to implement the change, it is necessary to amend the Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission desires to make such changes to the Retirement 

Plan. 

BE IT ENACTED by the Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida: 

Section 1. That section 11-54(k)(2)(B) of the Town Code of the Town of 
Melbourne Beach, Florida, is hereby amended as follows: 

§ 11-54. RETIREMENT. 

* * * 

(k) Required distributions. 

* * * 

00159557.WPD;1 Page 1 of  3 



           

   
 

 

 
  

 
  

    
     

  
 

 
 

85

(2) Any and all benefit payments shall begin by the later of: 

(A) April 1 of the calendar year following the calendar year of the 
member’s retirement date; or 

(B) April 1 of the calendar year following the calendar year in which the 
member attains age 72 70 ½, provided the member had not 
attained age 70½ by December 31, 2019. 

* * * 

Section 2. That section 11-54(l) of the Town Code of the Town of Melbourne 

Beach, Florida, is hereby amended by adding new subsection (4) as follows: 

(l) Miscellaneous provisions. 

* * * 

(4) Qualification of system: 

(A) It is intended that the Plan be administered at all times in 
accordance with the provisions of the Internal Revenue 
Code and the corresponding Treasury Regulations 
applicable to a governmental defined benefit retirement 
plan. 

(B) In recognition of the changing requirements of Plan 
qualification, the Board shall adopt an administrative 
policy setting forth the required provisions for tax 
qualification. Such a policy shall be amended by the Board 
as required to maintain continuing compliance with the 
Internal Revenue Code and that policy and any 
amendments shall have the force of law as if adopted by 
the Town Commission. 

Section 3. Severability and Interpretation 

(a) In the event that any term, provision, clause, sentence or section of this 
Ordinance shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be partially or wholly 
unenforceable or invalid for any reason whatsoever, any such invalidity, illegality, or 
unenforceability shall not affect any of the other or remaining terms, provisions, clauses, 
sentences, or sections of this Ordinance, and this Ordinance shall be read and/or applied 
as if the invalid, illegal, or unenforceable term, provision, clause, sentence, or section did 
not exist. 

00159557.WPD;1 Page 2 of  3 



   

   
 

 
   

 

   
   

  

_____________________________________ 

86

(b) In interpreting the provisions of this Ordinance, the following rules and symbols 
shall apply: 

(1) Words underlined are additions to existing text. 

(2) Words stricken through are deletions from existing text. 

(3) Asterisks (* * *) indicates an omission from the Ordinance of text existing in 
the Code of Ordinances. It is intended that the text in the Code of 
Ordinances denoted by the asterisks and not set forth in this Ordinance shall 
remain unchanged from the language existing prior to adoption of this 
Ordinance. 

Section 4. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon 
adoption, unless another effective date is indicated by in the amendment. 

PASSED by the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach on first reading 
on the _______ day of ________________, 2020, and ADOPTED by the Town 
Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach, Brevard County, Florida, on second/final 
reading the ________ day of __________________, 2020. 

TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, 
FLORIDA 

By: ___________________________ 

Jim Simmons, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Jennifer Torres, Town Clerk (TOWN SEAL) 

00159557.WPD;1 Page 3 of  3 



  
 

  
  

  

   

  

 
   

  
   

  

  

  
    

    

87

Attachments: Emergency Order 2020-08 
Emergency Order 2020-09 
Draft of EO 2020-10 
Draft of EO 2020-11 

Date Prepared: 09/10/2020 

Prepared By: Mayor Simmons 

Meeting Date: 09/16/2020 

Agenda Category: 
Proclamations & Awards Public Hearings 
Presentations Old Business 
Boards & Committees X New Business 
Consent Other: 

Subject: Emergency Orders related to Face Masks 

Recommended Action: Consideration of extending Emergency Order 2020-
08 and 2020-09 – Mayor Simmons 

Background Information: Current EO’s expire 09/17/2020 



88

Town of Melbourne Beach 
EMERGENCY ORDER NO. 2020-08 

AN EMERGENCY ORDER OF THE TOWN OF 
MELBOURNE BEACH, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
REQUIRING FACE COVERINGS AT ALL INDOOR TOWN 
FACILITIES TO MINIMIZE THE SPREAD OF COVID-19; 
MAKING LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS OF EMERGENCY AND 
SUPPORTING THE WEARING OF FACE COVERINGS AS 
AN EFFECTIVE MEASURE AGAINST THE SPREAD OF 
COVID-19; PROVIDING FOR FACE COVERING 
REQUIREMENTS; PROVIDING FOR EXCEPTIONS; 
PROVIDING FOR PENAL TIES; PROVIDING FOR SUNSET; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Governor Desantis issued Executive Order No. 20-51 on March 1, 
2020 directing the Florida Department of Health to issue a Public Health Emergency; and 

WHEREAS, the State of Florida Surgeon General and State Health Officer 
declared on March 1, 2020 that a public health emergency exists in the State of Florida as 
a result of COVID-19; and 

WHEREAS, Governor Desantis issued Executive Order No. 20-52 on March 9, 
2020 declaring a state of emergency for the entire State of Florida as a result of 
COVID-19; as extended by Executive Order No. 20-113 and Executive Order No. 20-166; 
and 

WHEREAS, President Donald J . Trump and the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention ("CDC") issued the 15 Days to Slow the Spread guidance on March 16, 2020 
advising individuals to adopt far-reaching social distancing measures, and avoiding 
gatherings of more than 10 people; and 

WHEREAS, Governor Desantis issued Executive Order No. 20-68 on March 17, 
2020, in partial response to information reflecting individuals were not adhering to the 
CDC's social distancing measures and gathering limitations; and 



89

EMERGENCY ORDER 2020-08 PAGE2 

WHEREAS, between March 17, 2020 and the date hereof, Governor Desantis 
issued several Executive Orders placing numerous restrictions on individuals and 
businesses in response to the Statewide level and threat of the COVID-19 virus; and 

WHEREAS, President Donald J. Trump updated and extended the previously 
issued 15 Days to Slow the Spread guidance on March 31, 2020, renamed it 30 Days to 
Slow the Spread, and along with the White House Coronavirus Task Force urged 
Americans to continue to adhere to the guidelines and expand community mitigation 
efforts; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Melbourne Beach ("the Town") adopted a Proclamation 
declaring a Civil Emergency/State of Local Emergency ("the Proclamation") on March 18, 
2020 declaring a local state of emergency for the Town regarding the COVID-19 
emergency; and 

WHEREAS, as part of the Proclamation, the Town authorized the exercise of its 
authority and powers regarding the COVID-19 emergency to be exercised under the 
direction of the Mayor to the extent necessary to protect the public health, safety and 
welfare and the best interests of the Town, and 

WHEREAS, on April 29, 2020, Governor Desantis issued Executive Order 
#20-112 as modified by Executive Order #20-120 on May 9, 2020, and Executive Order 
#20-123 on May 14, 2020, in response to the recommendations set forth in Phase One of 
the Plan issued by the Task Force to Re-Open Florida, and adopted a phased approach 
to remove or decrease certain restrictions imposed pursuant to the Executive Order 
#20-91, Safer-At-Home Order; and 

WHEREAS, on June 3· 2020, Governor Desantis issued Executive Order #20-139, 
moving all counties in Florida, other than Miami-Dade, Broward, and Palm Beach 
counties, into Phase Two issued by the Task Force to Re-Open Florida, which order 
supersedes Executive Order #20-91, the Safer-At-Home Order, and supersedes in part, 
and extends and modified, other provisions of Executive Order 20-112; and 

WHEREAS, guidance released by the CDC on June 15, 2020 states that (i) the 
COVID-19 virus is mostly spread by respiratory droplets released when people cough, 
sneeze and talk and (ii) that a person can get COVID-19 by touching a surface or object 
that has the virus on it and then by touching their mouth, nose or possibly their eyes. 
This guidance goes on to state that "personal prevention practices (such as staying home 
when sick, social distancing, wearing a cloth face covering, and handwashing) and 
environmental prevention practices (such as cleaning and disinfection) are important are 
important ways to prevent the spread of COVID-19; and 

WHEREAS, the CDC has expressly found that "COVID-19 spreads mainly from 
person to person through respiratory droplets produced when a person coughs, sneezes 



90

EMERGENCY ORDER 2020-08 PAGE3 

or talks. These droplets can land on the mouths or noses of people nearby and possibly 
inhaled into the lungs. Studies and evidence on infection control report that these droplets 
usually travel around 6 feet (about "2 arms' length"); and 

WHEREAS, the CDC therefore specifically recommends that as businesses and 
communities reopen, and people resume their daily activities, people should wear face 
coverings to slow the spread of COVID-19 particularly in "pubic settings where other 
social distancing measures are difficult to maintain"; and 

WHEREAS, on June 20, 2020, the State of Florida Surgeon General, Scott A. 
Rivkees, M.D., issued a Public Health Advisory recommending the wearing of face 
coverings in any setting where social distancing is not possible, except under certain 
circumstances; and 

WHEREAS, Sections 876.12 through 876.15 of the Florida Statutes, make it 
unlawful to wear a mask, however, pursuant to Section 876.155, Florida Statutes, this 
prohibition of mask wearing only applies when there is also evidence that there is an 
intent to intimidate other people, deprive them equal protection under the law, or engage 
in criminal conduct; and 

WHEREAS, based on the information provided by the Florida Department of 
Health in Brevard County, and updated daily, the COVID-19 cases in the Town of 
Melbourne Beach has been rising substantially since the re-opening of the State of 
Florida; and 

WHEREAS, based on the advice of medical professionals, the number of 
COVID-19 cases will continue to rise unless measures are instituted to stop the spread of 
the COVID-19 virus; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission resolves that it is in the best interest of the 
residents of the Town of Melbourne Beach and it is the furtherance of the public health, 
safety, and welfare, to formally adopt this Order to require face coverings in indoor Town 
owned and operated facilities as specified herein on an emergency basis in accordance 
with Chapter 16 of the Town of Melbourne Beach Ordinances. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ENACTED BY AN EMERGENCY ORDER BY THE TOWN 
COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, FLORIDA, as follows: 

Section 1. The above recitals are adopted by the Town Commission as 
legislative findings. 



91

EMERGENCY ORDER 2020-08 PAGE4 

Section 2. Definitions. 

"Face Covering" shall mean a uniform piece of material that securely 
covers a persons' nose and mouth and remains affixed in place without the use of one's 
hands, whether store-bought or homemade, concurrent with CDC guidelines. 

"Social Distancing" shall mean keeping space between yourself and 
other people by staying at least 6 feet (or approximately 2 arms' length) from other 
people. 

Section 3. Face Coverings Required. 

(a). Every Person living, working, or visiting the Town of Melbourne 
Beach shall wear a face covering in every indoor Town owned and operated 
facility. 
Section 4. Exceptions. 

(a) Persons under the age of 6 years old; or 
(b) Persons observing social distancing under the CDC guidelines; 

or 
(c) Persons for whom a face covering would cause impairment due 

to an existing health condition; or 
(d) Persons working in a business or profession who do not have 

contact with other people; or 
(e) Persons working in a business or profession who maintain 

continuous social distancing from another person; or 
(f) Persons working in a business or profession where working with 

a face covering would prevent them from performing the duties of 
the business or profession; or 

(g) Persons exercising while maintaining social distancing; and 
(h) Persons eating or drinking; or 
(i) Public safety, fire, and other life safety and public health 

personnel, as their personal protection equipment will be 
governed by their respective agencies; or 

(j) This requirement shall not apply when a person who is hearing 
impaired needs to see the mouth of someone wearing a face 
covering in order to communicate. 

Section 5. Penalties. 

(a). Civil Citation. Any person violating the terms of this Emergency Order and 
found in violation may be punished and fined up to $100.00 by the Police Department. A 
warning and a complimentary mask will be provided for a first offense; the fine for a 



92

EMERGENCY ORDER 2020-08 PAGE 5 

second offense shall be $50.00, and the fine for a third or more offense shall be $100.00 
for each of the third and successive offense(s). 

Section 6. Severability. In the event a court of competent jurisdiction shall 
hold or determine that any part of this Order is invalid or unconstitutional, the remainder of 
Order not be affected and it will be presumed that the Town Commission for the Town of 
Melbourne Beach did not intend to enact such invalid or unconstitutional provision. It 
shall further be assumed that the Town Commission would have enacted the remainder 
of this Order without said invalid and unconstitutional provision thereby causing said 
remainder to remain in full force and effect. 

Section 7. Conflicts. All ordinances or parts of ordinances or orders or parts 
of orders in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

Section 8. Effective Date and Sunset. This Emergency Order shall 
become effective on Friday, August 21 at 12:01 am., and shall sunset at 12:00 midnight 
on Thursday, September 17, 2020. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the Town to be 
affixed in Melbourne Beach, Florida on this 19th Day of August, 2020. 

ATTEST 

e 



93

Town of Melbourne Beach 
EMERGENCY ORDER NO. 2020-09 

AN EMERGENCY ORDER OF THE TOWN OF 
MELBOURNE BEACH, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
REQUIRING ALL BUSINESSES TO POST THEIR MASK 
POLICY AT THE ENTRY OF THE BUSINESS TO ADVISE 
CUSTOMERS, PATRONS, EMPLOYEES AND BUSINESS 
INVITEES OF SAME PRIOR TO ENTERING THE 
BUSINESSES; REQUIRING CUSTOMERS, PATRONS, 
EMPLOYEES AND BUSINESS INVITEES OF ESSENTIAL 
BUSINESSES, AS DEFINED HEREIN, TO WEAR MASKS; 
MAKING LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS OF EMERGENCY AND 
SUPPORTING THE WEARING OF FACE COVERINGS AS 
AN EFFECTIVE MEASURE AGAINST THE SPREAD OF 
COVID-19; PROVIDING FOR EXCEPTIONS; PROVIDING 
FOR PENAL TIES; PROVIDING FOR SUNSET; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Governor Desantis issued Executive Order No. 20-51 on March 1, 
2020 directing the Florida Department of Health to issue a Public Health Emergency; and 

WHEREAS, the State of Florida Surgeon General and State Health Officer 
declared on March 1, 2020 that a public health emergency exists in the State of Florida as 
a result of COVID-19; and 

WHEREAS, Governor Desantis issued Executive Order No. 20-52 on March 9, 
2020 declaring a state of emergency for the entire State of Florida as a result of 
COVID-19; as extended by Executive Order No. 20-113 and Executive Order No. 20-166; 
and 

WHEREAS, President Donald J. Trump and the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention ("CDC") issued the 15 Days to Slow the Spread guidance on March 16, 2020 
advising individuals to adopt far-reaching social distancing measures, and avoiding 
gatherings of more than 10 people; and 



94

EMERGENCY ORDER 2020-09 PAGE 2 

WHEREAS, Governor DeSantis issued Executive Order No. 20-68 on March 17, 
2020, in partial response to information reflecting individuals were not adhering to the 
CDC's social distancing measures and gathering limitations; and 

WHEREAS, between March 17, 2020 and the date hereof, Governor Desantis 
issued several Executive Orders placing numerous restrictions on individuals and 
businesses in response to the Statewide level and threat of the COVID-19 virus; and 

WHEREAS, President Donald J. Trump updated and extended the previously 
issued 15 Days to Slow the Spread guidance on March 31, 2020, renam ed it 30 Days to 
Slow the Spread, and along with the White House Coronavirus Task Force urged 
Americans to continue to adhere to the guidelines and expand community mitigation 
efforts; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Melbourne Beach ("the Town") adopted a Proclamation 
declaring a Civil Emergency/State of Local Emergency ("the Proclamation") on March 18, 
2020 declaring a local state of emergency for the Town regarding the COVID-19 
emergency; and 

WHEREAS, as part of the Proclamation, the Town authorized the exercise of its 
authority and powers regarding the COVID-19 emergency to be exercised under the 
direction of the Mayor to the extent necessary to protect the public health, safety and 
welfare and the best interests of the Town, and 

. WHEREAS, on April 29, 2020, Governor Desantis issued Executive Order 
#20--112 as modified by Executive Order #20-120 on May 9, 2020, and Executive Order 
#20-123 on May 14, 2020, in response to the recommendations set forth in Phase One of 
the Plan issued by the Task Force to Re-Open Florida, and adopted a phased approach 
to remove or decrease certain restrictions imposed pursuant to the Executive Order 
#20-91, Safer-At-Home Order; and 

WHEREAS, on June 3· 2020, Governor Desantis issued Executive Order #20-139, 
moving all counties in Florida, other than Miami-Dade, Broward, and Palm Beach 
counties, into Phase Two issued by the Task Force to Re-Open Florida, which order 
supersedes Executive Order #20-91, the Safer-At-Home Order, and supersedes in part, 
and extends and modified, other provisions of Executive Order 20-112; and 

WHEREAS, guidance released by the CDC on June 15, 2020 states that (i) the 
COVID-19 virus is mostly spread by respiratory droplets released when people cough, 
sneeze and talk and (ii) that a person can get COVID-19 by touching a surface or object 
that has the virus on it and then by touching their mouth, nose or possibly their eyes. 
This guidance goes on to state that "personal prevention practices (such as staying home 
when sick, social distancing, wearing a cloth face covering , and handwashing) and 
environmental prevention practices (such as cleaning and disinfection) are important are 
important ways to prevent the spread of COVID-19; and 



95

EMERGENCY ORDER 2020-09 PAGE3 

WHEREAS, the CDC has expressly found that "COVID-19 spreads mainly from 
person to person through respiratory droplets produced when a person coughs, sneezes 
or talks. These droplets can land on the mouths or noses of people nearby and possibly 
inhaled into the lungs. Studies and evidence on infection control report that these droplets 
usually travel around 6 feet (about "2 arms' length"); and 

WHEREAS, the CDC therefore specifically recommends that as businesses and 
communities reopen, and people resume their daily activities, people should wear face 
coverings to slow the spread of COVID-19 particularly in "pubic settings where other 
social distancing measures are difficult to maintain"; and 

WHEREAS, on June 20, 2020, the State of Florida Surgeon General, Scott A 
Rivkees, M.D., issued a Public Health Advisory recommending the wearing of face 
coverings in any setting where social distancing is not possible, except under certain 
circumstances; and 

WHEREAS, Sections 876.12 through 876.15 of the Florida Statutes, make it 
unlawful to wear a mask, however, pursuant to Section 876.155, Florida Statutes, this 
prohibition of mask wearing only applies when there is also evidence that there is a11 
intent to intimidate other people, deprive them equal protection under the law, or engage 
in criminal conduct; and 

WHEREAS, based on the information provided by the Florida Department of 
Health in Brevard County, and updated daily, the COVID-19 cases in the Town of 
Melbourne Beach has been rising substantially since the re-opening of the State of 
Florida; and 

WHEREAS, based on the advice of medical professionals, the number of 
COVI D-19 cases will continue to rise unless measures are instituted to stop the spread of 
the COVID-19 virus; and 

WHEREAS, the State of Florida has the highest percentage of population in the 
United States 65 years of age and older, as well as the second largest population of that 
demographic; and 

WHEREAS, based upon recent updated census estimates, the demographic of 
residents 65 years of age and older living in the Town of Melbourne Beach is 18.7%; and 

WHEREAS, according to the CDC, the vast majority of persons that test positive 
for the COVID-19 virus that are hospitalized or die from the virus are persons over the age 
of 65 years and/or have underlying health conditions; and 

WHEREAS, according the CDC, overall, 31 % of cases, 45% of hospitalizations, 
53% of ICU admissions, and 80% of deaths associated with COVID-19 were among 



96

EMERGENCY ORDER 2020-09 PAGE4 

adults aged 65 years of age and older with the highest percentage of severe outcomes 
among persons aged 85 years of age and older; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission has determined that it is in the best interest of 
the residents of the Town of Melbourne Beach and it is the furtherance of the public 
health, safety, and welfare, to formally adopt this Order to require all businesses to post 
their face covering policy to alert older persons and persons with underlying conditions 
whether or not all other persons within a business will have face coverings as a way to 
make informed decisions to enter a business; as specified herein on an emergency basis 
in accordance with Chapter 16 of the Town of Melbourne Beach Ordinances and require 
businesses that are deemed essential to the needs of all residents to require face 
coverings for all patrons. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY AN EMERGENCY ORDER BY THE 
TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, FLORIDA, as follows: 

Section 1. The above recitals are adopted by the Town Commission as 
legislative findings. 

Section 2. Definitions. 

"Face Covering" shall mean a uniform piece of material that securely 
covers a person's nose and mouth and remains affixed in place without the use of one's 
hands, whether store-bought or homemade, concurrent with CDC guidelines. 

Section 3. Businesses Required to Post Face Coverings Policy on their 
Doorway. 

(a). Every business in the Town of Melbourne Beach with a 
storefront that allows customers into their building for the purpose of purchasing 
goods and services are required to post their Policy requirements for Face 
Coverings for their customers, patrons and employees. 

(b ). The Policy shall be posted on the entry doorway in a clearly 
visible manner for all customers to read prior to entering the business. 

(c). All businesses are encouraged to prohibit entry of any person 
who is not wearing a face covering with the exception of the below listed persons: 

1. Persons under the age of 6 years old; or 
2. Persons for whom a face covering would cause impairment 

due to an existing health condition; or 
3. Persons exercising while maintaining social distancing; or 
4. Persons eating or drinking; or 



97

EMERGENCY ORDER 2020-09 PAGE 5 

5. When a person who is hearing impaired needs to see the 
mouth of someone wearing a face covering in order to 
communicate. 

Section 4. "Essential" businesses required to mandate Face Coverings 
for all customers and employees. 

(a). Every business in the Town of Melbourne Beach with a 
storefront that allows customers in their building for the purpose of purchasing 
goods and services that are deemed to be essential to all residents (gas stations, 
convenience stores, grocery stores, and drug stores) are required to mandate face 
coverings for their customers, patrons, employees and business invitees. 

(b). The mandate shall be posted on the entry doorway in a clearly 
visible manner for all customers to read prior to entering the business. 

(c). Essential businesses are required to prohibit entry of any 
person who is not wearing a face covering with the exception of the below listed 
persons: 

I . Persons under the age of 6 years old; or 
2. Persons for whom a face covering would cause impairment due 

to an existing health condition; or 
3. Persons eating or drinking; or 
4. When a person who is hearing impaired needs to see the mouth 

of someone wearing a face covering in order to communicate. 

Section 5. Penalties. 
(a). Civil Citation. Any person violating the terms of this Emergency Order and 

found in violation may be punished and fined up to $100.00 by the Police Department. A 
warning and a complimentary mask will be provided for a first offense; the fine for a 
second offense shall be $50.00, and the fine for a third or more offense shall be $100.00 
for each of the third and successive offense(s). 

Section 6. Severability. In the event a court of competent jurisdiction shall 
hold or determine that any part of this Order is invalid or unconstitutional, the remainder of 
the Order shall not be affected and it will be presumed that the Town Commission for the 
Town of Melbourne Beach did not intend to enact such invalid or unconstitutional 
provision. It shall further be assumed that the Town .Commission would have enacted 
the remainder of this Order without said invalid and unconstitutional provision thereby 
causing said remainder to remain in full force and effect. 

Section 7. Conflicts. All ordinances or parts of ordinances or orders or parts 
of orders in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 



98

EMERGENCY ORDER 2020-09 PAGE 6 

Section 8. Effective Date and Sunset. This Emergency Order shall become 
effective on Friday, August 21 at 12:01 am ., and shall sunset at 12:00 midnight on 
Thursday, September 17, 2020. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the Town to 
be affixed in Melbourne Beach, Florida on this 19th Day of August, 2020. 

ATTEST 

D. Simmons, Mayor 



       
     

       
       

      
    

       
     

    
     
     
  

99

Town of Melbourne Beach 

EMERGENCY ORDER NO. 2020-10 

AN EMERGENCY ORDER OF THE TOWN OF 
MELBOURNE BEACH, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
REQUIRING FACE COVERINGS AT ALL INDOOR TOWN 
FACILITIES TO MINIMIZE THE SPREAD OF COVID-19; 
MAKING LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS OF EMERGENCY AND 
SUPPORTING THE WEARING OF FACE COVERINGS AS 
AN EFFECTIVE MEASURE AGAINST THE SPREAD OF 
COVID-19; PROVIDING FOR FACE COVERING 
REQUIREMENTS; PROVIDING FOR EXCEPTIONS; 
PROVIDING FOR PENALTIES; PROVIDING FOR SUNSET; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Governor Desantis issued Executive Order No. 20-51 on March 1, 
2020 directing the Florida Department of Health to issue a Public Health Emergency; and 

WHEREAS, the State of Florida Surgeon General and State Health Officer 
declared on March 1, 2020 that a public health emergency exists in the State of Florida as 
a result of COVID-19; and 

WHEREAS, Governor Desantis issued Executive Order No. 20-52 on March 9, 
2020 declaring a state of emergency for the entire State of Florida as a result of 
COVID-19; as extended by Executive Order No. 20-113 and Executive Order No. 20-166; 
and 

WHEREAS, President Donald J. Trump and the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention ("CDC") issued the 15 Days to Slow the Spread guidance on March 16, 2020 
advising individuals to adopt far-reaching social distancing measures, and avoiding 
gatherings of more than 10 people; and 

WHEREAS, Governor Desantis issued Executive Order No. 20-68 on March 17, 
2020, in partial response to information reflecting individuals were not adhering to the 
CDC's social distancing measures and gathering limitations; and 



100

EMERGENCY ORDER 2020-10 PAGE 2 

WHEREAS, between March 17, 2020 and the date hereof, Governor Desantis 
issued several Executive Orders placing numerous restrictions on individuals and 
businesses in response to the Statewide level and threat of the COVID-19 virus; and 

WHEREAS, President Donald J. Trump updated and extended the previously 
issued 15 Days to Slow the Spread guidance on March 31, 2020, renamed it 30 Days to 
Slow the Spread, and along with the White House Coronavirus Task Force urged 
Americans to continue to adhere to the guidelines and expand community mitigation 
efforts; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Melbourne Beach ("the Town") adopted a Proclamation 
declaring a Civil Emergency/State of Local Emergency ("the Proclamation") on March 18, 
2020 declaring a local state of emergency for the Town regarding the COVID-19 
emergency; and 

WHEREAS, as part of the Proclamation, the Town authorized the exercise of its 
authority and powers regarding the COVID-19 emergency to be exercised under the 
direction of the Mayor to the extent necessary to protect the public health, safety and 
welfare and the best interests of the Town. and 

WHEREAS, on April 29, 2020, Governor Desantis issued Executive Order 
#20-112 as modified by Executive Order #20-120 on May 9, 2020, and Executive Order 
#20-123 on May 14, 2020, in response to the recommendations set forth in Phase One of 
the Plan issued by the Task Force to Re-Open Florida, and adopted a phased approach 
to remove or decrease certain restrictions imposed pursuant to the Executive Order 
#20-91, Safer-At-Home Order; and 

WHEREAS, on June 3· 2020, Governor Desantis issued Executive Order#20-139, 
moving all counties in Florida, other than Miami-Dade, Broward, and Palm Beach 
counties, into Phase Two issued by the Task Force to Re-Open Florida, which order 
supersedes Executive Order #20-91, the Safer-At-Home Order, and supersedes in part, 
and extends and modified, other provisions of Executive Order 20-112; and 

WHEREAS, guidance released by the CDC on June 15, 2020 states that (i) the 
COVID-19 virus is mostly spread by respiratory droplets released when people cough, 
sneeze and talk and (ii) that a person can get COVID-19 by touching a surface or object 
that has the virus on it and then by touching their mouth, nose or possibly their eyes. 
This guidance goes on to state that "personal prevention practices (such as staying home 
when sick, social distancing, wearing a cloth face covering, and handwashing) and 
environmental prevention practices (such as cleaning and disinfection) are important are 
important ways to prevent the spread of COVID-19; and 

WHEREAS, the CDC has expressly found that "COVID-19 spreads mainly from 
person to person through respiratory droplets produced when a person coughs, sneezes 



101

EMERGENCY ORDER 2020-10 PAGE3 

or talks. These droplets can land on the mouths or noses of people nearby and possibly 
inhaled into the lungs. Studies and evidence on infection control report that these droplets 
usually travel around 6 feet (about "2 arms' length"); and 

WHEREAS, the CDC therefore specifically recommends that as businesses and 
communities reopen, and people resume their daily activities, people should wear face 
coverings to slow the spread of COVI D-19 particularly in "pubic settings where other 
social distancing measures are difficult to maintain"; and 

WHEREAS, on June 20, 2020, the State of Florida Surgeon General, Scott A. 
Rivkees, M.D., issued a Public Health Advisory recommending the wearing of face 
coverings in any setting where social distancing is not possible, except under certain 
circumstances; and 

WHEREAS, Sections 876.12 through 876.15 of the Florida Statutes, make it 
unlawful to wear a mask, however, pursuant to Section 876.155, Florida Statutes, this 
prohibition of mask wearing only applies when there is also evidence that there is an 
intent to intimidate other people, deprive them equal protection under the law, or engage 
in criminal conduct; and 

WHEREAS, based on the information provided by the Florida Department of 
Health in Brevard County, and updated daily, the COVID-19 cases in the Town of 
Melbourne Beach has been rising substantially since the re-opening of the State of 
Florida; and 

WHEREAS, based on the advice of medical professionals, the number of 
COVID-19 cases will continue to rise unless measures are instituted to stop the spread of 
the COVID-19 virus; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission resolves that it is in the best interest of the 
residents of the Town of Melbourne Beach and it is the furtherance of the public health, 
safety, and welfare, to formally adopt this Order to require face coverings in indoor Town 
owned and operated facilities as specified herein on an emergency basis in accordance 
with Chapter 16 of the Town of Melbourne Beach Ordinances. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ENACTED BY AN EMERGENCY ORDER BY THE TOWN 
COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, FLORIDA, as follows: 

Section 1. The above recitals are adopted by the Town Commission as 
legislative findings. 



 

102

EMERGENCY ORDER 2020-10 PAGE4 

Section 2. Definitions. 

"Face Covering" shall mean a uniform piece of material that securely 
covers a persons' nose and mouth and remains affixed in place without the use of one's 
hands, whether store-bought or homemade, concurrent with CDC guidelines. 

"Social Distancing" shall mean keeping space between yourself and 
other people by staying at least 6 feet (or approximately 2 arms' length) from other 
people. 

Section 3. Face Coverings Required. 

(a). Every Person living, working, or visiting the Town of Melbourne 
Beach shall wear a face covering in every indoor Town owned and operated 
facility. 
Section 4. Exceptions. 

(a) Persons under the age of 6 years old; or 
(b) Persons observing social distancing under the CDC guidelines; 

or 
(c) Persons for whom a face covering would cause impairment due 

to an existing health condition; or 
(d) Persons working in a business or profession who do not have 

contact with other people; or 
(e) Persons working in a business or profession who maintain 

continuous social distancing from another person; or 
{f) Persons working in a business or profession where working with 

a face covering would prevent them from performing the duties of 
the business or profession; or 

(g) Persons exercising while maintaining social distancing; and 
(h) Persons eating or drinking; or 
(i) Public safety, fire, and other life safety and public health 

personnel, as their personal protection equipment will be 
governed by their respective agencies; or 

U) This requirement shall not apply when a person who is hearing 
impaired needs to see the mouth of someone wearing a face 
covering in order to communicate. 

Section 5. Penalties. 

(a). Civil Citation. Any person violating the terms of this Emergency Order and 
found in violation may be punished and fined up to $100.00 by the Police Department. A 
warning and a complimentary mask will be provided for a first offense; the fine for a 



____________________ _____________________ 

103

EMERGENCY ORDER 2020-10 PAGE 5 

second offense shall be $50.00, and the fine for a third or more offense shall be $100.00 
for each of the third and successive offense(s). 

Section 6. Severability. In the event a court of competent jurisdiction shall 
hold or determine that any part of this Order is invalid or unconstitutional, the remainder of 
Order not be affected and it will be presumed that the Town Commission for the Town of 
Melbourne Beach did not intend to enact such invalid or unconstitutional provision. It 
shall further be assumed that the Town Commission would have enacted the remainder 
of this Order without said invalid and unconstitutional provision thereby causing said 
remainder to remain in full force and effect. 

Section 7. Conflicts. All ordinances or parts of ordinances or orders or parts 
of orders in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

Section 8. Effective Date and Sunset. This Emergency Order shall become 
effective on Friday, September 18, 2020 at 12:01 am., and shall sunset at 12:00 midnight 
on Thursday, October 22, 2020. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the Town to 
be affixed in Melbourne Beach, Florida on this 16h Day of September 2020. 

ATTEST 

Jennifer Torres, Town Clerk James D. Simmons, Mayor 



104



      
    

      
        

    
      

   
     
      

     
      

      
    

   
   

105

Town of Melbourne Beach 

EMERGENCY ORDER NO. 2020-11 

AN EMERGENCY ORDER OF THE TOWN OF 
MELBOURNE BEACH, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
REQUIRING ALL BUSINESSES TO POST THEIR MASK 
POLICY AT THE ENTRY OF THE BUSINESS TO ADVISE 
CUSTOMERS, PATRONS, EMPLOYEES AND BUSINESS 
INVITEES OF SAME PRIOR TO ENTERING THE 
BUSINESSES; REQUIRING CUSTOMERS, PATRONS, 
EMPLOYEES AND BUSINESS INVITEES OF ESSENTIAL 
BUSINESSES, AS DEFINED HEREIN, TO WEAR MASKS; 
MAKING LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS OF EMERGENCY AND 
SUPPORTING THE WEARING OF FACE COVERINGS AS 
AN EFFECTIVE MEASURE AGAINST THE SPREAD OF 
COVID-19; PROVIDING FOR EXCEPTIONS; PROVIDING 
FOR PENALTIES; PROVIDING FOR SUNSET; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Governor Desantis issued Executive Order No. 20-51 on March 1, 
2020 directing the Florida Department of Health to issue a Public Health Emergency; and 

WHEREAS, the State of Florida Surgeon General and State Health Officer 
declared on March 1, 2020 that a public health emergency exists in the State of Florida as 
a result of COVID-19; and 

WHEREAS, Governor Desantis issued Executive Order No. 20-52 on March 9, 
2020 declaring a state of emergency for the entire State of Florida as a result of 
COVID-19; as extended by Executive Order No. 20-113 and Executive Order No. 20-166; 
and 

WHEREAS, President Donald J. Trump and the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention ("CDC") issued the 15 Days to Slow the Spread guidance on March 16, 2020 
advising individuals to adopt far-reaching social distancing measures, and avoiding 
gatherings of more than 10 people; and 



106

EMERGENCY ORDER 2020-11 PAGE 2 

WHEREAS, Governor Desantis issued Executive Order No. 20-68 on March 17, 
2020, in partial response to information reflecting individuals were not adhering to the 
CDC's social distancing measures and gathering limitations; and 

WHEREAS, between March 17, 2020 and the date hereof, Governor Desantis 
issued several Executive Orders placing numerous restrictions on individuals and 
businesses in response to the Statewide level and threat of the COVID-19 virus; and 

WHEREAS, President Donald J. Trump updated and extended the previously 
issued 15 Days to Slow the Spread guidance on March 31, 2020, renamed it 30 Days to 
Slow the Spread, and along with the White House Coronavirus Task Force urged 
Americans to continue to adhere to the guidelines and expand community mitigation 
efforts; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Melbourne Beach ("the Town") adopted a Proclamation 
declaring a Civil Emergency/State of Local Emergency ("the Proclamation") on March 18, 
2020 declaring a local state of emergency for the Town regarding the COVID-19 
emergency; and 

WHEREAS, as part of the Proclamation, the Town authorized the exercise of its 
authority and powers regarding the COVID-19 emergency to be exercised under the 
direction of the Mayor to the extent necessary to protect the public health, safety and 
welfare and the best interests of the Town, and 

. WHEREAS, on April. 29, 2020, Governor DeSantis. issued Executive Order 
#20--112 as modified by Executive Order #20-120 on May 9, 2020, and Executive Order 
#20-123 on May 14, 2020, in response to the recommendations set forth in Phase One of 
the Plan issued by the Task Force to Re-Open Florida, and adopted a phased approach 
to remove or decrease certain restrictions imposed pursuant to the Executive Order 
#20-91, Safer-At-Home Order; and 

WHEREAS, on June 3· 2020, Governor Desantis issued Executive Order #20-139, 
moving all counties in Florida, other than Miami-Dade, Broward, and Palm Beach 
counties, into Phase Two issued by the Task Force to Re-Open Florida, which order 
supersedes Executive Order #20-91, the Safer-At-Home Order, and supersedes in part, 
and extends and modified, other provisions of Executive Order 20-112; and 

WHEREAS, guidance released by the CDC on June 15, 2020 states that (i) the 
COVID-19 virus is mostly spread by respiratory droplets released when people cough, 
sneeze and talk and (ii) that a person can get COVID-19 by touching a surface or object 
that has the virus on it and then by touching their mouth, nose or possibly their eyes. 
This guidance goes on to state that "personal prevention practices (such as staying home 
when sick, social distancing, wearing a cloth face covering, and handwashing) and 
environmental prevention practices (such as cleaning and disinfection) are important are 
important ways to prevent the spread of COVID-19; and 



• 

107

EMERGENCY ORDER 2020-11 PAGE3 

WHEREAS, the CDC has expressly found that "COVID-19 spreads mainly from 
person to person through respiratory droplets produced when a person coughs, sneezes 
or talks. These droplets can land on the mouths or noses of people nearby and possibly 
inhaled into the lungs. Studies and evidence on infection control report that these droplets 
usually travel around 6 feet (about "2 arms' length"); and 

WHEREAS, the CDC therefore specifically recommends that as businesses and 
communities reopen, and people resume their daily activities, people should wear face 
coverings to slow the spread of COVID-19 particularly in "pubic settings where other 
social distancing measures are difficult to maintain"; and 

WHEREAS, on June 20, 2020, the State of Florida Surgeon General, Scott A 
Rivkees, M.D., issued a Public Health Advisory recommending the wearing of face 

coverings in any setting where social distancing is not possible, except under certain 
circumstances; and 

WHEREAS, Sections 876.12 through 876.15 of the Florida Statutes, make it 
unlawful to wear a mask, however, pursuant to Section 876.155, Florida Statutes, this 
prohibition of mask wearing only applies when there is also evidence that there is a11. 
intent to intimidate other people, deprive them equal protection under the law, or engage 
in criminal conduct; and 

WHEREAS, based on the information provided by the Florida Department of 
Health in Brevard County, and updated daily, the COVID-19 cases in the Town of 
Melbourne Beach has been rising substantially since the re-opening of the State of 
Florida; and 

WHEREAS, based on the advice of medical professionals, the number of 
COVI D-19 cases will continue to rise unless measures are instituted to stop the spread of 
the COVID-19 virus; and 

WHEREAS, the State of Florida has the highest percentage of population in the 
United States 65 years of age and older, as well as the second largest population of that 
demographic; and 

WHEREAS, based upon recent updated census estimates, the demographic of 
residents 65 years of age and older living in the Town of Melbourne Beach is 18.7%; and 

WHEREAS, according to the CDC, the vast majority of persons that test positive 
for the COVID-19 virus that are hospitalized or die from the virus are persons over the age 
of 65 years and/or have underlying health conditions; and 

WHEREAS, according the CDC, overall, 31 % of cases, 45% of hospitalizations, 
53% of ICU admissions, and 80% of deaths associated with COVID-19 were among 



108

EMERGENCY ORDER 2020-11 PAGE4 

adults aged 65 years of age and older with the highest percentage of severe outcomes 
among persons aged 85 years of age and older; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission has determined that it is in the best interest of 
the residents of the Town of Melbourne Beach and it is the furtherance of the public 
health, safety, and welfare, to formally adopt this Order to require all businesses to post 
their face covering policy to alert older persons and persons with underlying conditions 
whether or not all other persons within a business will have face coverings as a way to 
make informed decisions to enter a business; as specified herein on an emergency basis 
in accordance with Chapter 16 of the Town of Melbourne Beach Ordinances and require 
businesses that are deemed essential to the needs of all residents to require face 
coverings for all patrons. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY AN EMERGENCY ORDER BY THE 
TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, FLORIDA, as follows: 

Section 1. The above recitals are adopted by the Town Commission as 
legislative findings. 

Section 2. Definitions. 

"Face Covering" shall mean a uniform piece of material that securely 
covers a person's nose and mouth and remains affixed in place without the use of one's 
hands, whether store-bought or homemade, concurrent with CDC guidelines. 

Section 3. Businesses Required to Post Face Coverings Policy on their 
Doorway. 

(a). Every business in the Town of Melbourne Beach with a 
storefront that allows customers into their building for the purpose of purchasing 
goods and services are required to post their Policy requirements for Face 
Coverings for their customers, patrons and employees. 

(b ). The Policy shall be posted on the entry doorway in a clearly 
visible manner for all customers to read prior to entering the business. 

(c). All businesses are encouraged to prohibit entry of any person 
who is not wearing a face covering with the exception of the below listed persons: 

1. Persons under the age of 6 years old; or 
2. Persons for whom a face covering would cause impairment 

due to an existing health condition; or 
3. Persons exercising while maintaining social distancing; or 
4. Persons eating or drinking; or 



• 

109

EMERGENCY ORDER 2020-11 PAGE 5 

5. When a person who is hearing impaired needs to see the 
mouth of someone wearing a face covering in order to 
communicate. 

Section 4. "Essential" businesses required to mandate Face Coverings 
for all customers and employees. 

(a). Every business in the Town of Melbourne Beach with a 
storefront that allows customers in their building for the purpose of purchasing 
goods and services that are deemed to be essential to all residents (gas stations, 
convenience stores, grocery stores, and drug stores) are required to mandate face 
coverings for their customers, patrons, employees and business invitees. 

(b). The mandate shall be, posted on the entry doorway in a clearly 
visible manner for all customers to read prior to entering the business. 

(c). Essential businesses are required to prohibit entry of any 
person who is not wearing a face covering with the exception of the below listed 
persons: 

l. Persons under the age of 6 years old; or 
2. Persons for whom a face covering would cause impairment due 

to an existing health condition; or 
3. Persons eating or drinking; or 
4. When a person who is hearing impaired needs to see the mouth 

of someone wearing a face covering in order to communicate. 

Section 5. Penalties. 
(a). Civil Citation. Any person violating the terms of this Emergency Order and 

found in violation may be punished and fined up to $100.00 by the Police Department. A 
warning and a complimentary mask will be provided for a first offense; the fine for a 
second offense shall be $50.00, and the fine for a third or more offense shall be $100.00 
for each of the third and successive offense(s). 

Section 6. Severability. In the event a court of competent jurisdiction shall 
hold or determine that any part of this Order is invalid or unconstitutional, the remainder of 
the Order shall not be affected and it will be presumed that the Town Commission for the 
Town of Melbourne Beach did not intend to enact such invalid or unconstitutional 
provision. It shall further be assumed that the Town .Commission would have enacted 
the remainder of this Order without said invalid and unconstitutional provision thereby 
causing said remainder to remain in full force and effect. 

Section 7. Conflicts. All ordinances or parts of ordinances or orders or parts 
of orders in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 



  
 

 

  

    

____________________ _____________________ 

110

EMERGENCY ORDER 2020-11 PAGE 6 

Section 8. Effective Date and Sunset. This Emergency Order shall become 

effective on Friday, September 18, 2020 at 12:01 am., and shall sunset at 12:00 
midnight on Thursday, October 22, 2020. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the Town to 
be affixed in Melbourne Beach, Florida on this 16th Day of September, 2020. 

ATTEST 

Jennifer Torres, Town Clerk James D. Simmons, Mayor 



  
  

  

   

  

 
   

  
   

  

  

  

 

   
  

 

  
 

   
 
 
 

  
 

  
 

111

Attachments: Sollensys Blockchain Archive Server & Municipality 
Ransomware Attacks Article 

Date Prepared: 9/9/20 

Prepared By: Vice Mayor Hoover 

Meeting Date: 9/16/20 

Agenda Category: 
Proclamations & Awards Public Hearings 
Presentations Old Business 
Boards & Committees x New Business 
Consent Other: 

Subject: Sollensys Blockchain Archive Server 

Recommended Action: Approve purchase of the Sollensys Blockchain 
Server to improve the Town’s data security and to 
replace our current cloud storage services 

Background Information: Sollensys CEO, Don Beavers, will be in attendance 
to present details on the product and to answer any 
questions. 

At least 174 municipal institutions suffered 
ransomware attacks in 2019, according to research 
from antivirus software provider Kaspersky. This 
represents a 60 percent year-over-year increase. 
In addition, cybercriminals demanded an average 
ransom amount of approximately $1 million and 
requested ransoms up to $5.3 million from 
municipalities this year, Kaspersky reported. They 
also frequently used the Ryuk, Purga and Stop 
malware families during their municipality 
ransomware attacks. 



112

Municipality Ransomware Attacks Up 
60% in 2019, Kaspersky Research 
Finds 
At least 174 municipal institutions suffered ransomware attacks in 2019, a 60% year-
over-year increase, antivirus software provider Kaspersky says. 

by Dan Kobialka • Dec 31, 2019 

At least 174 municipal institutions suffered ransomware attacks in 2019, according to 
research from antivirus software provider Kaspersky. This represents a 60 percent 
year-over-year increase. 

In addition, cybercriminals demanded an average ransom amount of approximately 
$1 million and requested ransoms up to $5.3 million from municipalities this year, 
Kaspersky reported. They also frequently used the Ryuk, Purga and Stop malware 
families during their municipality ransomware attacks. 

https://www.msspalert.com/cybersecurity-research/municipality-ransomware-attacks-2019/
https://usa.kaspersky.com/v1


 

 

 

113

Notable Municipality Ransomware Attacks in 2019 

Cybercriminals launched many ransomware attacks against cities, towns and 
government organizations in 2019, including: 

December 2019: The town of East Greenwich, Rhode Island battled and 
mitigated a ransomware attack. 
Dec. 7, 2019: The city of Pensacola, Florida suffers a cyberattack that impacts 
its phones, email and various e-commerce services. 
Nov. 18, 2019: A ransomware attack shuts down Louisiana state websites and 
many online government services. 
July 25, 2019: City Power, the electric utility for Johannesburg, South 
Africa, discloses a ransomware attack. 
June 26, 2019: Lake City, Florida agrees to pay the ransom associated with a 
ransomware attack. 
June 20, 2019: Riviera Beach, Florida, discloses ransomware attack and 
payment. 
May 7, 2019: City of Baltimore hit with a ransomware attack. 
April 2019: Cleveland Hopkins International Airport suffered a ransomware 
attack. 
April 2019: Augusta, Maine, suffered a malware attack that froze the city’s 
network and forced the city center to close. 
April 2019: Hackers stole roughly $498,000 from the city of Tallahassee, 
Florida. 
March 2019: Albany, New York, suffered a ransomware attack. 
March 2019: Jackson County, Georgia officials paid cybercriminals $400,000 
after a cyberattack shut down the county’s computer systems. 
March 2018: Atlanta, Georgia suffered a ransomware attack. 
February 2018: Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) employee 
computers were temporarily shut down due to a SamSam ransomware virus 
cyberattack. 

https://zix.com/partners/become-a-partner
https://www.msspalert.com/cybersecurity-breaches-and-attacks/ransomware/east-greenrich-recovery/
https://www.msspalert.com/cybersecurity-breaches-and-attacks/ransomware/pensacola-cyberattack-details/
https://www.msspalert.com/cybersecurity-breaches-and-attacks/ransomware/louisiana-attack-update/
https://www.msspalert.com/cybersecurity-breaches-and-attacks/ransomware/city-power-johannesburg-south-africa/
https://www.msspalert.com/cybersecurity-breaches-and-attacks/ransomware/lake-city-florida-pays-hackers/
https://www.msspalert.com/cybersecurity-breaches-and-attacks/ransomware/riviera-beach-florida-malware-attack/
https://www.msspalert.com/cybersecurity-news/ransomware-attack-hits-baltimore-city-servers/
https://www.msspalert.com/cybersecurity-breaches-and-attacks/ransomware/cleveland-airport-attack-update/
https://www.msspalert.com/cybersecurity-news/augusta-maine-malware-attack/
https://www.msspalert.com/cybersecurity-breaches-and-attacks/hackers-steal-498000-from-tallahassee-florida/
https://www.msspalert.com/cybersecurity-breaches-and-attacks/ransomware/albany-ny-malware/
https://www.msspalert.com/cybersecurity-breaches-and-attacks/ransomware/georgia-county-pays-400000/
https://www.msspalert.com/cybersecurity-news/atlanta-ransomware-update-city-refuses-cyber-kidnappers-demands-still-assessing-damage/
https://www.msspalert.com/cybersecurity-breaches-and-attacks/colorado-dot-suffers-samsam-ransomware-attack-shuts-down-2k-computers/


114

There are many things that municipalities can do to combat ransomware attacks, such 
as: 

Implement data backup software and services. 
Deploy endpoint, network and cloud security solutions. 
Provide employees with cybersecurity awareness training. 
Perform regular software updates and patching. 
Use two-factor authentication (2FA). 

Also, partnering with an MSSP can help a municipality prepare for cyberattacks. 
MSSPs can offer security services and insights that enable municipalities to optimize 
their security posture and limit the risk of data breaches. 

Related Content 

Top 200 Managed Security Services Providers (MSSP) Company List 
Top 20 Managed Detection and Response (MDR) Company List 
SOCaaS Company List 
Guest Bloggers on MSSP Alert 
Subscribe to MSSP Alert’s Newsletter 

Return Home 

No Comments 

Leave a Reply 

Your email address will not be published. Required fields are marked * 

https://www.watchguard.com/wgrd-partners/channel-partner-program?utm_source=MSSPAlert&utm_medium=display&utm_campaign=MSSP-Alert-2020
https://www.msspalert.com/cybersecurity-news/ransomware-attacks-some-u-s-cities-towns-still-dont-get-it/
http://www.msspalert.com/top200
https://www.msspalert.com/cybersecurity-research/top-20-managed-detection-and-response-mdr-companies/
https://www.msspalert.com/cybersecurity-services-and-products/soc/as-a-service-for-msps/
https://www.msspalert.com/cybersecurity-guests/
https://www.msspalert.com/sign-up-for-enewsletter/
https://www.msspalert.com/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=_Rq8-M14BKU


  
 

A

Never have your 

The Blockchain 
Archive ServerTM 

Eliminate ransomware disruptions. 

A turn-key solution that can stand alone 

or seamlessly integrate into an existing 

data infrastructure to quickly recover 

from a cyber attack. Data Key 

data held hostage. 

Encryption 

2x 

The Blockchain Archive Server 
encrypts, fragments & distributes 
data across hundreds of secure 
nodes everyday, which makes 
it vitually impossible for hackers 
to compromise. 

THE DISTRIBUTIVE ADVANTAGE 

Encrypted Fragmented Distributed 

Unlike other systems Your information is then Across hundreds 
both data & keys fragmented into millions of nodes & two 

are encrypted. of encrypted bits. seperate networks. 

www.sollensys.com 

www.sollensys.com


  
 

 

About Sollensys 
Sollensys Corp is a U.S. based team 

of academics, PhDs & industry 
experts with decades of data 

security management experience. 

DISTRIBUTIVE DATA 

1 (866) GET-SOLS 

info@sollensys.com 

US OTC PINK: SOLS 

SOLLENSYS CORP. 

4275 Palm Bay Road NE, 
Suite 120 Palm Bay, FL 33905 

Ransomware isa 
 growing threat. 

increase 
this year 56% 

2020 

2019

42% of companies 

Suffered ransomware attacks 
with in the last twelve months. 

$84k average direct cost 

Indirect cost from downtime & 
reputational harm average $713K. 

www.sollensys.com 

www.sollensys.com


  
 

    
    

       
       

    

    

    
 

 
    

    

    

     

 
   

  

   
 

         
      

  
 

   
 

      
 

     
 

       
   

 
     

  
 

       
 

     
      

      
  

 

117

Attachments: Hostile Work Environment definition 
Res. 2011-06 
12-23-2005 FL Today Article 
2004 FL Today Article 
Social Media Posts, Emails against Staff & Officials 
Documents proving statements know to be false 

Date Prepared: Aug 29, 2020 

Prepared By: Commissioner Quarrie 

Meeting Date: Sept 16, 2020 

Agenda Category: 

Proclamations & Awards Public Hearings 

Presentations Old Business 

Boards & Committees X New Business 

Consent Other: 

Subject: Civility, Respectful Communication and 
Accountability for creating hostile environment 

Recommended Action: Stop the behavior towards our Town Hall and promote the 
productive governing. 

Background Information:  A history of hostile statements and actions towards 
Town Staff and Commissioners over a period of many 
years. 

 Opinion stated as facts. 

 Minimizing qualifications and credentials. 

 Untrue scenario’s stated as truth against others. 

 Personal Interpretation of policies pushed as correct 
when proven wrong by Attorney’s. 

 Untrue statements against Staff under guise of 
amendment rights to do so. 

 Continuous attacks and claims of conspiracy. 

 Failure to stop this behavior may make the entire 
Commission appear complicit in or party to violating 
workplace rights. We need to take any action available 
as a Commission. 



   

 

    

    

   

    

 

  

  

     

 

     

  

    

    

          

    

  

 

    

       

  

 

     

  

   

   

  

    

 

118

Resolution 2011-06 regarding Civility and Respect states We will avoid rhetoric intended to humiliate, 

Choose our words carefully avoid distortion, speak out against violence, prejudice, and incivility in all 

forms. This Resolution was directed towards Commissioners. 

There are Human Resource laws which assure the workplace of the same and more measures that 

employees are guaranteed. If these workplace rules are violated and leadership does not press for 

change, we may all face possible violation determinations. We need accountability. 

This history is provided with exerts from newspapers articles, documents available from social media 

posts such as http://straighttalkmelbeach32951.blogspot.com/. 

The reason for my agenda item is to try to stop this unnecessary behavior towards our Town and 

promote the productive governing and positive unity currently in the Town Hall. The Town does not 

need a repeat of chaos or legal issues that some attributed to mis- treatment of residents and staff 

going back to the 1980’s. 

This is part of a longer list of instances I believe show the need for change. 

Town employees deserve an environment to be productive and thrive.  Change needs to happen to 

protect our Town from possible legal fees in the future. It is unfortunate this behavior has continued in 

our small community for so many years. In closing, please see the article from 2005 from Commissioner 

Price advising the commission of the same behavior we are experiencing now. 

Email and Social Media Posts: 

 Oct 2019: and there is no "chain of command" policy as demonstrated by the department 

head(s) conspiracy to oust Town Manager Bob Daniels as articulated by Commissioner Runte in 

his naming of the department heads that had contacted him and confirmed by Vice Mayor 

Hoover and Mayor Simmons at the March 2019 special called meeting where Bob Daniels was 

terminated.   Past Manager relieved of duty by majority vote. Attorney advised Town to hold a 

Special Meeting for the process to be done to protect the Town. When you’re approached by 

different staff members and seeing negative behavior trends yourself the longer someone is 

employed, you are going to pay attention. Personally, when I felt a time sensitive item that I was 

concerned with couldn’t be left in the Town managers hands because I didn’t have confidence in 

him, I knew it was time.  

 Post again in July 2020: The finance clerk who wasn’t even remotely qualified for the position of 

Town manager was appointed Town Manager after having the department heads at the time 

http://straighttalkmelbeach32951.blogspot.com/


    

  

  

    

 

  

 

   

  

    

 

 

   

 

        

  

  

     

    

 

   

   

     

 

 

   

    

 

 

119

(police chief, public works director, finance clerk, town clerk) secretly call certain town 

commissioners to complain and have him fired. See above statement. Also Mr. Walters is 

intentionally degrading Finance Managers position to “clerk” when he knows very well what the 

position title is. 

 Post 2020: Commission required to publicly advertise for Town Manager position prior to 

appointing.  Town attorney memorandum stated; NO, The Town Commission is not required to 

publicly advertise or solicit applicant candidates for the Town Manager position prior to 

appointing an individual to serve as Town Manager. 

 Email 2019: I received a complaint reference your hiring of the and I quote you, “experienced 

Finance Manager”. I will be investigating and inquiring into these most recent complaints. Town 

Manager is in charge of staff. Manager’s duty is to research a complaint when produced by 

anyone. Sec 3.03 states “Town Commission” not singular. He is not allowed to create a 

threatening environment using “Conspiracy” in the email.  Mr. Walter’s should have produced 

any complaint including< complainant name, received to Manager. 

 Post 2019: the Town Manager in violation hired two people and set their salaries. A little put 

out with your boss for once again setting salaries without Town Commission approval.: The 

Department  staff needs due to turn over were discussed between Town Manager and 

Commission during budget meetings and Commission meeting staff reports.  Again budget 

accepted with salary amounts per department and everyone voted to bring it forward for public 

comment and acceptance. 

 Post; I had no idea a Lieutenant was being hired. 

 Commission consensus 5 to 0 approving hiring of Lieutenant due to 2 officers leaving the 

department. July meeting minutes You voted for it!! Salary for police department already 

approved. Lieutenant salary does not exceed that amount. Officer increases will not be released 

due to negotiations as stated by Town Manager. 

 Post: published budget message was false in part with the town manager saying salary 

increases this coming fiscal year would be 2 to 3% when in fact they are 2% to 20%. 

June Budget meeting: 



 

 

   

  

  

  

  

      

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

     

 

   

   

  

     

 

 

    

  

 

120

All salary increases and reasons a few were getting higher than 2 to 3 % increases disclosed and 

discussed. Email stating salary increases prior and during budget meeting. 

 Personnel shown in Budget backup: 

 Finance Manager $62,979. 

 Deputy Town Clerk $20,800. 

 Building Clerk new position $33,280. 

 Police Department salary total $550,261. 

Commission decided and voted to forward this Budget with all back up material to public hearings July 

17th. At budget workshop. 

Sept budget: 

 Finance Manager $58,000.  ( $4,979 reduction in salary) 

 Deputy Town Clerk $20,800.  ( Same as June budget hearings) 

 Building Clerk new position $33,280. (Same as June budget hearings) 

 Police Department salary total $542,401. ($7,860. Reduction in salary costs) 

 

June public budget workshop staffing needs statement . See page 3 for salaries. 2.5 to 3% Staff 

Salary increases presented  based on employee performance to reduce turn over. Staff that has 

the most responsibility and /or do not receive overtime, received larger increases. 2 department 

heads received higher increases based on performance. One public works position needed to be 

brought up to same pay scale since job requirements are equal. Building Dept. employees had 

pay increases of 10.93% and 10.%. Permit fees pay all costs of the department employees and 

contracted Inspection Company. Permit fee income can only be used for this department. All 

commissioners know this. These salaries aren’t paid by tax payer income. 

 July public Commission meeting millage rate discussion from 9% increase to 10% in case 

commission wanted to increase storm water fund.  Voted by Commission 5 in favor to 0 

opposed. Current proposed is 9% change. 

 Post: I don’t know, he actually got a promotion so I assume a large raise as well. 

July public commission meeting presentation by Building Dept. Beth Crowell shows significant 

increased workloads to satisfy resident needs. Staffing needs discussed with Commission 

agreeing the department needs to increase personnel based on report. Position filled by Lateral 



 

   

 

 

    

 

 

 

    

    

 

       

    

 

   

      

 

 

     

  

    

 

 

    

    

   

 

 

   

 

121

Movement of a current employee. His pay scale went from $15.6250 to $16.00 per hour. Again 

Building Dept. permit fees pay all costs of the department employees and contracted Inspection 

Company. All commissioners know this. 

 Post: The drone: Public safety was the reason given once I discovered the purchase. Not 

budgeted. Not approve. Purchased by terminated Town Manager Daniels that one commissioner 

thought should stay on. Same commissioner “helped” Manager Daniels with contract 

suggestions after terms were already agreed to. These suggestions increased  Manager’s 

contract to the Town. The increases in the contract were not communicated to the Town prior 

to meeting. A Commissioner said during a public meeting he had “one on one” conversations 

even after termination. Daniels continued demands for more after leaving office. 

 Post: Commission required to publicly advertise for Town Manager position prior to appointing. 

Town attorney memorandum stated; NO, The Town Commission is not required to publicly 

advertise or solicit applicant candidates for the Town Manager position prior to appointing an 

individual to serve as Town Manager 

 Post 2019 regarding sandbags provided by Commissioner Runte. Mr. Walters stated in the long 

post: 1.What a joke Corey Runte is.   2. He votes 100% of the time as told and now running for re-

election suddenly decides to stay for a storm and help out.  3.“ He lied about his residency last 

year when he ran for office. 4.He voted to change Town Manager job description so his Pal could 

get the job. 4. Here is my summary of this snowflake: Snowflake meaning plain and simple; He 

has an inflated sense of uniqueness and unwarranted sense of entitlement, overly-emotional, 

easily offended, and unable to deal with opposing opinions. Corey Runte made sand bags 

available to Town residents at his expense. He also filled the bags with his brother and loaded 

them or delivered them if resident was unable to manage. No additional response needed!! 

 Post 2019: Unqualified acting Town Manager did not send out boil water notice: Melbourne 

Water Utilities required to notice residents in all affected areas. Town and Police Dept. had their 

notice posted on website and Facebook. Also Nixle site directions for email alerts during 

hurricane’s.. 

Police Department : Untrue narrative towards department’s current leadership on line. Here is the 

Truth. 



 

    

  

 

   

   

 

    

 

    

 

  

            

        

    

      

122

Police Department Facts: 

 Post: New Town Manager was given a push to appoint her. : Police Chief was promoted by Town 

Manager Daniels because he wanted to promote from within in all departments when 

opportunities presented. Officer was promoted to Police Chief after serving multiple years with 

the department. 

 Post: The position required a college degree so she got one on the internet from a non-accredited 

college. Degree earned from Columbia Southern University. University complies with standards 

of accreditation until Jan 2021. 

 Post: Police Chief pushed officer into cooler: Officer Accusations investigated by CPS HR 

Consulting with opinion that they did not find sufficient and conclusive evidence to support 

complaint. 

 Post: This exodus must stop. Harassment, revenge motivated witch hunt. 1. Officer accepted 

conditional offer of employment while on sick leave. Officer stated since resignation would not 

cause manpower issues it is effective immediately. 2. Resignation received by Officer due to his 

schedule. Schedule discussed during interview process. 3. Officer resigned due to family medical 

concerns that need his immediate attention and expenses. Chief said for him to take his 2 week 

notice and stay home to take care of his family. This exchange was witnessed by another officer 

and a union representative. 

Closing Statement: Failure to stop these types of behavior towards our Staff may make the entire 

Commission appear complicit in or party to it. Staff have workplace rights that supersede a Commissioner 

perceived Amendment Right to exhibit such behavior as a position of Town authority. 

We need to take any action available as a Commission. 



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



  

 
    

 

 
   

  
   

  

  

   

     
  

 
   

  
   

    
  

  
 

169

Attachments: Photo of swing 

Date Prepared: 09-10-2020 

Prepared By: PWS Tom Davis 

Meeting Date: 09-16-2020 

Agenda Category: 
Proclamations & Awards Public Hearings 
Presentations Old Business 
Boards & Committees x New Business 
Consent Other: 

Subject: Swing in Ryckman Park 

Recommended Action: Discussion / possible action 

Background Information: A longtime resident has requested that we install a 
porch type swing in Ryckman Park near the river. 
The resident expressed that this type of swing 
would likely get considerable use. 
Research revealed a swing of that style is available 
in a very heavy wooden frame rated for up to 800 
lbs. 
The cost for the swing with shipping would be 
approximately $400. Material for the heavy frame on 
which the swing would hang is estimated to cost 
approximately $100. 



170



  

  

     

  
 

 
     
    
    
     

 
   

  

    

 
   

    
  

  
 

  
  

     
 

 
   

   
  

  
 

 
 

   
 

171

Attachments: None 

Date Prepared: 9-10-2020 

Prepared By: Public Works Supervisor Tom Davis 

Meeting Date: 09-16-2020 

Agenda Category: 
Proclamations & Awards Public Hearings 
Presentations Old Business 
Boards & Committees x New Business 
Consent Other: 

Subject: Lawn Maintenance Contract 

Recommended Action: Discussion and possible action 

Background Information: The lawn maintenance agreement between the 
Town and Fertig’s Sharper Cuts will expire in 
December 2020. 
We are very satisfied with the service provided by 
this company. We have found Mr. Fertig very 
obliging and will to work with Public Works in 
scheduling and any other issues that have arisen. 
This good working relationship has made dealing 
with the company very favorable. 
Because of this PW has approached Mr. Fertig as to 
his interest in continuing his services to our Town. 
He expressed a desire to continue his services. 
The current annual cost is $29,813.  Because we 
would be adding additional new areas to be mowed 
and edged in Ryckman Park, a small area in front of 
the Post Office and the newly reclaimed area along 
Oak Street that cost would be $32,613. ($2800 a 
year increase). 
Because of this very amenable working relationship 
I would like the Commission to waive RFP and allow 
us to renew a contract with Fertig Sharper Cuts. 



172



  

  

   

   
 

 
     
    
    
     

 
   

   
    

    
   

   
 

       
 

 
    

 
 
 

      
    

    
 

 
    

 
 

          
   

  
  

  
  

  
 

  
 

173

Attachments: None 

Date Prepared: 09-10-2020 

Prepared By: Tom Davis 

Meeting Date: 09-16-2020 RTCM 

Agenda Category: 
Proclamations & Awards Public Hearings 
Presentations Old Business 
Boards & Committees x New Business 
Consent Other: 

Subject: Storm Water Swale Program 

Recommended Action: Discussion / Possible Action 
Background Information: As we have reported to the Commission previously we 

have been very pleased with the results our having 
constructed swales in various areas of Town. We have 
previously spoken of how it is our belief that constructing 
swales along ours streets would eliminate and/or reduce 
the velocity of stormwater rushing down our streets and 
into the Lagoon via the stormwater infrastructure. 
How to implement this type of program along our streets 
has been given considerable thought. We realize in all 
likelihood we would encounter considerable pushback 
from residence if we began digging swales in their 
perceived lawn. I use the term perceived due to the fact 
that even though the digging would be in our right of way 
most residents perceive that as their lawn. 
What we are proposing is to initiate a program titled 
“Swale People Live Here”. We would use a marketing 
and educational program via our website and printed 
material. This would describe how we can reduce our 
impact on the Lagoon by reducing the sediment and 
other pollutant material dumping into the Lagoon. 
We would offer to dig a 3’ X 4” swale near the street in 
front of a residence. If the resident desired sod in the 
swale we would place it.  If they would like a blank slate 
we would dig the swale and they could choose and place 
their own plants. We would place a small sign at the 
swale that stated “ Swale People Live Here”.  A graphic 
logo with perhaps a smiling swale or smiling member of 
the Lagoon marine life. 



174



     
   

  

   

  
 

 
     
    
    
     

 
   

   
  

 

     
 

175

Attachments: • June 24, 2020 TCW Draft Minutes 
• July 1, 2020 TCW Draft Minutes 

Date Prepared: 09/10/2020 

Prepared By: Town Clerk Torres 

Meeting Date: 09/16/2020 

Agenda Category: 
Proclamations & Awards Public Hearings 
Presentations Old Business 
Boards & Committees X New Business 
Consent Other: 

Subject: June 24, 2020 and July 1, 2020 TCW Draft Minutes 

Recommended Action: Consideration of the 06/24/2020 and 07/01/2020 
Town Commission Workshop draft minutes – Town 
Clerk Torres 

Background Information: With minor edits from Mayor Simmons 



  
 

 
 

 
   

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

176

Town of Melbourne Beach 

TOWN COMMISSION BUDGET WORKSHOP 

WEDNESDAY JUNE 24, 2020 @ 5:00 pm 
MASNY ROOM – 507 OCEAN AVENUE 

DRAFT MINUTES 

Commission Members: 
Mayor Jim Simmons 

Vice Mayor Wyatt Hoover 
Commissioner Steve Walters 

Commissioner Sherrie Quarrie 
Commissioner Corey Runte 

Staff Members: 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 

Town Clerk Jennifer Torres 
Finance Manager Jennifer Kerr 



  

  

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

  
 

  
 

 

 

 

    
  

 
 

    
  

  
 

  
  

177

I. Call to Order 

Mayor Simmons called the meeting to order at 5:02 p.m. 

II. Roll Call 

Town Clerk Torres conducted roll call. 

Commissioners Present 
Mayor Jim Simmons 
Commissioner Steve Walters 
Commissioner Sherrie Quarrie 
Commissioner Corey Runte 

Commissioners Absent 
Vice Mayor Wyatt Hoover 

Staff Members Present: 
Town Clerk Jennifer Torres 

Staff Members Absent 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 
Finance Manager Jennifer Kerr 

III. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence 

Led my Mayor Simmons 

IV. Public Comment 

None 

Mayor Simmons announced a pause to wait for the Town Manager who would join the 
meeting momentarily with a draft of the FY-21 budget package. 

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro and Finance Manager Jennifer Kerr joined the 
meeting at 5:05 p.m. 

Commissioner Walters asked Town Manager Mascaro where the budget message was -
and she said that will be part of the final package. 

Commissioner Walters said he was not feeling well, excused himself and left the meeting 
at 5:06 p.m. 

Mayor Simmons said he wanted to clarify that the budget message is not typically 
included as part of the package at this stage. 



 
 

   
 

   
   

   
 

 
  

 
   

   
 

   
   

 
       

 
   

 
     

 
    

   
   

  
 

    
    

 
 

   
 

   
     

  
 

  
  

  
  

 
 

  
 

 

178

VI. New Business 

A. Discussion Regarding the FY 2020/2021 Budget 

Town Manager Mascaro handed out some edited, updated pages for the package 
and indicated that additional changes to the budget were made this morning 
during a meeting with the Mayor. Updated pages and books would be given out at 
the next budget meeting. 

Town Manager Mascaro proceeded to share a few highlights. 

• Health insurance has gone up by 8-percent and the Town pays 100 percent 
for employees and 50 percent for spouse and 50 percent for children. 

• Insurance though Florida League of Cities has gone up about 5-percent 
that includes property and liability, workers comp and 

• FRS (retirement) – has gone up 2 –percent to 10-percent. 

• The contribution to the police pension has gone down. 

Town Manager Mascaro said she has calculated increases at 2.5 percent across 
the board but would like to give the Police Department and Public Works a pool 
of money for them to incentivize those employees going above and beyond based 
on reviews etc. She believes we have some higher performers that are not being 
compensated so this gives the department room to incentivize those working 
harder. 

Mayor Simmons asked if employees and performance reviews would be clear 
about the policy so they are not surprised – and the Town Manager said they 
would. 

In regard to the Police Department, Commission Quarrie asked if the increases 
would have to wait until the union issue is figured out.  The Town Manager said 
yes – because we are still in police negotiations, if they continue with the union – 
we can’t do this for them – noting they have presented them with a contract in its 
entirety back in March and are waiting to hear what they say. 

Town Manager Mascaro said when she calculated increases for the Police 
Department, she allowed for an increase this fiscal year and next. However, she 
explained it would depend on the decision they reach because the increase won’t 
be on the table for too much longer. 

Commissioner Quarrie Asked if Fire department stipend would go up 2.5 percent 
and Town Manager said no. 



 
  

  
 

 
 

  
      

   
 

 
    

  
 

     
 

 
  

 
       

 
 

  
 

     
 

  
  

 
   

 
    

  
  

 
  

    
 

   
 

 
   

 
   

  

179

After discussing the budget, The Commission decided to have the following 
modifications made before the next budget meeting. 

The pages that received edits/additions/changes include: 

P. 9 
• $1400 will be budgeted to allow two Commission members to attend the 

Institute for Elected Officials given the fact that there will be a new Mayor 
and a new Commission member. 

• Reduced attendance to FLC Annual Conference from 3 attendees at $2100 
to one attendee for $700. 

• Reduced FLC Annual training & expenses from 4 attendees at $1800 to 
one at $450. 

• Reduced total legislative expense from $39,488 to $36,738 

P. 17A – some adjustments were made to the figures on P. 17a – that will be provided at 
the next meeting 

P. 22 Law Enforcement 

Commissioner Quarrie asked if a parking enforcement position was being added. 

Town Manager Mascaro said she did not add this position because after 
discussions with Chief Griswold they concluded there is no increased cost with 
parking enforcement with current officers and they want to have a presence to 
serve as a deterrent. 

Mayor Simmons asked the Town Manager to find out how many body cams the 
Police Department currently has and see if they can add enough to the budget so 
that everyone can have their own. 

P. 23 
• Electric bike @$1500 for FY21 will be removed – along with $300 each 

subsequent year. 
• Reduce cost of new floor covering from $12,000 to $9,000 and remove 

$300 each subsequent year. 

P. 25 Fire Control 

Town Manager Mascaro explained that Gavin Brown would like to be considered 
the Fire Chief. 



     
   

 
  

 
    

   
 

 
    

  
   

 
  

 
     

  
 

 
   

 
  

   
   

      
    

   
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

  
  

 
  

 
   

 
   

 
 

 

180

Right now, she explained, Brown gets a $1,000/month stipend – he would like to 
be considered the paid Fire Chief for Town @ $55,000 salary with $12,000 
coming from the stipend. Currently he gets $38,000 plus the $12,000 stipend. 
He wants it all to go through his staff salary – the increase would be $4,500. 

Town Manager Mascaro said his current title is Fire Manager and she asked the 
Commission how they felt about making his title Fire Chief (and a paid Fire Chief 
through the Town). 

Mayor Simmons said as long as he is qualified and meets all the criteria, he would 
agree. The Town Manager said he does. The Commission agreed to make the 
change and a special recognition will be planned in October. 

P. 27 

• Wrong page was printed – the numbers will be updated at next meeting. 
Capital Outlay total will change from $85,234 to $35,000. Total Fire 
Control Expenses will be adjusted as well. 

P. 29 – Building Department 

Town Manager Mascaro said the current SafeBuilt Building Official, Rob Perry, 
has been moved to the Tampa area to become their regional representative. She 
said there was some discussion to have the Town’s building inspector -Ken – 
become the new Building Official to cover all three days – however he is based 
out of the County – and his supervisor – John Stone from Satellite Beach -
indicated he would like to take on the role two days a week – with Ken remaining 
for one day each week as inspector. 

Commissioner Runte noted that Mr. Stone is a great choice with an impressive 
background that would be a great fit. He went on to say that Mr. Stone promotes 
the whole city, is black and white with the rules, but pro responsible 
development. 

Mayor Simmons agreed. 

Town Manager Mascaro said she just wanted to bring the Commission up to date 
on the change. 

P. 33 – Public Works Expenses 

• After some discussion, $10,000 allotted for a Stop Bar Striper was 
removed and $4,250 was added to the $5,750 previously allotted for a 
street sweeper, for a total of $11,500 to purchase a street sweeper in FY21 
instead of waiting until FY22. 

VII. Adjournment 



 
  

  

 

181

Commissioner Quarrie motioned to adjourn; Commissioner Runte 
seconded; Motion carried 3-0. 

Meeting adjourned at 7:42 p.m. 



  

 

 
   

 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

182

Town of Melbourne Beach 

TOWN COMMISSION BUDGET WORKSHOP 

WEDNESDAY JULY 1, 2020 @ 5:00 pm 
MASNY ROOM – 507 OCEAN AVENUE 

DRAFT MINUTES 

Commission Members: 
Mayor Jim Simmons 

Vice Mayor Wyatt Hoover 
Commissioner Steve Walters 

Commissioner Sherrie Quarrie 
Commissioner Corey Runte 

Staff Members: 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 

Town Clerk Jennifer Torres 
Finance Manager Jennifer Kerr 



 

 
 

    
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

    
 

   
 

 
  

 
  
  
  

 
 

   
  

  

 

183

I. Call to Order 

Mayor Simmons called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

II. Roll Call 

Town Clerk Torres led the Roll Call. 

Commission Members Present: 
Mayor Jim Simmons 
Vice Mayor Wyatt Hoover 
Commissioner Steve Walters 
Commissioner Sherrie Quarrie 
Commissioner Corey Runte 

Staff Members Present: 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 
Town Clerk Jennifer Torres 
Finance Manager Jennifer Kerr 

III. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence 

Mayor Simmons led the Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence 

IV. Public Comment 

VI. New Business 

A. Continued discussion regarding the FY 2020/2021 Budget 

Town Manager Mascaro reviewed updates to the budget book since the last meeting that 
included: 

• P. 6 Statement of Revenue and Expenditures: FY21 Budget number reflects 
updated figures from Brevard County TRIM. 

• P. 12 Training and Schools: Removed from #1 quantity. 
• P. 22 Vehicle Maintenance: Increased quality from $9,000 to $10,000. 
• Fire Department: Decreased its short-term capital to $8,000 and increased long-

term capital to $27,000. The overall budget decreased due to a duplicate 
calculation for the $12,000 allocated to Chief Brown’s salary. 

• P. 24 Professional Services: Reduced $12,000 from stipend was counted in the 
salary section. 

• P. 25 Equipment Maintenance: Annual maintenance breathing compressor 
increased to $900 from $521 and removed from page 27 under licenses for $900 
as duplicate entry. 



   
   
  
  
  
    
  

  
 

   
  

 
   

  
 

   
   

 
  
      

  
 

   
   

    

    
  

  

      
   

  
     

  
  

   
    

 
   

 
   

184

• P. 25 Annual Fire Extinguishers: Increased number of units from 29 to 30. 
• P. 25 Annual Co2 Maintenance: Increased number of units from 1 to 6. 
• P. 25 Hose Testing and Maintenance: New line from $2,400. 
• P. 27 Short-Term Capital: Reduced from $24,000 to $8,000. 
• P. 27 Long-Term Capital: Increased from $11,000 to $27,000. 
• P. 27 Licenses and Fees: Increased 800 MHZ number of units from 27 to 28. 
• P. 48 Stormwater Bond Grants Fund: Increase transfer in by %51,841 amount of 

overage in general fund. 

Commissioner Walters, who had to leave the previous workshop early, said he has a few 
questions. 

First he asked how much the Town was looking to receive from the Federal Relief 
Bill/CARES funding. 

Finance Manager Kerr responded that the proposal was about $7,000 – and they 
projected there might be $7,000 more. 

He then asked what deductible the employees are playing on health insurance and Town 
Manager Mascaro said it depends on the service, but usually $50 for a doctor visit copay 
and about $5,000 to $7,800 for an individual or family plan. 

Commissioner Walters said he noted that police officers are paying 5-percent into their 
pension and asked why the staff doesn’t also do this. 

Town Manager Mascaro said they do – at 3-percent. 

Mayor Simmons asked if the amount police officers pay is determined by the state and 
Town Manager Mascaro said the state represents us and the Pension Board regulates 
the police. 

Commissioner Quarrie asked if 5-percent is too high and Town Manager Mascaro 
responded by saying that it’s a very well-funded pension plan and they’re paid a 
substantial amount from it when they retire, adding that we are one of few 
municipalities that use a good gap. 

Commissioner Walters then asked about the police vehicles, noting that last year we had 
eight cars and this year there are six. 

Town Manager Mascaro said we now have six cars. They didn’t anticipate the loss of two 
vehicles – so they were replaced. They had discussed providing a new replacement 
vehicle every year. This year they would replace a 2012 Caprice used by the SRO. Then 
the oldest car in the fleet of four would be replaced. 

Commissioner Walters asked about the promotion of Gavin Brown to Fire Chief and the 
Town Manager explained that he has served as the volunteer Fire Chief and the Town 



  
  

 

 
 

  
   

     
    

     
  

 
   

    
   

  
  

    
     

     
   

   
  

  

    

    
  

   
   

    

     
   

 
  

185

would like to make him a paid Town Fire Chief with an increase in salary to $55,000, 
with $12,000 of that coming from the stipend. 

Public Comments 

Neil Tompkins 
204 Neptune Drive 

Mr. Tompkins asked if there were any grant opportunities the Town could pursue to 
resolve issues with the Indian River Lagoon. He suggested grant money could be used 
for swales on Oak and anything the Town can put in the budget for long term 
improvement with two general areas to focus on; limiting runoff into the lagoon and 
potential remediation. He asked the Town to help with anything they can to accumulate 
funding and reduce the load in the Indian River. He said the homeowners have spent a 
total of a half-million dollars having dredging work done. He understands the Town 
does not have the resources to do the work itself, but he would like assistance in 
reducing the load into the Indian River. Currently the canals are brown and filled with 
grass clippings. When people hire lawn service companies they don’t pay attention. He 
said perhaps some additional signage indicating this activity goes against a Town 
Ordinance, would help. 

Mayor Simmons responded by saying they do have an Ordinance against this, but he 
continues to see people doing it anyway. He said the Town is in the process of planning 
the Orange Street repaving with new Miami guttering and swales and breaks in the 
guttering. He also pointed out that Mr. Tompkins does not have 100-percent 
participation with the neighborhood dredging. The Mayor reminded him that he invited 
the homeowners association to come to a meeting so they could set up a special tax 
district. 

Mr. Tompkins said they have one neighbor in disagreement which prevents this. 

Commissioner Walters asked if Harbor East Dredging Inc. collects money from 
homeowners into a fund to use for dredging. 

Mr. Tompkins said they formed a special LLC to raise money and this time they had to 
pay the state for a 25-year submerged land lease and needed an LLC to hold a land lease 
– he added that they don’t annually try to raise money; instead they do it when a 
dredging need arises. 

Commissioner Runte asked if they are a couple years away from dredging again. 

Mr. Tompkins said yes and they are probably looking at 10-20,000 cubic yards of muck 
for the next dredging. He said anything the Town can do to help them would be great. 

With no further public comments, Mayor Simmons brought the meeting back to the 
subject of the budget. 



  
  

  
  

      
 

   

 

     
   

       
    

  
     

   

  
   

  

 
   

  

    
      

  
  

  
      
    

    
   

  
  

    
      

186

Referencing P. 6 of the proposed budget, Commissioner Walters commented that Town 
Attorney fees are up 20-percent. He said he knew some of that was from the Labor 
Attorney but he thought the Town Commission had decided they didn’t need the Town 
Attorney to attend Planning & Zoning meetings. 

Mayor Simmons said that wasn’t the case. The Town Attorney attends Planning & 
Zoning, Board of Adjustment, Special Meetings and Regular Town Commission 
Meetings. 

Town Manager Mascaro said they still have work to do with the labor attorney. 

Commissioner Walters asked how many officers are left in the union and Town Manager 
Mascaro said she believed there were two. 

Mayor Simmons said that last year they did not budget a labor attorney ($15,000) or a 
magistrate so the real increase is that they needed to have a labor attorney. 

Referencing the tape of the last meeting on 6/24/2020, Commissioner Walters said he 
listened to the tape and heard they reduced Ryckman Ocean Park revenue but he didn’t 
catch what the reason was for this. 

Mayor Simmons said they did not want to make a change resulting in a huge budget 
shortfall so they thought, let’s be more conservative, and if we get more than that – 
great. 

The Mayor asked if there were any other comments or questions from the Commission 
and there were not, so he addressed the Town Manager and asked what she needed from 
them to proceed. 

Town Manager Mascaro said that if everyone is content with the budget as discussed; 
she would set up two meetings in September – unless they wanted to meet sooner. 

She pointed out that the millage rate is less than the millage rate last year. She said that 
she planned to put out a message on social media to help residents better understand 
their tax bill because she thinks a lot of people misunderstand that only a small portion 
comes to the Town. This would serve as an educational tool to help people understand 
that taxes from gas, communications, etc. are all revenue generated through the state 
that we get a percentage of. So for example, out of a $2,000 bill a resident may only be 
paying $700 to the Town. 

Town Manager Mascaro said she had to take a pretty conservative approach. Our 
revenues are down, but still up over last year. 

Also, she noted with the Building Department, even though permitting continues to rise 
– there are not as many big jobs (over $50,000) and people have pulled back. 



     
  

     
 

  
     

 

     
   

    

   

  
 

  
 

  

  
    

   

   
   

   
 

    

    
   

    
   

  

    
  

187

Mayor Simmons asked if $35,000 is going into contingency fund and Town Manager 
Mascaro clarified it was $30,000. 

Town Manager Mascaro said that when they finish the audit they can transfer reserves 
and will move in $51,500. 

Mayor Simmons said that should give us about $2 million in reserves and Florida 
League of Cities recommends that coastal communities have at least six months in 
reserve. 

Mayor Simmons then asked if everybody was happy with the budget at the 9-percent 
over rollback rate. Commissioner Runte, Commission Quarrie indicated they were 
happy with it – Commissioner Walters said no. 

Commissioner Quarrie asked Commissioner Walters what changes he would propose. 

Commissioner Walters suggested they don’t hire two police officers because the Town 
doesn’t need as many as it has. 

Commissioner Runte asked Commissioner Walters, as former police chief, what kind of 
staffing did he think was needed? 

He responded; One chief, nine officers (two Sergeants and the rest patrol.) 

But he added – that all changed when the former Commission decided to promote so 
they could give them more money. 

Commissioner Runte said we should all leave here satisfied – or offer concrete solutions. 

Commissioner Walters said he felt the other Commissioners were trying to start an 
argument and said he’s not voting for this budget because we have a pandemic and 
people are out of work. When prompted for more suggestions, Commissioner Walters 
declined. 

Discussion ensued about police department staffing. 

Vice Mayor Hoover said he liked the capital investment worksheet and noticed that over 
ten years the capital investments are decreasing and gave credit to Mayor Simmons. 

Vice Mayor Hoover also said he liked how the Town Manager broke out the parks and 
the pier and said good job. 

Commissioner Runte also gave credit to Finance Manager Jennifer Kerr for a good job. 

Moving on from the budget discussion, Mayors Simmons said he had a couple of items 
to discuss. 



  
  

  

 

   
   

 

 
  

    
   

  

  
    

    
 

   

188

First, he wanted to know if the Commission wanted to try and close the Town’s beaches 
for the July 4th weekend (to lessen crowding on the holiday weekend during the 
pandemic). 

Some discussion on the issue ensued. 

Mayor Simmons said the other issue he wanted to discuss was a mandatory mask policy. 
Residents have been asked him about it and it is something the Commission needs to 
make a decision on. 

Some discussion on the issue ensued. A suggestion to create a resolution to encourage 
the use of masks was discussed. 

The Town Commission agreed by unanimous consent to create a Resolution that says 
the Town strongly encourages residents to wear masks in local businesses and public 
buildings and observe social distancing 

Commissioner Walters said he wanted it noted that the Town Commission spent a total 
of three hours and 45 minutes on the budget. 

Vice Mayor Hoover moved to adjourn; Commissioner Runte seconded; 
Motion carried 5-0. 

Meeting adjourned at 6:05 p.m. 



   

  

    

  

 
   

  
    

  

  
 

  

   

189

Attachments: Request from Daughters of the American Revolution 

Date Prepared: 09/10/2020 

Prepared By: Janine Jordan – DAR Chair 

Meeting Date: 09/16/2020 

Agenda Category: 
Proclamations & Awards Public Hearings 
Presentations Old Business 
Boards & Committees X New Business 
Consent Other: 

Subject: Request for Town Proclamation of Constitution 
Week September 17-23, 2020 

Recommended Action: Consideration and possible action of request 

Background Information: N/A 



190



     
  

  

   

  
 

 
     
    
    
     

 
  

 

  

   
 

191

Attachments: Request from Florida Water & Pollution Control 
Operators Assoc. 

Date Prepared: 09/10/2020 

Prepared By: Kevin Shropshire, Director 

Meeting Date: 09/16/2020 

Agenda Category: 
Proclamations & Awards Public Hearings 
Presentations Old Business 
Boards & Committees X New Business 
Consent Other: 

Subject: Request for Town to Proclaim August 2020 as 
Florida Water Professionals Month 

Recommended Action: Consideration and possible action of request 

Background Information: N/A 



192



193



194



          
 

  
     

 

      
       

    

       
     

  

     
 

     

     
    

       

    
 

 

 

Town Manager Report for August 2020 

1.   Received notification from Jim Stroz at FDOT, that lowering the speed limit on A1A to 35 mph looks 
favorable.  The final review should be sent to me any day as Jim thought he would have a final by @July 
7th. 

2.  The two dates for the Budget Workshop are: Wednesday, September 9th at 6:00 pm and Monday, 
September 21st at 6:00pm.  The Millage rate was changed to 4.5151 (4% change over rollback) due to 
the increase in the roll back rate provided by the Florida Department of Revenue. 

3.  The Comprehensive Plan sent to me on 8/13/2020 for a final review after our meeting in July to make 
final edits. Once the edits are finalized the document will be brought before the Commission and must 
be adopted by Ordinance per the Florida State Statue. 

4.  Attended the BOA meeting.  BOA voted to grant a variance to the property located at 394 Riverview 
to allow for a buildable lot. 

5.  As of Friday, August 14th, the Town has issued 816 parking permits. 

6. Indian Harbour Beach and the City of Melbourne are currently waiving Business Tax Receipts for 
businesses for the upcoming year to help support local businesses.  Our fee is $75.00 per business, 
which brings in revenue to the Town of @13,500 annually. 

7. Submitting grants to the Indian River Lagoon Water Quality Improvement Project and Protecting 
Florida Together (water quality improvement) Grant. 



196



   
 

  
  

  
    
  
 

197

Building Department Report 
August 2020 

• 66 permits issued 
• 154 inspections completed 
• 71 plans reviewed 
• 3 Site Plan reviews for P&Z 
• 2 BTR reviews 
• 0 new homes 



 
  

 
 

 

         

 

 

         

 

 

 

 

 

 

Permit Description 

MB20_113 HVAC, REPLACE 

MB20_177 HVAC, REPLACE 

MB20_290 SCREEN ENCLOSURE 

MB20_369 GENERATOR 

MB20_383 HVAC, REPLACE  NO DUCT 

MB20_402 SHED, BUILD/INSTALL 

MB20_411 HVAC, REPLACE      2 UNITS 

MB20_422 PROPANE TANK, INSTALL 

MB20_435 HVAC, REPLACE 

MB20_439 PROPANE TANK, INSTALL 

MB20_441 SCREEN ENCLOSURE 

MB20_444 ACCESSORY STRUCTURE, NEW 

MB20_445 PROPANE, INSTALL 

MB20_448 RE ROOF 

198

Issue Company Construction Fee Address 

8/21/2020 American Residential Services $6,459.00 $71.00 601 JASMINE DR 

8/21/2020 American Residential Services $13,189.00 $142.00 1611 Atlantic St 

8/19/2020 Space Coast Screens Inc $3,425.00 $83.50 408 FIFTH AVE 

8/14/2020 STINGRAY ELECTRIC & CONTROL $12,029.00 $231.98 602 CITRUS CT 

8/24/2020 EXTREME AIR & ELECTRIC, INC. $9,342.00 $71.00 318 FOURTH AVE 

8/31/2020 Sun Quality Builders LLC $15,000.00 $71.00 222 SURF RD 

8/11/2020 GULF BREEZE REFRIGERATION IN $10,000.00 $142.00 1905 ATLANTIC ST  324 

8/20/2020 COMO OIL & PROPANE $1,466.00 $71.00 602 CITRUS CT 

8/25/2020 Brevard Cooling and Heating Inc $6,181.00 $71.00 500 HIBISCUS TRL 

8/3/2020 FERRELLGAS $4,700.00 $71.00 417 HIBISCUS TRL 

8/19/2020 SUMMERTIME OUTDOOR BUILDER $6,000.00 $133.50 607 CITRUS CT 

8/5/2020 TVR CONSTRUCTION INC $50,000.00 $602.44 422 SUNSET BLVD 

8/25/2020 SAMS LP GAS COMPANY INC $1,995.00 $71.00 1806 PINE ST 



 
 

 

 
 

 

       

 

 

 

 

MB20_452 NEW, INGROUND POOL 

MB20_453 GARAGE DOOR, INSTALL 

MB20_458 FENCE AND GATE, INSTALL 

MB20_460 WINDOWS AND DOOR, REPLACE 

MB20_462 HVAC, REPLACE 

MB20_463 INTERIOR DEMOLITION 

MB20_464 POOL RESURFACE 

MB20_465 SCREEN ENCLOSURE 

MB20_468 RE ROOF W/FLAT 

MB20_470 WINDOWS AND DOORS, INSTALL 

MB20_471 RE ROOF 

MB20_472 PROPANE, INSTALL 

MB20_473 GENERATOR INSTALL/ ELECTRIC 

MB20_475 HVAC, REPLACE 

199

8/12/2020 Jason Duff Construction Inc $0.00 $303.90 216 FOURTH AVE 

8/7/2020 Plan It Pools, Inc. $45,000.00 $553.66 503 POINSETTIA RD 

8/10/2020 PARADISE GARAGE DOOR SERVI $1,495.00 $71.00 512 MAGNOLIA AVE 

8/6/2020 Carrie's Fence of Palm Bay $5,128.00 $71.00 1601 ORANGE ST 

8/25/2020 A Better View $26,710.00 $375.22 538 SUNSET BLVD 

8/5/2020 American Residential Services $10,596.00 $71.00 205 FOURTH AVE 

8/10/2020 Sun Quality Builders LLC $3,500.00 $71.00 222 SURF RD 

8/3/2020 $1,950.00 $71.00 1202 OAK ST 

8/5/2020 ACTION ALUMINUM $11,350.00 $238.53 321 FIRST AVE 

8/10/2020 KUZAK ROOF MAINTENANCE, LLC $7,500.00 $163.41 1606 ATLANTIC ST  5 

8/5/2020 SUNSET VIEW CONSTRUCTION $38,016.00 $485.52 314 SUNSET BLVD 

8/5/2020 ROOF CARE OF CENTRAL FLORID $8,000.00 $173.17 306 BANYAN WAY 

8/5/2020 AMERIGAS PROPANE LP (2) $5,021.00 $71.00 217 SURF RD 

8/24/2020 Space Age Electric $2,100.00 $71.00 217 SURF RD 



 

 

 

 

 

 

       

 

 

       

200

8/10/2020 EXTREME AIR & ELECTRIC, INC. $3,769.00 $71.00 1203 ATLANTIC ST 

MB20_476 PROPANE, INSTALL 
8/6/2020 COMO OIL & PROPANE $3,035.00 $71.00 1003 PINE ST 

MB20_477 RE ROOF 

8/13/2020 KUZAK ROOF MAINTENANCE, LLC $14,000.00 $251.22 301 FIRST AVE 

MB20_479 CONCRETE DRIVEWAY, REPLACE 
8/7/2020 $5,000.00 $71.00 411 MAGNOLIA AVE 

MB20_480 WATER HEATER, REPLACE 
8/6/2020 Broward Factory Services $275.00 $71.00 220 DOGWOOD AVE 

MB20_481 DUCTWORK, REPLACE 
8/10/2020 Freedom Air & Heat Inc $6,900.00 $151.70 1702 ATLANTIC ST  1D 

MB20_482 ELECTRICAL 

8/10/2020 Grand Electric DBA Bob's Electric $536.00 $71.00 1905 ROSEWOOD DR 

MB20_483 DEMOLITION OF TOWER/STAIRS, BUILD STAIRS 

8/12/2020 Excel Construction Corp $10,000.00 $212.20 315 ATLANTIC ST 

MB20_484 SHED, INSTALL 
8/12/2020 TUFF SHED, INC $2,400.00 $71.00 804 OAK ST 

MB20_486 RE ROOF  W/FLAT 

8/7/2020 ORLANDO RESTORATION SERVIC $13,500.00 $246.34 411 SIXTH AVE 

MB20_487 WINDOWS, INSTALL 

8/13/2020 SUNSET VIEW CONSTRUCTION $11,642.00 $244.23 512 BANYAN WAY 

MB20_488 REMODEL, KITCHEN AND BATH 
8/24/2020 Nobili Brothers Contractors, Inc. $64,100.00 $740.00 211 BIRCH AVE 

MB20_489 SEAWALL, REPLACE 
8/12/2020 Dock Masters Inc $43,000.00 $534.15 426 RIVER VIEW LN 

MB20_492 RE ROOF W/FLAT 

https://43,000.00
https://64,100.00
https://11,642.00
https://13,500.00
https://2,400.00
https://10,000.00
https://6,900.00
https://5,000.00
https://14,000.00
https://3,035.00
https://3,769.00


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

MB20_493 ELECTRIC/ FPL 

MB20_494 GARAGE DOOR, REPLACE 

MB20_495 SHED, INSTALL 

MB20_496 PAVERS, INSTALL 

MB20_498 SEWER AND WATER, CONNECT 

MB20_499 HVAC, REPLACE 

MB20_500 FENCE, INSTALL 

MB20_501 FLAT ROOF, REPLACE 

MB20_503 FENCE AND GATE, INSTALL 

MB20_504 ELECTRIC, FPL 

MB20_505 WINDOWS, REPLACE 

MB20_506 FRONT DOOR, REPLACE 

MB20_507 HVAC, REPLACE 

201

8/18/2020 VALLEY RIDGE ROOFING LLC $3,850.00 $91.75 1902 CEDAR LN 

8/11/2020 Gladiator Electric Inc $2,100.00 $71.00 411 OAK ST 

8/13/2020 MM ENTERPRISES OF BREVARD I $4,020.00 $71.00 316 BANYAN WAY 

8/12/2020 $500.00 $71.00 703 PINE ST 

8/19/2020 Surfside Pavers Inc. $4,211.00 $71.00 209 FOURTH AVE 

8/18/2020 Sun Plumbing $7,080.00 $71.00 308 OAK ST 

8/13/2020 ABLE AIR, INC $4,980.00 $142.00 300 OCEAN AVE 

8/14/2020 A & B FENCE CO LLC $5,266.00 $71.00 405 SUNSET BLVD 

8/17/2020 Property Renovations and Constructi $23,970.00 $348.49 501 BANYAN WAY 

8/26/2020 American Fence of Brevard $5,000.00 $71.00 418 AVENUE B 

8/31/2020 WIGMEN ENTERPRISES INC $1,200.00 $71.00 309 HIBISCUS TRL 

8/20/2020 Property Renovations and Constructi $9,785.00 $208.00 308 SURF RD 

8/20/2020 Lowe's Home Centers $1,304.00 $71.00 1601 ORANGE ST 

8/19/2020 Complete Air & Heat Inc $8,354.00 $71.00 208 ELM AVE 



       
   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MB20_508 RE ROOF   NO FLAT 

MB20_510 RE ROOF 

MB20_511 RE ROOF 

MB20_512 HVAC, REPLACE 

MB20_513 ELECTRICAL 

MB20_514 ADDITION, REMODEL 

MB20_516 HVAC, REPLACE 

MB20_517 2 PIER, INSTALL/FOUNDATION REPAIR 

MB20_519 POOL RESURFACE 

MB20_520 INGROUND POOL 

MB20_521 RE ROOF 

MB20_526 HURRICAN SHUTTERS, INSTALL 

202

8/20/2020 R & R Roofing of Brevard Inc 

8/31/2020 Florida Native Roofing Inc 

8/21/2020 DIRECT METAL ROOFING 

8/20/2020 Coastal Climate Experts 

8/25/2020 Gladiator Electric Inc 

8/31/2020 Sun Quality Builders LLC 

8/25/2020 Masters Air and Heat 

8/27/2020 Groundworks Florida LLC 

8/27/2020 Brevard Pools Inc 

8/27/2020 INTERCOASTAL POOL AND SPA 

8/27/2020 OAK CREST ROOFING 

8/28/2020 Mark Farnham Construction LLC 

$31,100.00 

$48,600.00 

$66,000.00 

$3,500.00 

$2,000.00 

$50,000.00 

$5,470.00 

$4,800.00 

$6,150.00 

$28,000.00 

$20,920.00 

$2,000.00 

$418.05 517 AVENUE A 

$588.78 309 HIBISCUS TRL 

$758.54 314 SUNSET BLVD 

$71.00 1350 ATLANTIC ST  5N 

$71.00 1350 ATLANTIC ST  5N 

$602.44 222 SURF RD 

$71.00 413 DRIFTWOOD AVE 

$110.20 416 AVENUE A 

$71.00 208 BIRCH AVE 

$387.80 509 ANDREWS DR 

$318.73 403 HIBISCUS TRL 

$71.00 2010 OAK ST 

$834,469.00 $12,468.45 

https://2,000.00
https://20,920.00
https://28,000.00
https://6,150.00
https://4,800.00
https://5,470.00
https://50,000.00
https://2,000.00
https://3,500.00
https://66,000.00
https://48,600.00
https://31,100.00


 

 

  
  

   

   
  

 

   
 

 
   

   

  
 

  
 

    
 

  
 

 
   

   
 

   

 
 

   
 

    
 

 

203

Public Works Activities Overview 

August 2020 

We addressed some issues on the pier this month.  One ongoing problem of course is the lights on the railings 
being broken.  In an attempt to limit this type of problem we are now installing LED lights on poles along the pier. 
As the railing lights are broken we have been removing them.  The pole lights installed to date are on the south 
side of the pier.  We will be installing the pole lights on the north side in the future. 

One other problem area of the pier has been the stainless wire and turnbuckles breaking.  It appears any many 
cases people are standing on the wires and they break.  We have not figures a method to prevent this from 
happening. 

Fenders were installed on the pier pilings which are designed for a vessel to pull alongside of.  By using old fire 
hose provided by the FD we had no cost. 

LED bulbs are being placed in the pathway lights of Ryckman Park.  We have identified after market LED fixtures 
that can be installed in the existing light arms.  This will be costed out and explore if this may be a viable option. 
Solar options are being explored but we have concerns over the cost and how much light they yield. 

Trimming of the vegetation at the crossovers continued.  This is an ongoing process both there and at Ocean Park. 
Particularly time consuming is the ongoing cutting and controlling the area of Ocean Park where the huge Vitek 
trees were removed.  We must keep those cut and sprayed to prevent them spreading and killing the Sea Grapes 
and any other friendly vegetation. 

Our stormwater swale efforts continue.  We employed swales at First and Atlantic where for years water had 
collected and flooded out onto Atlantic.  Crushed concrete was employed to harden the entrance to the crossover 
lot.  The combination has proven very successful to this point.  After several significant rain falls the water has 
entered the swales and dissipates in short order. 

To date every location of our swales have proven successful.  Orange and First Ave. no longer holds water out into 
the street.  The northwest corner of Ocean Park parking area does not hold standing water for days like in the past. 
Our Pine St. swale reduces the amount of stormwater going south on Pine St.. 

Our swale/rain garden in front of the Post Office also captures west bound stormwater. This project has generated 
a great deal of positive comments for beautifying Ocean Avenue. 

A street sweeper broom was rented and used to clean several street curbs.  This was done to make sure this would 
be effective before we actually purchased a unit.  The results were very impressive. We were amazed at the large 
amount of sand we moved back into the grass.  What we really know is that sand and leaves will not show up in 
our stormwater boxes or in the Lagoon.  Once we do obtain a sweeper and have an ongoing cleaning schedule it is 
our belief that the amount of sand and debri we have to Ditch Witch will be greatly reduced. 

The unsightly condition behind our pavilions has been addressed.  The area was cleaned.  By using the free fill dirt 
we have on hand we were able to level that area and install sod.  This cleaning effort also extended west behind 
the old post office structure. These efforts not only beautified the areas but gave us several hundred square feet 
of usable space. 

Again we had a good month. 



 

 

   
   
   
     
   
  
     
   
  
  
  
   
    
    
    
    
   
      
  
  
   
  
      
  
    
   
     
    
    
    
  
  

204

Public Works Activities 

August 2020 

• Secured trash cans crossovers ref. storm 
• Repaired boardwalk shower Ocean Park 
• Repaired turnbuckles on pier 
• Cleaned large about of fallen branches post storm 
• Added two more pole lights to pier 
• Removed all broken lights from pier (5) 
• Mowed trimmed area of swale Oak and Ocean 
• Replaced all burned out walkway lights Ryckman (led bulbs) 
• Installed fenders on pier using old fire hose 
• Trimmed around Town Hall 
• Trimmed more crossovers 
• Mowed and cleaned up storage yard 
• Installed more crushed concrete completed swales 1st and Atlantic 
• Installed section of PVC pipe over wires on Ocean Ave. school crossing pole 
• Trimmed some foliage at various intersections 
• Coordinated remove of bees in water meter box by Old Town Hall 
• Replaced screws in single entry gate behind public works 
• Repaired damage north end of Ocean Park parking lot – replaced with poles 
• Set up for election Community Center 
• Trimmed around bocce ball courts 
• Re-striped bike lane on Ocean Ave. 
• Installed camera on pier entrance 
• Re-tightened hydraulic part on tractor stopped a leak 
• Trimmed landscaping PO right of way 
• Trimmed Ocean Park areas 
• Used street sweeping broom cleaned numerous streets and curbs 
• Used fill dirt we had filled in behind pavilions and sodded 
• Removed over grown mess behind pavilions 
• Replaced irrigation timer one section of Ryckman Park 
• Relocated gazebo from Circle Park to 5th Ave. river park 
• Cleaned swale area at Ocean Park 
• Repaired AC duct seam upstairs work out area 



    

  
 
   

  
  

     

 
  

   

    

  
  

 
 

   
 

  

  

 
  

 

  

205

MONTHLY REPORT: August 2020 
New Cases for the Month of August June 
CASE NUMBER DATE ADDRESS CODE VIOLATION 
2020-CE-122 8/5/2020 404 Ocean Avenue Coc. Palm plant.inROW 
2020-CE-123 8/5/2020 406 Ocean Avenue Coc. Palm plant.inROW 
2020-CE-124 8/5/2020 408 Ocean avenue Coc. Palm plant.inROW 
2020-CE 125 8/5/2020 410 Ocean Avenue Coc. Palm plant.inROW 
2020-CE-126 8/6/2020 711 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 
2020-CE-127 8/6/2020 1005 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 
2020-CE-128 8/6/2020 2051 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 
2020-CE-129 8/8/2020 315 Sunset Blvd. trailor on Vacant lot 
2020-CE-130 8/10/2020 407 Riverside Drive Motor hame in Drive 
2020-CE-131 8/12/2020 411 Fifth Avenue Grass overgrown, Boat 
2020-CE-132 8/15/2020 210 Cherry Dr. PRKS. Boat in 208 drive 
2020-CE-133 8/15/2020 206 Flamigo Lane refrigerater in Row Doors ON 
2020-CE-134 8/16/2020 423 River View Motor hame in Drive 
2020-CE-135 8/16/2020 707 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 
2020-CE-136 8/19/2020 409 Anchor Key trailer in driveway 
2020-CE-137 8/19/2020 413 Anchor Key Tree cutting on st. 
2020-CE-138 8/21/2020 611 Mango Drive Bus on front lawn 
2020-CE-139 8/16/2020 2207 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 
2020-CE-140 8/16/2020 2203 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 
2020-CE-141 8/23/2020 423 Sixth Ave Bush needs trimming 
2020-CE=142 8/23/2020 202 Surfe Road Palm frons hang. Over Sreet 
2020-CE-143 8/24/2020 211 Fifth ave Grass overgrown 
2020-CE-144 8/26/2020 1501 Oak Street bush hanging over SW 
2020-CE-145 8/30/2020 318 Avenue B Car carrier in Drive 
2020-CE-146 8/31/2020 314 Hibiscus Trail Car  being worked on 

OPEN/ACTIVE CASES FROM PRIOR MONTHS 
CASE NUMBER DATE ADDRESS CODE VIOLATION 

2020-CE-101 7/17/2020 410 Second Ave Pool not maintained 

7/17/2020 1905 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 
7/24/2020 1202 Oak Street Bush opstructing Traf. 

2020-CE-116 7/25/2020 1805 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 

DATE CLOSED ACTIVE 
X 
X 
X 
X 

8/9/2020 
8/19/2020 
8/29/2020 
8/30/2020 
8/24/2020 
8/14/2020 
8/30/2020 

*/22/2020 
X 

8/24/2020 
8/19/2020 
8/22/2020 

X 
X

 8/29/2020 

8/29/2020
 8/29/2020 

9/4/2020 
9/4/2020 

ACTION 

X 

X 
X 

X 

Told to Remove sent NOV 
Told to Remove sent NOV 
Told to Remove sent NOV 
Told to Remove sent NOV 
No lights on Case closed 
Lights turned off Case Closed 
Called FPL they turned out the Lights Case Closed 
Trailor Removed, Case closed 
Motor Removed Case closed 
Grass has been cut, Boat in garage  Case closed 
No boat I will monitor 
Case Closed 8/17/2020 
Motor Removed Case closed 
NOV Issued 
trailer moved case closed 
Cuttings Removed Case Closed 
 removed 08/22/2020 
will monitor 
will monitor 
Bush trimed Case Closed 
Palm fron Trimed Case Closed 
Grass has Been Cut Case Closed 
Tree trimed Case closed 
Trailo Moved Case bclosed 
Car Repaired Case Closed 

New Pump on order Due in nexed week 

Sched. For trim 

NOV Issued 

2020-CE-038 3/16/2020 305 fourth  Ave Boat in DW X 



 
  
 

 
  

  
 

 
  

 
 
 

  

 
  

 
 

  

206

2020-CE-041 3/22/2020 401 fourth Ave. Buisness from home X NOV 05/04/2020 
2020-CE-043 3/25/2020 415 Sixth Ave Pool not maintained X House in forclosure 
2020-CE-069 5/23/2020 404 Colony Street Boat in Driveway X NOV 07/05/2020 

PRIOR CASES CLOSED IN August 2020 
2020-CE-094 7/13/2020 1905 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 8/16/2020 Lights out Case Closed 
2020-CE-103 7/22 2020 218 Fifth Avenue Motor hame in Drive 8/9/2020 Motor Removed Case closed 
2020-CE-110 7/17/2020 1905 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 8/16/2020 Lights out Case Closed 
2020-CE-113 7/24/2020 1202 Oak Street Bush opstructing Traf. 8/17/2020 Case Closed 
2020-CE=115 7/25/2020 1905 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 8/16/2020 lights were out 
2020-CE-117 7/25/2020 1805 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 8/16/2020 lights were out 
2020-CE-118 7/25/2020 1805 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 8/16/2020 lights were out 
2020-CE-119 7/25/2020 2207 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 8/16/2020 lights were out 
2020-CE-120 7/25/2020 2203 Atlantic Street Turtle Lighting 8/16/2020 lights were out 
2020-CE-121 7/29/2020 230 Fifth Avenue Tree hang. Over St. 8/17/2020 Case Closed 

NUMBER OF CASES OPEN THIS MONTH 24 
NUMBER OF CASES CLOSED THIS MONTH 23 
NUMBER OF CASES OPEN AND CLOSED SAME MONTH 15 
TOTAL NUMBER OF CASES STILL OPEN 12 
NUMBER OF CASES THAT WENT TO BOARD 0 

PREPARED BY Robert Schaefer, CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER, 

Case Closed 
Case Closed 
Case Closed 
Case Closed 
Case Closed 



               

          

            

       

   

                

             

  

 

               

           

                

        

             

           

 

           

           

 

 
 

  

207

Melbourne Beach Police Department 
Monthly Report 

August 2020 

In August, we had a total of 2 traffic arrests and other arrests that ranged from Battery domestic, DUI, Theft, 

and Violation of Probation.    

House checks/residential and business checks are continued daily. The officers and I continue to be proactive 

as they conducted several “directed traffic enforcement details” throughout the town. Our radar trailers are 

also placed in various locations throughout the city to assist in deterring speeders. 

We did have 1 animal complaint/call this month for a loose dog. 

One of our areas of high volume calls consists of Injured/Ill persons. These calls are unpredictable, and each 

of the officers is First Responder/CPR/AED certified and is first on the scene to provide medical treatment as 

necessary. Each of the officer patrol vehicles is now equipped with “stop the bleed kits.” We also received two 

“lockout” kits to be used on vehicles in cases of emergencies only.   

All reports and calls for service are checked each day by either myself or a supervisor. Depending on the type 

of crime we have, procedures are in place to take the appropriate action to resolve the issue. 

Ofc’s Martin and Chris Smith attended Eastern Florida State College this month for Field Training and 

Laser/Radar schools. Congratulations FTO. Zachary Martin and Ofc. Chris Smith! 

School is back in session! SRO Dovale has settled in at Gemini Elementry, and has introduced himself to all 

staff and students. Crossing Guard Amber is back at Ocean and Pine crossing our little ones. Our Facebook 

page has been updated to remind drivers to be mindful of school zones, pedestrians, and bicyclists.  

In August, we started a new interaction with the community on our Facebook page. We are asking residents to 

send us photographs of sunrises/sunsets. Every Wednesday, we will pick a photo (credit given) to display on 

our FB cover. We have so far seen some stunning colors.  



      

 

  

  

     

208
The Melbourne Beach Police Officers and I are committed to community policing and keeping our town safe, 

which is our #1 priority. 

Attached you will see a brief overview of the Sergeants monthly report that highlights some of our calls for 

service. 

Stay Safe, Chief Melanie Griswold 



   
 
 

    
 

 
 

     
 

    
  

       
 

     
 

   
 

     
   

   

 
 

 
  

   

209

MELBOURNE BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Matthew Smith 

Sergeant 
507 Ocean Ave, Melbourne Beach, FL 32951 

Phone: (321) 723-4343 Fax: (321)725-3253 

Monthly Report August 2020 

• 08/08- Vehicle crash between (2) vehicles in the 1000 block of Atlantic Street. No injuries 
were reported and both vehicles had minor damage. 

• 08/15- Domestic, verbal dispute, between boyfriend and girlfriend in the 200 block of Third 
Avenue. Parties separated 

• 08/24- Domestic, verbal dispute, between adult child and father in the 1800 block of Pine 
Street. Parties separated 

• 08/24- Domestic, verbal dispute, between brother in-laws in the 500 block of Colony Drive. 
Parties separated 

• 08/29- Vehicle crash between (2) vehicles in the 200 block of Ocean Avenue. No injuries 
were reported and both vehicles had minor damage 

• 08/30- Arrested a female for battery, domestic violence and violation of felony probation. 
Female physically attacked the father of their child, causing minor injuries. She was also on 
felony probation for conspiracy to commit drug trafficking. 



   
 

 
 

 
   

 
   

 
    

 
   

 
 

   
    

  
 

 
     

   
 

    
   

     
 

     
  

  
 

    
  

  
 

       
  

   

 
 

 
  

   

210

MELBOURNE BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Steven Kino 

Detective/Sergeant
507 Ocean Ave, Melbourne Beach, FL 32951 

Phone: (321) 723-4343 Fax: (321)725-3253 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Chief Griswold 

FROM: Sgt. Kino 

RE: August Monthly Call Report 

DATE: 09/01/2020 

08/03- A traffic stop was conducted in the 1800 block of Oak St.  The driver was doing 
67 in a 30.  Once the vehicle stopped, drug paraphernalia was observed in plain view. 
The driver then completed SFE’s and was placed under arrest for DUI and possession 
of drug paraphernalia. 

08/04- A fire call in the 200 block of Elm Ave. A palm tree had flames at the base of the 
palm fronds.  The fire was extinguished without incident. 

08/10- Traffic arrest in the area of Second Ave and Atlantic St.  The vehicle was stopped 
for doing 96 in a posted 40.  The driver was issued a civil and a criminal traffic citation 
and was released on scene with a court date. 

08/10- An assault occurred in the 300 block of Sixth Ave. A lawn maintenance worker 
advised a resident that he wanted to fight him and threatened to harm his grass.  The 
victim completed and signed a decline to prosecute. 

08/10- A petit theft occurred in the 200 block of Birch Ave.  The r/p stated that his 
daughter’s friend stole a pair of Apple Airpods from the house.  The victim completed 
and signed a decline to prosecute. 

08/11- A petit theft occurred in the 500 block of Ocean Ave. A patron stayed the night 
and when checkout came the following day, she left prior to paying for the night.  She 
also took the room keys with her.  The victim completed and signed a decline to 



 
 
 

      
    

   
 

     
  

  
 

      
 
 

   
     

 
       

   
  

 
 

     
   

 
 

     
   

 
 

  
   

    
 
 
 
 
 
    

211

prosecute. 

08/12- A vehicle burglary occurred in the 1000 block of Atlantic St.  The r/p’s purse was 
taken out of her unlocked vehicle.  The contents were 2 debit cards and her id card. 
She did not want to pursue charges.  She completed and signed a decline to prosecute. 

08/17- A traffic crash in the area of Pine St and Third Ave.  Both vehicles entered the 
intersection at the same time and the bicyclist dropped his bicycle striking the front 
fender of the SUV.  No injuries or roadblocks. 

08/17- Traffic crash in the area of Ocean Ave and Atlantic St.  Both vehicles were 
entering the turn going opposite directions and one of them ran through a puddle, 
causing the vehicle to hydroplane and strike the other vehicle.  There was minimal 
damage and both vehicles were able to drive away.  No injuries or roadblocks.  The 
driver of the at-fault vehicle was issued a criminal citation and 2 civil citations on scene. 

08/20- A petit theft occurred in the area of Atlantic St and Avenue B. An unknown 
person scraped a Melbourne Beach Parking Permit off of the back window of a parked 
car.  The victim was given a new sticker and completed and signed a decline to 
prosecute. 

08/27- A traffic crash occurred at the intersection of Oak St. and Ocean Ave.  No injuries 
or roadblocks.  Driver of vehicle 1 was cited.  Both drivers removed their vehicles from 
the scene. 

08/27- A trespass warning was issued to a male that was parked on a private property 
located in the 300 block of Riverside Dr.  The Trespass Warning was completed without 
incident. 

08/28- A domestic disturbance verbal in nature in the 300 block of Third Ave.  The 
girlfriend was upset that her boyfriend went out the night before and “ignored” her. 
Both parties advised that they would calm down for the rest of the evening. 



212 Melbourne Beach Police Department 
AUG JULY JUNE MAY APRIL MAR FEB JAN YTD 

Total Calls for Service 1195 1137 1490 1651 1330 1263 1081 1162 10309 
Total Felonies 1 5 9 10 4 6 1 14 50 
Total Misdemeanors 9 24 19 17 12 10 8 19 118 
Total Capias Requests 0 0 0 0 2 2 2 1 7 
Total Traffic Arrests 2 3 5 6 2 8 3 3 32 
Total Other Arrests 2 2 3 1 3 6 3 8 28 

911 Investigation 37 31 40 34 23 30 20 11 226 
Alarm Business 2 3 6 3 0 7 1 2 24 
Alarm Residence 3 7 7 5 2 1 2 6 33 
Animal Complaint 1 0 5 4 13 7 5 12 47 
AOA LEO 15 24 30 24 6 23 22 21 165 
Assault 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 
Assist Citizen 7 5 10 7 11 6 9 9 64 
Assist DCF 1 1 0 0 2 4 2 1 11 
Assist Motorist 2 3 2 0 1 1 1 1 11 
Attempt to Contact 2 2 3 1 3 4 4 6 25 
Baker Act 0 0 2 1 0 1 2 1 7 
Battery 0 0 2 0 2 0 0 0 4 
Burglary Residence 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 4 5 
Burglary Vehicle 1 2 0 5 0 0 0 1 9 
Civil Matter 3 4 7 3 1 5 2 5 30 
Crash 5 5 6 4 1 4 5 4 34 
Criminal Mischief 0 0 2 4 0 0 1 3 10 
Death Investigation 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 3 
Disturbance Domestic 4 1 2 5 8 3 2 2 27 
Disturbance Domestic Battery 1 1 1 0 0 2 2 1 8 
Disturbance Fight 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 
Disturbance Noise 6 7 3 2 4 3 2 3 30 
Disturbance Verbal 0 0 0 5 2 3 0 1 11 
Fire 4 5 6 6 7 2 5 3 38 
Fraud 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 2 
Harassment 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 3 
House Checks 310 404 218 142 99 47 59 62 1341 
Illegal Parking 48 108 25 47 17 18 13 11 287 
Information 22 16 14 17 34 16 12 12 143 



 

AUG JULY JUNE MAY APRIL MAR FEB JAN YTD 
Injured/Ill Person 14 18 17 13 22 14 29 21 148 
Intoxicated Driver 1 0 2 1 0 3 2 1 10 
Intoxicated Person 0 0 1 0 3 1 0 0 5 
Investigation 4 9 3 3 4 3 3 5 34 
Loitering & Prowling 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 
Missing Person 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 2 
Narcotics 0 1 1 1 3 2 2 5 15 
Open Door 0 1 2 1 4 2 2 12 24 
Ordinance 2 5 0 3 1 0 0 2 13 
Parking Citations 37 85 17 34 15 15 10 3 216 
Patrol Area 159 115 135 143 124 90 85 95 946 
Patrol Area Business 234 239 390 486 305 212 196 202 2264 
Patrol Area Residential 368 322 433 470 455 282 247 330 2907 
Patrol Area School 34 23 32 36 45 31 48 29 278 
Prisoner Transport 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 
Property Confiscated 3 0 2 5 0 0 0 1 11 
Property Found 4 4 4 5 4 5 5 9 40 
Property Lost 2 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 5 
Reckless Driving 4 5 4 4 5 4 4 3 33 
Special Detail 0 3 1 1 1 1 3 1 11 
Standby-Keep the Peace 1 3 4 1 0 2 3 0 14 
Suspicious Incident 8 12 8 8 3 10 7 8 64 
Suspicious Person 13 13 2 11 6 15 11 10 81 
Suspicious Vehicle 23 20 20 13 8 14 17 13 128 
Theft 3 0 0 3 0 2 1 8 17 
Traffic Citations 21 17 63 47 11 121 63 38 381 
Traffic Complaint 2 3 3 3 5 4 1 1 22 
Traffic Enforcement 73 58 145 171 142 193 129 139 1050 
Traffic Obstruction 0 2 0 0 0 1 1 2 6 
Traffic Stop 74 81 172 109 43 243 166 137 1025 
Trespassing 1 4 2 2 2 1 2 1 15 
Vehcile Abandoned 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 
Vehicle Inspection 1 3 3 1 3 3 1 2 17 
Vehcile Repo/Tow 1 1 0 0 0 2 0 0 4 
Vehicle Stolen or Recovered 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 
Wanted Person 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 0 3 

Melbourne Beach Police Department 213



 

214 Melbourne Beach Police Department 
Vehicle Mileage AUG JULY JUNE MAY APRIL MAR FEB JAN YTD 
Car 359 48 0 1 1 72 29 256 162 569 
Car 360 1156 201 1004 1488 1222 1196 949 931 8147 
Car 361 771 986 1292 1046 984 1735 1155 1022 8991 
Car 363 631 859 668 790 956 818 620 1505 6847 
Car 364 753 1224 1197 1218 1373 1210 1108 1850 9933 
Car 366 788 1059 935 630 668 683 477 728 5968 



  

 

 
 

 

 

  

  

 

      
    

     

 

 
 
 

 

 

   
      

       
  

      
    

215

Melbourne Beach 

Vol. Fire Department 
507 Ocean Avenue 

Melbourne Beach, FL 32951 

(321)724-1736 
FireStation@MelbourneBeachFL.org 

FIRE DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT 

August 2020 

Incident Response 

For the month of August 2020, the Melbourne Beach Volunteer Fire Department 
responded to 13 calls for service. The average number of responding volunteer 
personnel per paged out call for the month was 11. 

Breakdown: 

 8 Fire/Rescue Calls (paged out) 
 2 Assist Other Agency 
 1 Public Assist 
 1 Walk-in Medical 
 1 EMS Assist 

Department Membership 

 Certified Firefighters: 18 
 Support Services Personnel: 12 
 Administrative Personnel: 2 
 Probationary Personnel: 3 

Fire Department Garage Floor Update 

The Fire Department has completed the bid process and has selected a vendor for the 
garage floor refinishing project. The Garage Enhancement Company is now under 
contract and will be installing a dual layer flake system with 2 layers of polyaspartic top 
coating and silica sand. This coating should provide a long lasting, aggressive non slip, 
and professional looking surface.  The project will start on Monday, September 14th and 
is projected to take a full week to complete. 

Page 1 of 3 

mailto:FireStation@MelbourneBeachFL.org


  

 
       

    
   

  
 

 

   
  

  
   

   
     

    
 

 
  

       
   

   
          

    
 

 
  

      
   

    
   

   
     

   
   

 
 

  

  
  

       
     

       

216

In addition, and with approval from the Commission, the Fire Department interior garage 
walls were also repainted.  All labor was donated by the Department’s volunteers.  At 
this point the project is scheduled to be completed before October 1st and will come in 
under budget, even with the additional cost approved to repaint the walls. 

COVID-19 Update 

The MBVFD continues to work closely with both the Police Department and Town Hall 
to ensure we are prepared to respond to the COVID-19 health crisis.  This includes 
participation in conference calls, emails, situation reports submitted to Brevard County 
Emergency Management, updating policies to address response guidelines, and 
educating citizens and visitors.  We continue to monitor the situation and update our 
response as needed. At this time all active MBVFD personnel continue to be healthy 
and are able to respond to incidents under the Department’s COVID-19 response 
guidelines. 

Radio Replacement (Capitol Item) Update 

As part of the multi-year radio replacement project, the Fire Department has ordered 11 
new radios.  These radios are mission critical and will replace the Department’s current 
radios which are outdated and no longer supported. The new radios will be in-service 
before October 1st. The Fire Department has also submitted a FEMA Assistance to 
Firefighters Grant to hopefully assist with the purchase of the remainder of the needed 
radios. 

Extractor Washer & Dryer (Capitol Item) Update 

The Fire Department has partnered with 3 other local municipal fire departments to 
purchase an extractor style washer and rack dryer.  This equipment is necessary to 
wash a firefighter’s structural gear after a fire to prevent the spread of cancer causing 
carcinogens. To assist with the cost of the project, the Department submitted a regional 
FEMA Assistance to Firefighters Grant and we were recently notified that we have been 
awarded a partial grant for $22,272. While this is not the full amount requested, it will 
certainly help offset the cost to the Town and to the other fire departments partnering in 
this project. 

Notable Events 

The Department was recently awarded a regional FEMA Assistance to Firefighters 
Grant for $22,272 to assist with the purchase of an Extractor washing machine and gear 
dryer. This was a partial award, and while it was not the full amount requested, it will 
certainly help offset the cost. Big thanks to Safety Chief Micka for spearheading this 
effort. 

Page 2 of 3 



  

   
  

 

  

    
  

   
   

     
     

      
      

      
    

   

   
   

217

The Department was notified that it was not awarded the AAA traffic safety grant for the 
purpose of obtaining new traffic cones and incident warning signs. 

Engine 58 returned back its annual maintenance and repairs. 

Ski-58 was also taken in for it’s annual maintenance and repairs, and is already back in-
service. 

Chief Brown met with the First Responders Task Force to discuss a free life insurance 
benefit for the Department’s volunteers. 

The Firefighters Association will be meeting next month to decide if they are going to 
proceed with their annual haunted house, fire prevention week activities at the schools, 
and Christmas Events. 

The Firefighters Association has also been very active in making improvements to the 
facilities. The back deck has been completely redone to provide a safer, more 
functional, and nicer looking area. A storage shed was built to house the Department’s 
larger event supplies such as grills, picnic tables, and coolers. A new dishwasher, sink, 
and garbage disposal was purchased and installed in the Masny Room. New (used) 
equipment was purchased for the upstairs gym. They are also purchasing the Fire 
Department’s water rescue team members new boots, gloves, swim fins, and bathing 
suits.  All of this is done at no cost to the tax-payer and is funded through donation 
dollars. 

Due to the COVID health crisis and social distancing recommendations, the MBVFD 
was able to support 1 local birthday party “drive-by” events in Melbourne Beach this 
month to help make local resident’s birthdays special since they could not have full 
parties. 

Page 3 of 3 



Melbourne Beach VFD 
Melbourne Beach, FL 
This report was generated on 9/9/2020 6:41:10 PM 

218

Incident Address and Type for Date Range (Landscape) 
Incident Status(s): All Incident Statuses | Start Date: 08/01/2020 | End Date: 08/31/2020 

INCIDENT # DATE LOCATION 
TYPE ADDRESS INCIDENT TYPE ALARM CLEARED 

SCENE 
2020-108 08/02/2020 301 Riverside DR , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 08/02/2020 01:50 08/02/2020 02:08 

2020-109 08/04/2020 205 Elm AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Natural vegetation fire, other 08/04/2020 14:02 08/04/2020 14:31 

2020-110 08/09/2020 412 2nd AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Assist police or other governmental agency 08/09/2020 15:40 08/09/2020 15:48 

2020-111 08/10/2020 3085 S Hwy A1A , Brevard (County), FL, 32951 Dispatched & cancelled en route 08/10/2020 12:06 08/10/2020 12:14 

2020-112 08/14/2020 Intersection  Ocean AVE / Riverside Dr, Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Watercraft rescue 08/14/2020 18:43 08/14/2020 20:17 

2020-113 08/15/2020 507 Ocean AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury 08/15/2020 10:26 08/15/2020 11:16 

2020-114 08/19/2020 502 Colony ST , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Medical assist, assist EMS crew 08/19/2020 04:26 08/19/2020 04:55 

2020-115 08/21/2020 100 Ocean AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Search for person in water 08/21/2020 20:42 08/21/2020 21:29 

2020-116 08/24/2020 1350 Atlantic ST , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Assist police or other governmental agency 08/24/2020 14:30 08/24/2020 14:37 

2020-117 08/25/2020 505 S. Miranar AVE , Indialantic, FL, 32903 Dispatched & cancelled en route 08/25/2020 11:19 08/25/2020 11:28 

2020-118 08/26/2020 2100 Oak ST , Melbourne Beach, FL, 329513295 Public service 08/26/2020 13:10 08/26/2020 14:04 

2020-119 08/27/2020 50 Eleventh AVE , Indialantic, FL, 32903 Dispatched & cancelled en route 08/27/2020 21:32 08/27/2020 21:41 

2020-120 08/28/2020 201 3rd AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Public service 08/28/2020 04:05 08/28/2020 04:41 

Location Type is only filled in when it is marked Intersection, Directions, or National Grid on Basic Info 3. 
emergencyreporting.com 
Doc Id: 1251 
Page # 1 of 1 

https://emergencyreporting.com


**
**

**

**

**

**

**

**

** Without EMS Assist or Service Calls: 4.8 6.1            10.9
             (Paged out calls only)

Melbourne Beach VFD 219

Melbourne Beach, FL 
This report was generated on 9/9/2020 6:42:12 PM 

Personnel Count per Incident for Date Range 
Start Date: 08/01/2020 | End Date: 08/31/2020 

INCIDENT NUMBER OF PEOPLE 

NUMBER DATE INCIDENT TYPE FDID ON APPARATUS NOT ON 
APPARATUS TOTAL 

2020-108 8/2/2020 01:50:07 445 - Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 19112 7 3 10 

2020-109 8/4/2020 14:02:52 140 - Natural vegetation fire, other 19112 4 5 9 

2020-110 8/9/2020 15:40:55 551 - Assist police or other governmental agency 19112 1 0 1 

2020-111 8/10/2020 
12:06:28 611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route 19112 4 8 12 

2020-112 8/14/2020 
18:43:49 365 - Watercraft rescue 19112 7 7 14 

2020-113 8/15/2020 
10:26:07 321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury 19112 1 1 2 

2020-114 8/19/2020 
04:26:23 311 - Medical assist, assist EMS crew 19112 1 0 1 

2020-115 8/21/2020 
20:42:06 342 - Search for person in water 19112 6 7 13 

2020-116 8/24/2020 
14:30:29 551 - Assist police or other governmental agency 19112 1 0 1 

2020-117 8/25/2020 
11:19:00 611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route 19112 2 4 6 

2020-118 8/26/2020 
13:10:31 553 - Public service 19112 1 0 1 

2020-119 8/27/2020 
21:32:40 611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route 19112 1 13 14 

2020-120 8/28/2020 
04:05:24 553 - Public service 19112 7 2 9 

AVERAGES: 3.3 3.8 7.2 

Only REVIEWED incidents included 
emergencyreporting.com 
Doc Id: 358 
Page # 1 

https://emergencyreporting.com


 
 

 
    

  
   

    

          
  

 
   

   
    

   

    
    

   
     
       

    
   

    
    

      
    

  

   

   
    

   
  

220

Town of Melbourne Beach 
Finance Department 

Memo 
To: Mayor, Vice Mayor and Commissioners 
From: Jennifer Kerr, Finance Manager 
Date: September 10, 2020 
Re: August 2020 

We are in the eleventh reporting month of our fiscal year 2020. The target expenditure rate for August 2020 is 
91.7%. All departments are managing their expenditures even though several budget lines are over the targeted 
expenditure rate. All budget items highlighted in green are over the target rate but within the anticipated spending 
of that budget line. Some budget lines are fully expended early in the budget year while other lines like salaries and 
health insurance are paid on a monthly basis. All budget items highlighted in yellow are being monitored. All budget 
items highlighted in red are over expended. The total General Fund expenditure rate, year to date is 83.4%. The 
Departmental expenditure rate breakdown is as follows: 

Legislative: 67.0% 
Executive: 122.0% 
Finance: 91.3% 
Legal: 105.8% 
Comp & Plan: 82.6% 
General Services: 68.1% 
Law Enforcement: 89.6% 
Fire: 69.9% 
Code: 71.3% 
Public Works: 88.3% 
Parks: 48.1% 

Discussion Items: 

Executive expenditure rate is high due to the severance pay out of previous Town Manager Robert Daniels. 

Online classes with FMIT have been set up and all employees are in the process of setting up their accounts and 
completing the required sexual harassment class. 

Direction has been given to all departments to monitor their expenses closely in anticipation of the close of the fiscal 
year. 



For the Period:  10/1/2019 to 8/31/2020 
Target Rate: 91.7% 

Expenditures Original Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud 

Dept:  11 Legislative 
500.11.00  Executive Salaries 16,200.00 13,208.28 2,991.72 81.5 
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 78,480.00 55,019.56 23,460.44 70.1 
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 7,243.00 5,177.03 2,065.97 71.5 
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 6,647.00 4,378.76 2,268.24 65.9 
500.23.01  Health Insurance 21,657.00 9,189.90 12,467.10 42.4 
500.23.02  Life Insurance 136.00 123.86 12.14 91.1 
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 251.00 56.47 194.53 
510.31.00  Professional Services 160.00 204.81 -44.81 
510.40.00  Travel & Meetings 2,660.00 833.19 1,826.81 
510.40.10  Travel & Meetings - Staff 300.00 24.00 276.00 8.0 
510.47.00  Printing 5,735.00 2,562.13 3,172.87 44.7 
510.48.00  Promotional Activities 533.00 410.99 122.01 77.1 
510.48.40  Legal Notices 14,000.00 10,642.22 3,357.78 76.0 
510.49.50  Election Expense 6,000.00 5,796.68 203.32 96.6 
510.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 785.00 729.00 56.00 92.9 
510.54.10  Training & Schools 1,580.00 150.00 1,430.00 9.5 
510.64.00  Machinery & Equipment 0.00 124.77 -124.77 0.0 
510.64.01  Capital Outlay 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.0 
543.00.00  Licenses & Fees 7,257.00 6,370.00 887.00 87.8 

67.0 
Dept:  12 Executive 
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 90,000.00 98,514.30 -8,514.30 109.5 
500.12.05  SEVERANCE PAYMENT 0.00 16,140.54 -16,140.54 0.0 
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 6,885.00 8,220.30 -1,335.30 119.4 
500.22.01  Retirement - ICMA 7,623.00 7,214.43 408.57 94.6 
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 0.00 2,458.87 -2,458.87 0.0 
500.23.01  Health Insurance 10,734.00 9,937.56 796.44 92.6 
500.23.02  Life Insurance 1,200.00 686.62 513.38 57.2 
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 288.00 98.75 189.25 34.3 
510.40.00  Travel & Meetings 2,400.00 149.75 2,250.25 6.2 
510.51.00  Office Supplies 0.00 129.00 -129.00 0.0 
510.52.50  Gas & Oil 0.00 2,200.00 -2,200.00 0.0 
510.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 858.00 595.00 263.00 69.3 

122.0 
Dept:  13  Finance 
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 58,000.00 51,217.71 6,782.29 88.3 
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 4,437.00 3,899.77 537.23 87.9 
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 4,913.00 4,259.29 653.71 86.7 
500.23.01  Health Insurance 7,716.00 6,747.00 969.00 87.4 
500.23.02  Life Insurance 68.00 67.56 0.44 99.4 
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 186.00 32.41 153.59 17.4 
510.31.00  Professional Services 4,900.00 5,894.53 -994.53 
510.32.00  Auditing Services 21,900.00 21,900.00 0.00 
510.32.90  Banking Fees 3,300.00 3,288.16 11.84 
510.40.00  Travel & Meetings 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.0 
510.47.00  Printing 180.00 0.00 180.00 0.0 
510.49.99  Miscellaneous 0.00 29.00 -29.00 0.0 
510.51.00  Office Supplies 0.00 329.99 -329.99 0.0 
510.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 60.00 50.00 10.00 83.3 
510.54.10  Training & Schools 350.00 0.00 350.00 0.0 

91.3 
Dept:  14  Legal Counsel 
510.31.00  Professional Services 80,000.00 85,328.00 -5,328.00 106.7 
510.31.01  Code Enforcement Attorney 1,500.00 931.25 568.75 62.1 

105.8 

221

22.5 
128.0 
31.3 

120.3 
100.0 
99.6 



Dept:  15  Comprehensive Planning 
510.31.00  Professional Services 28,000.00 16,280.00 11,720.00 58.1 
510.31.95  Grants Services 39,500.00 39,500.00 0.00 100.0 

82.6 
Dept:  19 General Services 
500.24.00  Workers Compensation 2,177.00 2,177.00 0.00 100.0 
510.31.00  Professional Services 4,000.00 3,410.00 590.00 85.3 
510.31.02  Lifeguard Contract 19,600.00 15,342.24 4,257.76 78.3 
510.31.11  Security 1,998.00 969.88 1,028.12 48.5 
510.34.10  Janitorial Services 14,108.00 10,924.00 3,184.00 77.4 
510.35.00  Pre-Employment Exp 135.00 157.00 -22.00 116.3 
510.41.00  Telephone 10,728.00 6,034.54 4,693.46 56.3 
510.41.10  Communication Services 41,004.00 41,330.65 -326.65 100.8 
510.43.00  STREET LIGHTS 45,000.00 36,907.81 8,092.19 82.0 
510.43.10  Electricity 32,500.00 23,136.92 9,363.08 71.2 
510.43.20  Water & Sewer 6,600.00 5,762.88 837.12 87.3 
510.43.50  WASTE SERVICE TAX 2,964.00 2,964.34 -0.34 100.0 
510.45.00  General Liability Insurance 53,700.00 53,602.00 98.00 99.8 
510.45.01  Flood Insurance 3,400.00 3,402.00 -2.00 100.1 
510.45.02  Property Insurance 41,500.00 41,497.00 3.00 100.0 
510.45.03  Auto Insurance 7,500.00 7,141.00 359.00 95.2 
510.46.10  Office Equipment Maintenance 4,904.00 3,821.10 1,082.90 77.9 
510.46.15  Equipment Maintenance 13,800.00 6,694.25 7,105.75 48.5 
510.46.36  Pest Control 3,000.00 2,591.38 408.62 86.4 
510.46.41  Mowing Contract 29,820.00 27,335.00 2,485.00 91.7 
510.46.60  SIGNAL MAINTENANCE 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.0 
510.47.00  Printing 200.00 378.45 -178.45 189.2 
510.49.48  Env. Boards Expense 960.00 600.22 359.78 62.5 
510.49.98  Contingency 30,000.00 6,655.65 23,344.35 22.2 
510.49.99  Miscellaneous 300.00 35.00 265.00 11.7 
510.51.00  Office Supplies 9,100.00 7,504.96 1,595.04 82.5 
510.51.10  Postage 1,800.00 1,630.27 169.73 90.6 
510.52.10  Janitorial Supplies 5,000.00 3,314.44 1,685.56 66.3 
510.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 252.00 268.82 -16.82 
510.64.01  Capital Outlay 149,749.00 50,178.59 99,570.41 
543.00.00  Licenses & Fees 11,117.00 8,165.24 2,951.76 73.4 

68.1 
Dept:  21  Law Enforcement 
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 542,401.00 478,824.06 63,576.94 88.3 
500.12.50  Holiday Pay 19,000.00 17,576.88 1,423.12 92.5 
500.14.00  Salaries Overtime 30,300.00 24,853.82 5,446.18 82.0 
500.15.00  Education Incentive Pay 6,600.00 6,055.00 545.00 91.7 
500.15.01  First Responder 7,920.00 5,387.50 2,532.50 68.0 
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 46,376.00 39,699.84 6,676.16 85.6 
500.22.02  Police Pension 292,640.00 275,798.78 16,841.22 94.2 
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 2,828.00 2,453.34 374.66 86.8 
500.23.01  Health Insurance 55,227.00 64,077.63 -8,850.63 116.0 
500.23.02  Life Insurance 2,255.00 2,434.82 -179.82 108.0 
500.23.10  Statutory AD&D 1,000.00 594.00 406.00 59.4 
500.24.00  Workers Compensation 12,500.00 12,500.00 0.00 100.0 
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 600.00 533.05 66.95 88.8 
520.31.00  Professional Services 680.00 550.00 130.00 80.9 
520.34.40  Dispatching Services 17,756.00 16,938.09 817.91 95.4 
520.40.00  Travel & Meetings 540.00 1,056.67 -516.67 
520.41.10  Communication Services 1,020.00 1,201.24 -181.24 
520.46.10  Office Equipment Maintenance 3,000.00 2,067.63 932.37 
520.46.15  Equipment Maintenance 2,000.00 1,991.70 8.30 99.6 
520.46.16  Radar Calibration 1,000.00 419.50 580.50 42.0 
520.46.20  Vehicle Maintenance 13,000.00 5,514.72 7,485.28 42.4 
520.48.00  PROMOTIONAL ACTIVITIES 1,800.00 523.40 1,276.60 29.1 
520.48.50  Crime Prevention 1,100.00 1,044.18 55.82 94.9 
520.49.99  Miscellaneous 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.0 

222

106.7 
33.5 

195.7 
117.8 
68.9 



520.52.00  Uniforms 7,350.00 3,944.55 3,405.45 53.7 
520.52.05  Protective Gear 8,100.00 6,201.92 1,898.08 76.6 
520.52.50  Gas & Oil 13,000.00 10,545.01 2,454.99 81.1 
520.52.70  Medical 500.00 561.24 -61.24 112.2 
520.52.90  Operating Supplies 3,420.00 2,793.92 626.08 81.7 
520.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 450.00 492.37 -42.37 109.4 
520.54.10  Training & Schools 3,500.00 2,953.29 546.71 84.4 
520.64.01  Capital Outlay 45,700.00 36,159.85 9,540.15 79.1 
520.71.00  Principal Retired 22,543.00 22,543.00 0.00 100.0 
520.72.00  Interest Expense 1,719.00 1,716.83 2.17 99.9 
543.00.00  Licenses & Fees 12,762.00 8,454.00 4,308.00 66.2 

89.6 
Dept:  22  Fire Control 
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 38,422.00 33,988.98 4,433.02 88.5 
500.14.00  Salaries Overtime 0.00 110.83 -110.83 0.0 
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 2,939.00 3,397.29 -458.29 115.6 
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 3,254.00 2,833.42 420.58 87.1 
500.23.01  Health Insurance 4,489.00 4,146.49 342.51 92.4 
500.23.02  Life Insurance 162.00 67.56 94.44 41.7 
500.23.10  Statutory AD&D 165.00 165.00 0.00 100.0 
500.24.00  Workers Compensation 6,000.00 5,276.75 723.25 87.9 
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 123.00 45.22 77.78 36.8 
520.31.00  Professional Services 104,000.00 38,979.64 65,020.36 37.5 
520.34.40  Dispatching Services 5,000.00 3,750.00 1,250.00 75.0 
520.35.00  PRE-EMPLOYMENT EXPENSE 3,380.00 1,332.00 2,048.00 39.4 
520.40.00  Travel & Meetings 500.00 203.08 296.92 40.6 
520.41.10  Communication Services 1,200.00 1,225.00 -25.00 102.1 
520.46.15  Equipment Maintenance 4,077.00 3,578.97 498.03 87.8 
520.46.20  Vehicle Maintenance 23,050.00 23,846.51 -796.51 103.5 
520.48.55  Fire Prevention 2,820.00 3,832.00 -1,012.00 135.9 
520.51.00  Office Supplies 300.00 625.12 -325.12 
520.52.00  Uniforms 5,150.00 5,146.50 3.50 
520.52.02  S.C.B.A. 1,750.00 1,034.45 715.55 59.1 
520.52.05  Protective Gear 3,780.00 3,777.58 2.42 99.9 
520.52.10  Janitorial Supplies 750.00 420.47 329.53 56.1 
520.52.20  Tools & Hardware 1,500.00 734.48 765.52 49.0 
520.52.50  Gas & Oil 2,100.00 1,599.17 500.83 76.2 
520.52.70  Medical 700.00 791.07 -91.07 113.0 
520.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 360.00 72.00 288.00 20.0 
520.54.10  Training & Schools 6,750.00 2,552.81 4,197.19 37.8 
520.54.12  Training Materials 800.00 264.20 535.80 33.0 
520.64.01  Capital Outlay 86,500.00 54,800.00 31,700.00 63.4 
520.71.00  Principal Retired 42,152.00 42,151.42 0.58 100.0 
520.72.00  Interest Expense 6,311.00 6,309.64 1.36 100.0 
543.00.00  Licenses & Fees 12,366.00 12,190.65 175.35 98.6 

69.9 
Dept:  29  Code Enforcement 
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 13,312.00 10,048.00 3,264.00 75.5 
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 1,018.00 768.64 249.36 75.5 
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 1,128.00 851.43 276.57 75.5 
500.23.10  Statutory AD&D 53.00 0.00 53.00 0.0 
500.24.00  Workers Compensation 166.00 0.00 166.00 0.0 
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 43.00 10.02 32.98 23.3 
520.40.00  Travel & Meetings 35.00 0.00 35.00 0.0 
520.45.03  Auto Insurance 124.00 0.00 124.00 0.0 
520.46.20  Vehicle Maintenance 250.00 0.00 250.00 0.0 
520.51.00  Office Supplies 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.0 
520.51.10  Postage 350.00 124.51 225.49 35.6 
520.51.20  RECORDING COSTS 120.00 45.50 74.50 37.9 
520.52.00  Uniforms 75.00 69.00 6.00 92.0 
520.52.50  Gas & Oil 150.00 218.98 -68.98 
520.54.10  Training & Schools 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.0 

223

208.4 
99.9 



Dept:  41  Public Works 224
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 155,000.00 134,490.44 20,509.56 86.8 
500.14.00  Salaries Overtime 2,000.00 1,993.09 6.91 99.7 
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 11,858.00 10,899.19 958.81 91.9 
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 13,129.00 11,399.38 1,729.62 86.8 
500.23.01  Health Insurance 16,115.00 14,539.53 1,575.47 90.2 
500.23.02  Life Insurance 180.00 216.70 -36.70 120.4 
500.23.10  Statutory AD&D 159.00 159.00 0.00 100.0 
500.24.00  Workers Compensation 2,000.00 1,153.25 846.75 57.7 
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 496.00 142.76 353.24 28.8 
530.34.91  Landscaping 5,000.00 4,409.77 590.23 88.2 
530.40.00  Travel & Meetings 200.00 0.00 200.00 0.0 
530.43.50  Dump Service 2,000.00 500.00 1,500.00 25.0 
530.46.12  Maintenance Supplies 7,000.00 369.06 6,630.94 5.3 
530.46.15  Equipment Maintenance 4,000.00 4,573.57 -573.57 114.3 
530.46.20  Vehicle Maintenance 3,438.00 7,233.44 -3,795.44 
530.46.30  Building Maintenance 5,000.00 3,266.27 1,733.73 
530.46.31  Maintenance Old Town Hall 1,000.00 947.48 52.52 94.7 
530.46.32  Ryckman House 2,000.00 221.00 1,779.00 11.1 
530.46.34  Maintenance Ryckman Park 0.00 4,107.89 -4,107.89 0.0 
530.46.35  Pier Maintenance 2,000.00 842.01 1,157.99 42.1 
530.46.37  Maintenance Ocean Park 0.00 1,835.55 -1,835.55 0.0 
530.46.40  Grounds Maintenance 15,000.00 9,207.70 5,792.30 61.4 
530.52.00  Uniforms 1,300.00 746.36 553.64 57.4 
530.52.05  Protective Gear 600.00 1,850.67 -1,250.67 
530.52.20  Tools & Hardware 2,600.00 2,343.13 256.87 
530.52.25  TOOL RENTALS 3,000.00 611.10 2,388.90 20.4 
530.52.50  Gas & Oil 2,900.00 2,931.68 -31.68 101.1 
530.53.10  Street Repair 3,000.00 4,007.16 -1,007.16 
530.53.20  Street Signs 3,000.00 5,279.88 -2,279.88 

133.6 
176.0 

530.54.10  Training & Schools 1,500.00 224.80 1,275.20 15.0 
530.57.25  Welding 0.00 765.05 -765.05 0.0 
530.64.01  Capital Outlay 44,500.00 40,952.26 3,547.74 92.0 
530.71.00  PRINCIPAL RETIRED 11,592.00 11,592.00 0.00 100.0 
530.72.00  Interest Expense 864.00 862.77 1.23 99.9 

210.4 
65.3 

308.4 
90.1 

 

88.3 
Dept:  72 Parks & Recreation 
570.46.42  Park Beautification 1,600.00 1,667.30 -67.30 104.2 
570.46.43  Tree Expense 0.00 400.00 -400.00 0.0 
570.48.10  Founder's Day 5,000.00 782.14 4,217.86 15.6 
570.48.50  Movies In The Park 1,400.00 830.00 570.00 59.3 
570.48.52  Fourth of July 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.0 
570.48.53  Christmas Decorations Park 250.00 1,368.10 -1,118.10 
570.48.60  Easter Egg Hunt 50.00 0.00 50.00 
570.63.01  Tennis Court Expeditures 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.0 
570.63.02  BBall & VBall Courts 2,000.00 633.92 1,366.08 31.7 
570.63.05  Bocce Court Expenditures 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.0 

48.1 

547.2 
0.0 

Total Expenditure Rate: 

https://530.72.00
https://11,592.00
https://11,592.00
https://530.71.00
https://3,547.74
https://40,952.26
https://44,500.00
https://530.64.01
https://530.57.25
https://1,275.20
https://1,500.00
https://530.54.10
https://2,279.88
https://5,279.88
https://3,000.00
https://530.53.20
https://1,007.16
https://4,007.16
https://3,000.00
https://530.53.10
https://2,931.68
https://2,900.00
https://530.52.50
https://2,388.90
https://3,000.00
https://530.52.25
https://2,343.13
https://2,600.00
https://530.52.20
https://1,250.67
https://1,850.67
https://530.52.05
https://1,300.00
https://530.52.00
https://5,792.30
https://9,207.70
https://15,000.00
https://530.46.40
https://1,835.55
https://1,835.55
https://530.46.37
https://1,157.99
https://2,000.00
https://530.46.35
https://4,107.89
https://4,107.89
https://530.46.34
https://1,779.00
https://2,000.00
https://530.46.32
https://1,000.00
https://530.46.31
https://1,733.73
https://3,266.27
https://5,000.00
https://530.46.30
https://3,795.44
https://7,233.44
https://3,438.00
https://530.46.20
https://4,573.57
https://4,000.00
https://530.46.15
https://6,630.94
https://7,000.00
https://530.46.12
https://1,500.00
https://2,000.00
https://530.43.50
https://530.40.00
https://4,409.77
https://5,000.00
https://530.34.91
https://500.25.00
https://1,153.25
https://2,000.00
https://500.24.00
https://500.23.10
https://500.23.02
https://1,575.47
https://14,539.53
https://16,115.00
https://500.23.01
https://1,729.62
https://11,399.38
https://13,129.00
https://500.22.20
https://10,899.19
https://11,858.00
https://500.21.00
https://1,993.09
https://2,000.00
https://500.14.00
https://20,509.56
https://134,490.44
https://155,000.00
https://500.12.00


For the Period:  10/1/2019 to 8/31/2020 
Target Rate: 91.7% 

Fund:  125 - Building Dept 
Expenditures Original Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud 
Dept:  24  Protective Inspections 
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 73,284.00 59,736.65 13,547.35 81.5 
500.14.00  Salaries Overtime 0.00 297.94 -297.94 0.0 
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 5,606.00 4,396.87 1,209.13 78.4 
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 6,207.00 5,195.23 1,011.77 83.7 
500.23.01  Health Insurance 16,301.00 16,859.93 -558.93 103.4 
500.23.02  Life Insurance 136.00 129.49 6.51 95.2 
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 235.00 60.05 174.95 25.6 
520.31.00  Professional Services 107,679.00 73,929.84 33,749.16 68.7 
520.40.00  Travel & Meetings 0.00 78.88 -78.88 0.0 
520.51.00  Office Supplies 400.00 265.37 134.63 66.3 
520.51.10  Postage 30.00 0.00 30.00 0.0 
520.52.00  Uniforms 50.00 183.00 -133.00 
520.52.20  Tools & Hardware 60.00 0.00 60.00 
520.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 125.00 0.00 125.00 0.0 
520.64.01  Capital Outlay 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.0 
581.00.00  TRANSFER OUT 18,000.00 13,500.00 4,500.00 75.0 

74.6 

225

366.0 
0.0 





  
 

 
 

 

     

    
 

 

  

     
 

   
       

      
  

 
   

   
       

     

   
 

    

    
 

     

 
     

    
      

    
  

 

     
  

  
 

        

226
SEPTEMBER ACTION ITEMS 

ITEM OPENED 
Comprehensive 
plan for safe 
pedestrian and bike 
routes 

9/27/2017 DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 8/19/2020 Vice Mayor 
Hoover 

Town Manager 

8/19/2020 Item closed 

6/17/2020 Study didn’t find any new walkways/bike paths. TM asked to investigate other option like stenciling/painting roads. Update 
August RTCM 

3/18/2020 Study will be completed in June. 
7/17/2019 The awarded grant funds a study that will be completed by June 2020. To be revisited at the March RTCM. 
7/1/2019 The Opportunity for Green Infrastructure Adaptation Planning grant was awarded in the amount of $39,500 
4/18/2019 Waiting for grant award notification 

4/11/2019 
Paperwork was submitted for this grant on 1/31/2019.   If granted, funds ($39,500) will be used to develop a plan as to how 
MB could improve stormwater management, improve water quality and provide recreational/aesthetic amenities in light of 
future climate conditions such as sea level rise. Work would begin on July 1, 2019 if we are awarded the grant. 

3/20/2019 TM will research to determine if previous TM submitted paperwork for this grant. 

2/12/2019 Town applied for a Florida DEP resiliency planning grant on January 31, 2019 in partnership with the Eastern Central Florida 
Planning Council and are awaiting word as to our acceptance. 

1/11/2019 There is a planning grant on the January RTCM agenda. 

8/9/2018 This will be a long-term project as funding and development of a trail way must be completed. Request review in January, 
2019. 

7/13/2019 TM Daniels is attending a meeting on Bike trails on July 18, 2018. 

9/27/2018 
In lieu of moving forward with the Safe Routes to School grant program, Commissioner Hoover recommended that the Town 

focus their energy on a more comprehensive plan with emphasis placed on stormwater management.  The Commission 
agreed by consensus to his suggestion and to add this item to the Action List. 

5/7/2018 Currently there are no grant programs for this project. Some possibilities are to install sidewalks in conjunction with some 
stormwater replacement in some areas like Andrews Drive. 

3/30/2018 

Bicycle safety was addressed as it relates to safe routes to school and A-1-A at a meeting with FDOT and SCTPO. Unfortunately 
without funding from DOT, the money necessary for sidewalks puts this project in the future. Hearing that FDOT does not 
expect any grant opportunities in the future, one option is to include sidewalks/bicycle paths in any stormwater sewer 
project. 

2/21/2018 2/21/2018: Commissioner Hoover and TM Daniels have been told a meeting with FDOT will be scheduled towards the end of 



 
    

    
      

     
  

  
    

      
      

  
  

    
      

  

  
  

    

  
    
     
    

      
 

 
    

  
    

       
 

    
     

  
      

227

this week. 
1/17/2018 Town Manager Daniels is meeting with FDOT during the week of January 21. 
12/20/2017 Town Manager Daniels will meet with DOT after the holiday. 
ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
Social Media Policy 6/3/2020 8/19/2020 Commission Town Staff 
DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 
8/19/2020 Item closed 
6/3/2020 Commission directed Town staff to create a social media policy for the Town. 
ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
Establish Facebook Pages 6/3/2020 8/19/2020 Commission Town Staff 
DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 
8/19/2020 Item closed 
6/3/2020 Commission directed Town staff to establish a plan for Facebook page management 
ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
Collaborate w/Indialantic to 
make joint request to FDOT 
for reduction in speed limit 
on A1A to 35mph 

5/20/2020 9/16/2020 Commission Town Manager 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 
8/19/2020 TM waiting on FDOT response. Push update to September RTCM. 
7/15/2020 TM attended workshop with Indialantic TM. Waiting on FDOT to make a decision. Will update in August if any developments. 
6/17/2020 Indialantic is in agreement. TM contacted FDOT and was asked to attend speed management workshop. Update at July RTCM. 
ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
Street Paving/Repaving 
Plan 

5/6/2020 9/16/2020 Commission Town Manager 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 
8/19/2020 TM has not received costs from Scott Glaubitz. Will update at September RTCM. 

7/15/2020 Commission asked TM and PWS to create a color coded master plan map indicating projected dates/timeline of future 
projects. 

6/20/2020 RFP Bids will be presented at July RTCM 
6/3/2020 Commission asked for long term plan. TM will present findings at June RTCM. 
4/15/2020 RTCM Cancelled. 5/2020: TM said she received ballpark estimates from Commissioner Runte and BSE. 
02/26/2020 The TM and PWS toured the streets that were slated for pavement.  Scott Glaubitz advised that several of the streets did not 



           
     

   

     
 

        

 

      
    

    
   

 
  

    
   

      
    

      
    
  
       
      

     
   

      
   

      
     

  

        
 

 
  

   
   

     

228

need to be paved just patched.  Mr. Glaubitz was not concerned about the road depression on Cherry and Rosewood. The TM 
was advised to save the money set aside for paving this year and patch. The larger much more expensive project will be the 
major curb replacement and repaving of Orange. 

2/19/2020 The TM said she talked to Scott Glaubitz about the roads but hasn't heard back from him.  Item being moved out to March 
RTCM. 

1/15/2020 The PWS and TM are meeting with B.S.E. in February; they don't want to spend money on paving until the road is evaluated. 

7/17/2019 

PW Supervisor showed on a map where the next block of paving will take place. It's on the north end of Town and spans 2.84 
miles, is contiguous and is in an area where there are no upcoming stormwater projects. More preventive maintenance 
should be performed such as sealing cracks to stop water intrusion and sealing the roads.  Mayor Simmons suggested working 
with Indialantic when repaving contiguous areas. 

6/26/2019 
The PW Supervisor developed a map for the north, central and south sections of Town and is working on giving the roads 
grades determined by their condition.  The budget has enough for 3 miles of paving and the areas paved should be 
contiguous.  PW Supervisor to report back in July. 

5/15/2019 Interim Town Manager and the PW Supervisor are breaking the roads into contiguous zones and putting those zones in order 
of condition.  Looking to pave 3-5 miles of roads during FY 19/20. 

4/18/2019 TM said cost for one mile of paving will be approximately $66,000 but it will depend on depth and if millings will be needed. 
4/10/2019 BSE to review past paving plan.  They will see if we can piggyback onto Brevard County's contract with VA Paving. 
2/13/2019 Request delay until April 2019. 
1/16/2019 Town Manager is working with BSE to determine the order in which the roads should be paved based on condition. 
1/11/2019 BSE is scheduled to meet with the TM the week of 1/14/2019. 
10/17/2018 TM suggested working with our other approved engineering firm, Bowman Consulting, since they have expertise on this topic. 
10/11/2018 10/11/2018: Research is starting on replacement and preservation of our roadways. 
7/18/2018 Decide on one mile of paving or two miles of paving in FY 19/20 
6/20/2018 RFP bids to be presented at 7/18/2018 meeting 
ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
Charging Stations 11/20/2020 9/16/2020 Mayor Simmons EAB/TM 
DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

8/19/2020 PWS said breaker box must be replaced at cost of $3,000-$4,000.Commission asked TM to find install/generic cost for Sept 
RTCM. 

7/15/2020 
TM shared that the offer from Tesla no longer available, meaning the charging stations are no longer free. They cost $500.  TM 
is looking at other options and will come back in August with information. Commission asked TM to look for similar offers 
and/or grants as Tesla was offering. 

6/17/2020 TM scheduled electricians Wednesday. First parking spot for bikes and two for charging stations. Update July RTCM 



    
   

         
 

    

 
       

 

      
 

 
    

  

      
   

  
  
    

     
      

 
  

 
  

  
   
   

   
     
   
    

    
     

 
    

     
     

229

6/3/2020 Commission asked TM to contact Tesla to see what they have to offer and share information at June RTCM. 
5/6/2020 May TCW Cancelled. 

3/18/2020 Commission suggested TM get with Tesla to see what they may offer - including getting one at no cost. To be discussed again 
at May TCW. 

3/13/2020 TM should receive recommendations from EAB on charging stations after the 3/25/2020 meeting. 

11/20/2019 
Because of the holidays, the EAB won't be meeting until the end of January at which time they will be notified of the request 
for them to look into charging stations. They will hopefully have some input for the March 2020 RTCM. 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
Employee 6-month 
Evaluations 

3/18/2020 9/16/2020 Commission Town Manager 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

8/19/2020 TM said evaluations are almost all in and asked if timing could be changed to September instead of April in 2021 to tie in with 
merit increases. Commission agreed. Update at September RTCM. 

7/15/2020 TM has not received all evaluations. Will update in August. 
4/15/2020 RTCM cancelled. 
5/14/2020 TM said she had received only about half of the evaluations. 
6/3/2020 Commission moved this item to the July RTCM. 
ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
Code Enforcement 
Magistrate 

8/21/2019 9/19/2020 Mayor 
Simmons 

Town Manager & Town Attorney 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 
8/19/2020 TA Repperger said first reading will be at September RTCM and it is on the agenda. 
7/15/2020 TA Repperger said first reading will be at August RTCM. 
6/3/2020 TA said first reading will be at July RTCM. 
3/18/2020 TA moved this item to May RTCM. Attorney plans on First Read June 2020. 
2/19/2020 The Town Attorney said he will have a draft Ordinance at the March RTCM. 
1/15/2020 The Town Attorney asked that this be moved out another month. 

11/20/2019 This item relates to the ordinance change and not the Special Magistrate agreement that will be revisited by the Commission 
at the December RTCM.  The Town Attorney asked that this be moved out to January 2020. 

9/18/2019 
TA Repperger said a code change will be required to change from Code Board to Special Magistrate enforcement.  The 
Commission consented to having the TA move forward with writing an ordinance.  The Mayor asked the TM to get in touch 
with the Code Board members, as a courtesy, to let them know the Commission is thinking about a Special Magistrate. 



 

   
  

     
   

  
      

  
   

   
    
   

     
     

      
     

     
    

  
  
 

     

  
  

 
 

    
     

    

    
   

  
       

  
   

     
      

230

8/21/2019 

Town Attorney Repperger and Town Manager Mascaro weighed in on the efficiency of having a Special Magistrate instead of 
a Code Board; a Magistrate would streamline the process.  The cost could be assessed to the resident and the Code would 
have to be changed. The cost runs between $125 and $150 per hour.  The Town Manager was tasked with presenting options 
to the Commission about the handling of code hearings. 

ITEM OPENED 
Establish Salary Ranges 7/17/2019 DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 

DATE DIRECTION 
/NOTES 

9/16/2020 Commission Town Manager 

8/19/2020 Item pushed to September RTCM 
6/17/2020 Commission pushed this item to the August RTCM 
3/18/2020 TM presented Salary Survey to Commission. Further discussion pushed to June RTCM. 

3/4/2020 Town Manager presented salary survey (all positions) at workshop.  Suggestions made to eliminate some towns used for 
comparison purposes.  The updated data will be used to present to the Commission at the RTCM on 3/18/2020. 

2/19/2020 The Town Manager gave the Commission a copy of salary ranges from neighboring communities to be used as guidelines. 
Salary ranges still need to be created for MB employees and will be discussed further at the March Workshop. 

1/5/2020 The Town Manager asked that this be moved out another month. 
7/17/2019 Town Manager to conduct research and provide a salary range for each job in the Town. 
ITEM OPENED 
FDOT traffic light stanchion 
maintenance 

2/19/2020 DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 

DATE DIRECTIO 
N/NOTES 

10/21/2020 Commissioner 
Walters 

PW Supervisor 

8/19/2020 PW S asked to push this item to October RTCM. 
6/3/2020 PW Supervisor said Town is on the wait list. Commission pushed item to August RTCM. 
4/15/2020 April RTCM cancelled. PWS submitted request to FDOT. 

2/19/2020 Commissioner Walters said the traffic light stanchions on Ocean Avenue are in need of serious maintenance.  The PWS will 
contact DOT and will have an update at the March RTCM.  The project is likely to take a long time to complete. 

ITEM OPENED 
Sheds on Corner Lots 11/20/2019 DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 

DATE DIRECTION/ 
NOTES 

10/21/2020 Commission Town Attorney 

8/19/2020 Commission asked that this item be sent to P & Z in October for review. TA agreed. 
6/3/2020 April P&Z cancelled. TA will send to July P & Z and bring back to August RTCM. 



     
   

       
  

        
    

 
      

    

  
  

  
    

  
   

  

      
    

 
       

       
   

 
     

   
  

      

     
  

   

 
      

       
 

    
   

      

  
      

       
 

   
   

     

TC uploaded ADA compliant minutes for 2020 to Town website. Will update progress again in September.
The TC (who is new) reported that ADA compliance cannot be achieved in a short time frame but rather is part of a long
term goal that could take between 6 12 months to implement. The TC will give updates to the Commission on the progress
made. Next update scheduled for July RTCM.
RTCM Cancelled. TC and AA received training and TC implemented new Agenda platform. TC and AA received ADA training
and continue to work on ADA compliance.
Software installation/training isn't happening until April so with luck, our April RTCM packet will be generated utilizing the

- – – -
–

231

3/18/2020 Commission moved to send to P & Z and revisit at June RTCM. 
3/4/2020 Presented at workshop.  Commission moved 4/1/2020 workshop. 

2/19/2020 The Town Manager is contacting the Town Planner about this matter in order to address it further at the Planning & Zoning 
meeting on February 3rd, prior to the Workshop. 

12/18/2019 The Town Planner and staff have some options to address this issue that will be presented to the Planning & Zoning Board in 
January at which point the matter will be brought back to the Commission. 

11/20/2019 
A resident asked about the Code restriction related to the placement of sheds on corner lots.  After Commission discussion, 
the issue was placed on the Action List to discuss and perhaps address at a later date. 

ITEM OPENED 
Research availability & 
compensation for Bld. Off. 

1/15/202 
0 

DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 

DATE DIRECTIO 
N/NOTES 

9/16/2020 Commission Town Staff 

3/18/2020 TM presented salary data and starting search. Mayor said salary can't exceed $95,000. Further discussion September RTCM 

3/4/2020 Town Manager presented salary survey at workshop. Some towns eliminated for comparison purposes.  The data for Building 
Officials will be used to present to the Commission at the RTCM on 3/18/2020. 

2/19/2020 
The Town Manager talked to somebody who was interested in the job but in a matter of days, accepted a job in Rockledge. 
Compensation is less than they all thought.  A former employee, Rob Perry, is now working for Safebuilt and will be working 
for us on Wednesdays until Ken (the building inspector) returns 

1/15/2020 
The Commission approved the Safebuilt contract for one more year (5-0).  Because Marc Meyers is retiring soon and their 
rates will be raised next renewal period, the Commission tasked the Town Manager with doing a salary survey for Building 
Officials and to determine availability. 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTER ASSIGNED TO 

ADA Compliance 3/20/2019 09/16/2020 Commission Town Clerk 
Date Direction/Notes 

7/15/2020 

6/3/2020 

4/15/2020 

2/19/2020 

TC uploaded ADA compliant minutes for 2020 to Town website. Will update progress again in September. 
The TC (who is new) reported that ADA compliance cannot be achieved in a short-time frame – but rather – is part of a long-
term goal that could take between 6 – 12 months to implement. The TC will give updates to the Commission on the progress 
made. Next update scheduled for July RTCM. 
RTCM Cancelled. TC and AA received training and TC implemented new Agenda platform. TC and AA received ADA training 
and continue to work on ADA compliance. 
Software installation/training isn't happening until April so with luck, our April RTCM packet will be generated utilizing the 



    
 

 

     
   

  
    

 

 

   
     

   

 

      
   

     
   

 

   
     

    

    
   

   
   
      

    

        
 

   
         

   
       

      
 

 

    
 

    
   

  
    

 
    

     
  

      
   

     
   

     
     

    

   
   

  
  

      
   

      
 
  

        
   

     
      

 

new Granicus Peak software.  This isn't going to solve our ADA issues but it will allow for the cover page and compliant
memo's, etc., to be available online.
The Town Clerk reported that nothing has really changed regarding solutions to the ADA issue.  Having a notice on the website 
saying we are updating our site to be compliant is now sufficient to fend off lawsuits.   After our new agenda software is up
and running, the TC will see how feasible it is to upload agenda packets (or partial packets).  Currently, agendas and minutes
are on the website and she'll be working on modifying the last 2 to 3 years of resolutions and ordinances for placement on the 
Town's website.
Estimates received for closed captioning would cost about $16,000/year. Commission meeting audio is available at
Soundcloud.com. The problem still lies with the uncertainty involved in being 100% compliant; nobody quite knows how to
determine compliance.

Town Clerk is working with other municipalities to determine the best way to deal with compliance. There isn't a clear
understanding of a protocol to follow and many entities that thought they are compliant are not.  If the information is
available to non disabled people on a website but not available to disabled people, a lawsuit can be filed.  If the information is
not posted at all, we stand a better chance of not being targeted.
The TC reported that many counties and municipalities have been sued because their sites aren't ADA compliant.  She 
disabled a lot of the files on our website and is researching what will be needed for us to be 100% compliant as we add
content and as we republish older content.

Commission decided to move this out until April 2019
The master plan will be worked on at a later date after current projects have been completed.
Meeting moved to December 5,2018
BSE to discuss at November 7th Workshop
BSE will start on the updates to the master plan once the current projects are completed and Cherry at Rosewood is analyzed.
A new roadway collapse happened at Rosewood and Elm which will start repairs on Monday 9/17/2018.
The original project at Rosewood and Dogwood is complete. Three underground drains are being installed because of the high
water table at the location.
Town Manager was tasked with getting a Master Stormwater Plan from B.S.E. with associated cost.
The project started this week on Rosewood at Dogwood and the project on Oak south of Cherry will start on July 19, 2018.
Two project bids are on the agenda for the June RTCM as well as the approval for Andrews.
Public Works crew completed surface trench work on Third Ave at the River for the storm water sewer.
RFP was advertised for two projects, Oak south of Cherry and Rosewood at Dogwood with scheduled bid opening for May
24th.
Video equipment could not be utilized due to severe blockage in pipe on Andrews Drive. The Vacuum truck worked for six 

-

232

12/18/2019 

6/26/2019 

4/18/2019 

3/20/2019 

12/19/2018 
12/10/2018 
11/9/2018 
10/17/2018 
10/11/2018 
9/12/2018 

8/9/2018 

7/18/2018 
7/13/2018 
6/14/2018 
5/10/2018 

5/9/2018 

4/25/2018 

new Granicus Peak software.  This isn't going to solve our ADA issues but it will allow for the cover page and compliant 
memo's, etc., to be available online. 
The Town Clerk reported that nothing has really changed regarding solutions to the ADA issue.  Having a notice on the website 
saying we are updating our site to be compliant is now sufficient to fend off lawsuits.  After our new agenda software is up 
and running, the TC will see how feasible it is to upload agenda packets (or partial packets).  Currently, agendas and minutes 
are on the website and she'll be working on modifying the last 2 to 3 years of resolutions and ordinances for placement on the 
Town's website. 
Estimates received for closed captioning would cost about $16,000/year. Commission meeting audio is available at 
Soundcloud.com. The problem still lies with the uncertainty involved in being 100% compliant; nobody quite knows how to 
determine compliance. 

Town Clerk is working with other municipalities to determine the best way to deal with compliance. There isn't a clear 
understanding of a protocol to follow and many entities that thought they are compliant are not.  If the information is 
available to non-disabled people on a website but not available to disabled people, a lawsuit can be filed.  If the information is 
not posted at all, we stand a better chance of not being targeted. 
The TC reported that many counties and municipalities have been sued because their sites aren't ADA compliant.  She 
disabled a lot of the files on our website and is researching what will be needed for us to be 100% compliant as we add 
content and as we republish older content. 

Commission decided to move this out until April 2019 
The master plan will be worked on at a later date after current projects have been completed. 
Meeting moved to December 5,2018 
BSE to discuss at November 7th Workshop 
BSE will start on the updates to the master plan once the current projects are completed and Cherry at Rosewood is analyzed. 
A new roadway collapse happened at Rosewood and Elm which will start repairs on Monday 9/17/2018. 
The original project at Rosewood and Dogwood is complete. Three underground drains are being installed because of the high 
water table at the location. 
Town Manager was tasked with getting a Master Stormwater Plan from B.S.E. with associated cost. 
The project started this week on Rosewood at Dogwood and the project on Oak south of Cherry will start on July 19, 2018. 
Two project bids are on the agenda for the June RTCM as well as the approval for Andrews. 
Public Works crew completed surface trench work on Third Ave at the River for the storm water sewer. 
RFP was advertised for two projects, Oak south of Cherry and Rosewood at Dogwood with scheduled bid opening for May 
24th. 
Video equipment could not be utilized due to severe blockage in pipe on Andrews Drive. The Vacuum truck worked for six 



Fire Tax Brie 

      
 

 

      
    

     
    

   

    
       

      
 

           
     

   
   

       
      

    
   

      
      

  
    

    
      

    
    

     
 
     

     
     

    
  

   
        

    
 

          
     

  
    

      
     

   
   

      
     

 
   

   
     

   
   

hours and was not able to remove the entire blockage. BSE will meet with the Town during week of May 14th to discuss
options.
Received communication on Andrews Drive project that the surface drainage solution would not work due to the amount of
water that needed draining. The existing pipe will be videotaped and forwarded to BSE. The remaining Tier one projects are 
progressing and we should have some answers week of 4/16. The baffle boxes are scheduled for cleaning on April 25 and 26.
Public Works will be repairing a surface outflow on Third Avenue at the River.
Communication to BSE relaying the approval and requesting a time line.
Commission approved $28,800 for engineering services to BSE for the 5 priority locations. The Commission also authorized up
to 18 hours of engineering fees to BSE to review new material and documents from the former engineer.
Vote granted B.S.E. up to 10 hours to evaluate the spots located at Rosewood/Dogwood, Oak/Cherry and Andrews in order 
for them to develop remediation plan.
B.S.E. reviewed boxes of new material and requested material from our last engineering firm.  It was to be voted on at the
1/17/18 meeting how many hours we would grant B.S.E. to work on the three hotspots in Town
B.S.E. is modifying the quote presented at the 12/6/17 meeting based on new material received from the Town that needs to
be reviewed.  Will present new findings at 1/10/18 Workshop.
At the December 6th Workshop, our engineering consultant, B.S.E., will be present to discuss the Town's stormwater issues.
The Commission agreed by consensus to discuss stormwater management at the November 1, 2017 Workshop.
In tandem with Commissioner Hoover's comprehensive plan for safe pedestrian and bike routes, a stormwater plan needs to
be implemented. The Commission agreed by consensus to place this on the Action List.

OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO
fings 6/26/2019 2/3/2021 Commission Town Manager

DIRECTION/NOTES
The Commission push out item until they can determine effectiveness of stipend plan
The Commission decided this should be discussed at the February 2020 Workshop.
Survey regarding fire services and a referendum on ballot to be discussed at workshop.
FD present options at Workshop.  Comm discuss fire tax/dedicated department fund.
TM to get information regarding fire taxes so Commission to make an educated decision

-

233

4/12/2018 

2/22/2018 

2/21/2018 

1/17/2018 

1/10/2018 

12/20/2017 

11/15/2017 
10/18/2017 

9/27/2017 

ITEM 

DATE 
2/5/2020 
12/18/2020 
10/21/2019 
8/21/2019 
6/26/2019 

hours and was not able to remove the entire blockage. BSE will meet with the Town during week of May 14th to discuss 
options. 
Received communication on Andrews Drive project that the surface drainage solution would not work due to the amount of 
water that needed draining. The existing pipe will be videotaped and forwarded to BSE. The remaining Tier one projects are 
progressing and we should have some answers week of 4/16. The baffle boxes are scheduled for cleaning on April 25 and 26. 
Public Works will be repairing a surface outflow on Third Avenue at the River. 
Communication to BSE relaying the approval and requesting a time-line. 
Commission approved $28,800 for engineering services to BSE for the 5 priority locations. The Commission also authorized up 
to 18 hours of engineering fees to BSE to review new material and documents from the former engineer. 
Vote granted B.S.E. up to 10 hours to evaluate the spots located at Rosewood/Dogwood, Oak/Cherry and Andrews in order 
for them to develop remediation plan. 
B.S.E. reviewed boxes of new material and requested material from our last engineering firm. It was to be voted on at the 
1/17/18 meeting how many hours we would grant B.S.E. to work on the three hotspots in Town 
B.S.E. is modifying the quote presented at the 12/6/17 meeting based on new material received from the Town that needs to 
be reviewed.  Will present new findings at 1/10/18 Workshop. 
At the December 6th Workshop, our engineering consultant, B.S.E., will be present to discuss the Town's stormwater issues. 
The Commission agreed by consensus to discuss stormwater management at the November 1, 2017 Workshop. 
In tandem with Commissioner Hoover's comprehensive plan for safe pedestrian and bike routes, a stormwater plan needs to 
be implemented. The Commission agreed by consensus to place this on the Action List. 
OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 
6/26/2019 2/3/2021 Commission Town Manager 
DIRECTION/NOTES 
The Commission push out item until they can determine effectiveness of stipend plan 
The Commission decided this should be discussed at the February 2020 Workshop. 
Survey regarding fire services and a referendum on ballot to be discussed at workshop. 
FD present options at Workshop.  Comm discuss fire tax/dedicated department fund. 
TM to get information regarding fire taxes so Commission to make an educated decision 


	ADP4CB3.tmp
	Permits Issued query

	ADPE3D9.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP24E.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP3C99.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP30F.tmp
	Sheet1

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	ADPEA13.tmp
	Town Manager Report for August 2020




